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Gallaher Group Limited

Strategic report

Principal activities and review of business

Gallaher Group Lumited (“the Company} acts as an investment holding company within the Japan Tobacco Inc
group of companies (“the Group”) The Company's principal source of income 1s dividends from its investrents,
namely shares mn wholly-owned subsidiaries The nming of such dividends 1s determined by the Boards of the
subsidiaries, in conjunction with the Company The Company received cash dividends m the year amounting to
£395,000,000 (2014 £5,448,000) After accounting for umpaurment charges, admimstrative expenses, exchange losses
and net financing costs, the Company reported a profit before tax of £67,406,000 for the year (2014 loss of
£4,649.000)

The excess of dividend income received from subsidianes over dividends paid out to the shareholder during the year
has been used to repay a substantial portion of the Company’s intercompany borrowings

In future perods, there 1s expected to be no sigmificant change to the Company’s principal activity

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal nisks and uncertainties that affect the Company include interest rate nsk, foreign currency nisk, hquidity
risk and credit nsk These nsks are partly managed at the Group level and partly at an individual business umt level

Cash flow risk The Company’s activities expose 1t to the financial nsks of changes 1n both foreign currency exchange
rates and changes in interest rates To the extent that the Company holds interest bearing assets and habihities that
carry vanable rates of interest and are denomunated 1n currencies other than Bntish pounds, there 1s uncertainty of
cash flows The Company seeks to manage foreign currency risk in conjunction wath the Group treasury function The
key exposure nsk 1s m relation to the Company’s Euro denominated investment in preference shares issued by
Gallaher Limited This investment 15 unhedged within the Company’s financial statements, although the risk 1s fully
mutigated within JT’s UK group of entities

Liguidity nisk In order to maintam hquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and
future developments, the Company uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance, primanly in the form of
loans from Group compames

Credit risk The Company’s mamn financial assets are investmenis and receivables The Company’s credit risk 1s
primanly attnbutable to its receivables The amounts presented 1n the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables An allowance for impairment 1s made where there 1s an 1dentified loss event which, based on previous
experience, 18 evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows The Company’s receivables are owed by
related compantes, Gallaher Limited and JT International Holding B V', and these are considered recoverable

Approved by the Board of Directors
and s1 the Board

Jeroen Rusbach
Director
25 May 2016




Gallaher Group Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present thewr annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Details of the Company’s financial nsk management 1s set out within the Strategic Report on page 2

Results and dividends

Profit after taxation s £67,900,000 (2014 loss of £4,063,000) Ordinary dividends amounting to £175,000,000 were
declared and paid duning the year (2014 £mtl)

Going Concern

The directors are of the opinion that the Company 1s a going concern and the financial statements have been prepared
on that basis (see note 2)

Directors

A list of the directors 1s given on page | No director held any interest in the shares of the Company dunng the year
No director had any interests during the year 1n any material contract with the Company The Company has made
qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made during the year and remain
1n force at the date of this report

Auditor

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

e so far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit informaton of which the Company’s auditor 18 unaware,
and

o the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed thewr wallingness to continue in office as auditor

Approved by the Board of Directors
the Board

Jeroen Rusbach
Director
25 May 2016




Gallaher Group Limited

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report including the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Unuted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

s  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e  state whether UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explatned 1n the financial statements, and

e  prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue m business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explamn the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are alsc responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities




Gallaher Group Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Gallaher Group Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Gallaher Group Limiuted for the year ended 31 December 2015 which
comprise the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equuty, the
Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 19 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation 1s applicable law and Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compames Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for ths report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 18 to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements m accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtamning evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material musstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information 1n the annual report to tdentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to wdentify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performung the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In cur opinion the financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its profit for the
year then ended,

e have been properly prepared 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

e have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

¢ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

s the Strategic Report and the Durectors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and 1ts environment obtained n the course of the audit,
we have not 1dentified any matenal misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report




Gallaher Group Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Gallaher Group Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you 1f, 1n our opimon

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

* the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

M~

Anthony Morns BSc FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

24May 2016




Gallaher Group Limited

Income statement
Year ended 31 December 2015

Note
Income from ordinary shares i subsidiary undertakings 5
Impairment of investments 1n subsidiary undertakings 8
Administrative expenses
Exchange losses
Investment income - preference shares in subsidiary undertaking
Finance costs - interest payable on loans from Group undertakings
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Tax 7
Profit/(loss) for the financial year attributable to owners of the Company 15

Revenue and profit/(loss) are all derived from continuing operations

Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December 2015

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year attributable to owners of the Company

2015 2014
£000 £000
395,000 5,448
(318,000) (50)
) (1)
(9,009) (9,859)
1,823 2,354
2,407) (2,541)
67,406 {4,649)
494 586
67,900 (4,063)
2015 2014
£000 £000
67,900 (4,063)
67,900 (4,063)




Gallaher Group Limited

Statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2014

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2015

Called up Capital Capital

share contribuhon redemption Retained
capital reserve reserve earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
65,714 7,504 7,872  1,882362 1,963,452
- - - (4,063) (4,063)
- - - (4,063) (4,063)
65,714 7,504 7,87 1,878,299 1,959,389
- - - 67,900 67,900
- - - 67,900 67,900
- - - (175,000y  (175,000)
65,714 7,504 7,872 1,771,199 1,852,289




Gallaher Group Limited

Balance sheet
31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £000 £000

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidianes 8 1,899,779 2,226,788

1,899,779 2,226,788

Current assets

Trade and other recervables 9 1,337 1,493

Deferred tax assets 10 - 529
1,337 2,022

Total assets 1,901,116 2,228,810

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 (48,827) {269,421)

(48,827)  (269,421)

Net current liabilities (47.,490) (267,399)
Total assets less current habilities 1,852,289 1,959,389
Total liabilities (48,827) (269,421)
Net assets 1,852,289 1,959,389
Equity

Called up share capital 12 65,714 65,714
Capatal contribution reserve 13 7,504 7,504
Capital redemption reserve 14 7,872 7,872
Retaned earnings 15 1,771,199 1,878,299
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,852,289 1,959,389

The financial statements of Gallaher Group Limited (regtstered number 03299793) were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 25 May 2016 They were signed on 1ts behalf by

S

Jeroen Rusbach
Director




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

1. General information
Gallaher Group Limuted 1s a Company domuciled 1n the United Kingdom under the Companies Act

The Company 1s a private Company limited by shares and 1s registered mm England and Wales The address of the
Company's registered office 1s shown on page 1 The nature of the Company’s operations and 1ts principat activities
are set out 1n the strategic report on page 2

These financial statements are presenied n pounds sterling because that 13 the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates

These financial statements are separate financial statements The Company 1s exempt from the preparation and
delivery of consolidated financial statements, because 1t 1s included 1n the group accounts of Japan Tobacco Inc The
group accounts of fapan Tobacco Inc are available to the public and can be obtamned from 1its registered office
address set out in note 17

The Company has applied FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ incorporating the Amendments to FRS 101
issued by the FRC 1n July 2015 and the amendments to Company law made by The Compames, Partnerships and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015 prior to their mandatory effective date of accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Adoption of new and revised Standards

There have been a number of amendments to IFRSs and new mterpretations that are mandatonly effective for the
current year However, their adoption has not had any matenal impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported
in these financial statements

IFRIC 21 Levies The Company has adopted IFRIC 21 Lewies for the first time 1n the current year [FRIC
21 addresses the 1ssuc as to when to recogmse a ltability to pay a levy imposed by a
government The Interpretation defines a levy, and spectfies that the obligating event
that gives rise to the hability 1s the activity that tniggers the payment of the levy, as
identified by legislaon The Interpretation provides guidance on how different levy
arrangements should be accounted for, in particular, 1t clanfies that neither economic
compulsion nor the gomg concern basis of financial statements preparation tmphies that
an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be trniggered by operating n a
future period

The application of this Interpretation has had no matenal impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts recogmsed 1n the Company’s financial statements

Annual Improvements The Company has adopted the various amendments to a number of standards IFRS 3
to IFRSs 2011-2013 Business Combinations, TFRS 13 Fawr Value Measurement and 1AS 40 Investment
Property The majority of the amendments are in the nature of clanfications rather than
substantive changes to existing requirements

10




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

2. Sigmficant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The Company meets the defimtion of a qualifying entity under FRS 101 (Financial Reporung Standard 101) 1ssued by
the Financial Reporting Council Accordingly, in the year ended 31 December 2015 the Company has changed its
accounting framework from pre-2015 UK GAAP (“Old UK GAAP”) to FRS 101 as issued by the Financial
Reporting Council and has, in doimng so, applied the requirements of IFRS 1 6-33 and related appendices These
financial statements were prepared in accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as 1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council

The pnior year financial statements were restated for matenal adjustments on adoption of FRS 101 1n the current year
For more information see note 19 The Company has also taken the exemption provided by FRS 101 from the
requirement of [FRS 1 to present an opeming balance sheet

As permutted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the chsclosure exemptions available under that
standard 1n relation to capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets,
presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions

Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the group accounts of Japan Tobacco Inc The group
accounts of Japan Tobacco Inc are available to the public and can be obtained as set out 1n note 17

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis Historical cost 1s generally based on the farr
value of the consideration given 1n exchange for the goods and services

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below
Going concern

The Company 1s a holding company and indirectly owns several subsidianes which deliver both strong profits and
positive cash flows, notably Gallaher Limited 1n the UK and JTI Kazakhstan LLC The directors have considered the
latest business plans of all key subsidianies and this review, together with the expectation that the amounts due to the
a related company will not be recalled wathin one year (as described in note 11), give the directors a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepaning the annual report and accounts

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
1n respect of dividends and interest

Dividend mcome from mvestments 1s recognised when the shareholders’ nights to receive payment have been
established (provided that 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably)

Interest mcome 15 recogmsed when 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably Interest mcome 1s accrued on a tume basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected hfe of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on imtal recognition

11




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in pounds steriing, which 1s the currency of the pnimary economic environment
in which the Company operates (its functional currency)

Transactions mn currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recogmsed at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, assets and hiabiiities that are
denomunated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date

Exchange differences are recognised i profit or loss mn the period 1n which they anse

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments n subsidianes are accounted for at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impairment
Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 1n other years and
1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Company’s habilty for current tax 1s calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and habilities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet habihity method Deferred tax Liabilities are generally recogmsed for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are
not recogmsed if the temporary difference anses from the mmtial recognitton of goodwill or from the imtial
recogmition (other than 1n a business combination) of other assets and habilities 1n a transactron that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 15
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the hability 1s settled or the
asset 15 realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

The measurement of deferred tax lLiabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner n which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting penod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
1ts assets and lhabilities

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets
aganst current tax liabihiies and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the
Company intends to settle 1ts current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

12




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting polictes, which are described 1n note 2, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilies that are not readily
apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estirnates are
recogmsed 1n the period in which the estimate 1s revised 1f the revision affects only that period, or in the penod of the
revision and future periods 1f the revision affects both current and futre periods

The following are the critical judgements that the directors have made 1n the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most sigmficant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Determuning whether the Company’s mvestments 1n subsidianes have been impaired requires estimations of the
mvestments’ values in use The value in use calculations require the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected
to anse from the investments and smitable discount rates 1n order to calculate present values

An mvestment impairment review 15 performed by the Directors at each balance sheet date The valuation models
used 1n the review incorporate the latest financial business plans approved by management and a weighted average
cost of caputal for each key operating subsidiary that reflects 1ts location and operating environment

Events that can indicate a potential reduction 1n the value of one of the Company’s subsidiaries include the payment
of a substantial dividend by an entity, a sigmficant change m the regulatory environment, a key competitor mitiative
and a major business restructunng

The carrymg amount of investments m subsidianes at 31 December 2015 was £1,899,779,000, with an impairment
loss of £318,000,000 recogmsed mn 2015

4. Directors and employees

The remuneration of the directors of the Company duning the year was bome by other companies within the Group
and no specific allocation 1s made n respect of the services of the directors to the Company Accordingly their
emoluments have not been disclosed in these financial statements

The Company has no employees (2014 none), other than the directors

5. Revenue

An analysis of the Company’s revenue, which relates to continuing operations, 1s as follows

Geographical 2015 2014
origin of revenue £000 £000

Dividends recerved and credited to income 1n the year
Gallaher Qverseas (Holdings) Limited UK 395,000 -
JTI (UK) Finance Limited UK - 5,448
Income from ordinary shares in subsidiary undertakings 395,000 5,448
Investment income - preference shares 1n subsidiary undertaking UK 1,823 2,354
Total 396,823 7,802

The Company ts engaged in a single business, namely acting as an investment holding company

13




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

6. Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor’s remuneration of £5,000 1n respect of the statutory audit of the financial statements of the Company has
been borme by Gallaher Limited, a related group company (2014 £5,000) The auditor has received no other

remuneration during the year n respect of services provided to the Company (2014 £ml)

7. Tax
2015 2014
£000 £000
UK Corporation tax
Current tax on profits of the year - -
Current year group relief (1,023) (1,114)
(1,023) (1,114)
Deferred tax {note 10)

Onigination and reversal of uming differences 529 528
Tax credst for the vear (494) (586)
Corporation tax 1s calculated at 20 25% (2014 21 5%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year
The credut for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) in the income statement as follows

2015 2014

£000 £000
Profit/(loss) before tax 67,406 (4,649)
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 13,650 (999)
Tax effect of ncome not taxable in determining taxable profit (80,356) (1,677)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 1n determining taxable profit 66,219 2,130
Impact of changes in tax rates ()] 40)
Tax credit for the year (494) (586)

The corporation tax rate will decrease to 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and then to 18% from 1 Apnil 2020, as enacted in
the Finance Act 2015 A further decrease has been announced to 17% from 1 Apnl 2020, subject to enactment of the

Finance Bill 2016

14




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

8. Investments in subsidiaries

Investments 1n subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 amount to £1,899,779,000 (2014 £2,226,788,000), comprising
mvestments it the ordinary shares of subsidhary undertakings of £1,756,050,000 (2014 £2,074,050,000) and an
mvestment n the preference shares of a subsidiary undertaking of £143,729 000 (2014 £152,738,000)

Ordinary shares in subsidiary undertakings

Provisions
for  Carrying
Cost impairment value
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2015 2,900,100 (826,050) 2,074,050
Liquidation (50) 50 -
Impairment - (318,000} (318,000)
At 31 December 2015 2,900,050 (1,144,000) 1,756,050

Liquidation

A subsidiary, JTI (UK) Finance Lumited (“JTIUKF”), was liquidated 1n May 2015 No cash proceeds were received
by the Company and no gain or loss arose as a result of the liquidation process

Impaiwrments - current year

In December 2015, the Company received a cash dividend of £395,000,000 from a subsichary, Gallaher Overseas
(Holdings) Limited (“GOHL”) The Directors performed an impairment review to assess whether there had been any
mmpact on the carrying value of the Company’s investment in GOHL As a result of this valuation process, which
mvolved reviewing latest management forecasts and net cash/debt balances i key entites under GOHL, the
Company has booked an impairment charge amounting to £318,000,000 against the carrying value of 1ts investment
in GOHL 1n the mmcome statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

No other impairment has been 1dentified as part of the Directors’ review of the carrying value of the Company’s
investment tn 1ts subsidianies at 31 December 2015
Imgmrmen!s - prior year

In November 2014, the Company receiwved a cash dividend of £5,448,000 from a subsidiary, JTIUKF The dividend
was equivalent to the net assets of JTIUKF Following receipt of the dividend, the Company’s investment in JTIUKF
was fully impaired, £50,000 being charged 1n the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2014 JTIUKF
subsequently entered a liquidation process

Preference shares in subsidiary undertaking

Exchange Carrying

Cost adjustments value

£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2015 122,121 30,617 152,738
Exchange adjustments - (9,009) (9,009)
At 31 December 2015 122,121 21,608 143,729

The mvestment 1n Gallaher Limited preference shares comprnises 195 million non-voting vanable rate cumulative
preference shares of €1 each The Company receives dividends based on 3-month Eunbor plus 1 25% per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears On winding up, the preference shareholders rank above ordinary shareholders and are
entitled to €1 per share and any dividends accrued but unpaid 1n respect of their shares

15




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

9. Trade and other receivables
2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - group relief 1,009 1,114
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - other 328 379
1,337 1,493
10.  Deferred tax assets
Movements on deferred tax assets dunng the current and prior reporting pertod are as follows
£000
At 1 January 2014 1,057
Charge to profit or loss (528)
At 1 January 2015 529
Charge to profit or loss (529)
At 31 December 2015 -
There was no unprovided deferred tax at 31 December 2015 (2014 £ml)
11.  Trade and other payables
2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed tc Group undertakings - loans 48,806 269,301
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - accrued nterest 21 117
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - other - 3
48,827 269,421

At 31 December 2015, amounts owed to Group undertakings comprise intercompany borrowings that are due to a
related company, JT International Holding B V. Whalst techmically repayable on demand, the directors do not expect

these borrowings to be repaid within one year

16



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

12 Called up share capital

£000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At | January 2015 657,142,748 ordinary shares of 10p each 65,714
Movements 1n the year -
At 31 December 2015 657,142,748 ordinary shares of 10p each 65,714
The Company has unlimited authonsed share capital
13.  Capital contribution reserve

£000
At 1 January 2015 7,504
Movements 1n the year -
At 31 December 2015 7,504

Following the acquisition of the Company by Japan Tobacco Inc in Apnl 2007, 1,444,926 share options held by
chgible employees under the Savings related share option schemes were settled directly by JT at the acquisition share
price of £11 40 per share. The cash amount received by the Company from the employees 1n respect of these share
1ssues, being the appropriate share option pnice at the date of grant, has been credited to a capital contmbution
reserve

14.  Capital redemption reserve

£000
At 1 January 2015 7,872
Movements 1n the year -
At 31 December 2015 7,872

Upon the buy back of its own shares by the Company, the nominal value of the shares cancelled 1s transferred to a
capital redemption reserve i accordance with Section 170(1) of the Companies Act 1985

15. Retained earnings

£000
At 1 January 2015 1,878,299
Profit for the year 67,900
Other comprehensive income -
Dividends paid (175,000)

At 31 December 2015 1,771,199
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Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

16. Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by paragraph 8()) of FRS 101 not to disclose
transactions with JT Group compames

17.  Controlling party

The Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of JTI (UK) Management Ltd, a company incorporated 1n the UK and
registered i England and Wales

In the opiumon of the directors, the Company's ulimate parent company and ultumate controiling party 1s Japan
Tobacco Inc , a company nc¢orporated in Japan,

Japan Tobacco Inc 1$ the parent undertaking of both the smallest and largest group i1 which the results of the
Company are consohidated Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Japan Tobacco Inc may be obtained
from 2-2-1 Toranomon, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 105-8422, Japan

18.  Direct and indirect subsidiary undertakings

Except where stated otherwise below, Gallaher Group Limuted 1s the beneficial owner of all of the equity share capital
of 1ts subsidianies The subsidiaries at 31 December 20135, ail of which are unlisted, are shown below

%
Ordinary  Country of
Name shares held incorporation  Principal activity
! Gallaher Qverseas (Holdings) 100% ! UK Investment holding company
Limited
2 Benson & Hedges Limited 100% UK Investment holding company
3 Gallaher Overseas Limited 100% UK Investment holding company
4 Gallaher Europe Finance 100% UK Investment holding company
5 Gallaher Limited 100% UK Manufacture, marketing and distribution of
tobacco products m UK
6 JTI Kazakhstan LLC 100% Kazakhstan Manufacture, marketing and distnbution of
tobacco products in Kazakhstan
7 JTI Portugal Unipesscal Lda 100% Portugal Marketing of tobacco products 1n Portugal
¢  Hergall Tobacco Limited 100% Republic of Finance company
Ireland
9 Gallaher Asia Limited 100% Hong Kong Management services
10 Teofani Limited 100% UK Dormant
i1 QGallaher International Limated 100% UK Dormant

! Held directly by Gallaher Group Limuted
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Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

18. Direct and indirect subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Company number  Address of registered office

1,2,3,4,5 10, 11 Members Hill, Brooklands Road, Weybndge, Surrey, KT13 0QU, England

6 Baiserke Village, Hliysky Dhstrict, Almaty Oblast 040704, Kazakhstan

7 Edificio Escritonios do Tejo, Rua do Pole Sul, 2 B, Lote 1 01 1 1, Parque Expo, freguesia de
Santa Mana dos Olivais, Lisbon, Portugal

8 tst Floor, 4-6 Riverwalk, Citywest Business Campus, Dublin 24, Ireland

9 42nd Floor, Tower One, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

19. Transitioning from old UK GAAP to ¥RS 101

Explanation of transition to FRS 101

This 1s the first year that the Company has presented its financial statements under FRS 101 (Financial Reporting
Standard 101) issued by the Financial Reporting Council The following disclosures are required in the year of
transition The last financial statements under a previous GAAP (pre-2015 UK GAAP (“Qld UK GAAP™)) were for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and the date of transition to FRS 101 was therefore 1 Januvary 2014 The Company
has taken the exemption provided by FRS 101 from the requirement of IFRS 1 to present an opening balance sheet

Reconciliation of equity

1 January 31 December

2014 2014

£000 £000

Equity reported under previous UK GAAP 1,963,452 1,959,389
Adjustments to equaty on transition to FRS 101 - -

Equity reported under FRS 101 1,963,452 1,959,389

Reconcihiation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014

Other Total

Income comprehensive comprehensive

statement m¢ome mncome

£000 £000 £000

Total for the financial year under previous UK GAAP (4,063) - (4,063)
Adjustments to comprehensive income on transition to FRS 101 - - -

Total for the financial year under FRS 101 (4,063) - (4,063)
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Unless the context indicates otherwrse references in

this Annual Report 10 “we” “us” “our” “Japan Tobacco™
“JT Group™ or JT* are to Japan Tobaceo Inc andits
consohdated subsidizries Referances o JIL” areto
JTHolding BV our consoldated subsidiary and i1s
consolidated subsidianes References 1o “TableMark”

are to TableMark Haldings Co Ltd TableMark Co Lid
and 11s group compamss References to “Japan Tobacco
Inc " are only to fapan Tobacco Inc and references 1o

“JT Internattanai Helding BV~ are only to JTI Holding

BV Referances to “audit & suparvisory board” are to
“kansayaku kar” {as definad in the Comparves Act of Japan)
that performs certain supervisary functions through its
momitonng and audit activities within the averall schame
of corparate governance pursuant to the Compames Act of
Japan Raferences ta "audit & supanvisory board membaer™
are to a member or mambers af an audit & supervisory
board also refarred to in Japaness as "kansayaku”

{as definad in the Companias Act of Japan)

Forward-looking statements

This rapart contans forward-looking statements Thesa
statements gppear in @ number of places in this report and
includae siataments regarding the intent bshet or currant
and future expectatons of our management with respect 10
our business financial condiion and results of oparatons
in some cases you can identity forward looking statements
by terms such as "may™ “will” “should” “would” “expsct”
“intend” “projact” “plan” "aim™ "seek” "targat”
“anticipate” “belisve™ esumate “predict “potenual”

ot tha negative of these terms o other Similar tarminology
These stataments are not guarantees of future perflormance
and ara Subjact to vanous risks and uncertainiies Actual
rasults performance or achievaments or thase of the
industries in which wa oparate may dilfer matenally from
any future results performance or achwevements exprassad
or implied by these lorward locking statements

In addition thesa forward looking stalements are
nacessanly dependent upon assumprons estumates and
data that may be incorrect or impracise and involve known
and unknown nsks and uncaertainties Forward locking

T regarding o results are particularly
subject to a vanaty of assumptions some or all of which
may not ba reahzed

Risks uncertainbes or other factors that could causa actual
tesults tu ddler matenally from those axpressed in any
torward looking statament include without hmitation

1 decrease in demand for tobacco products in kay
markets,

2 restrictions on promoting marketing packaging
Jabeling and usage of tobacco products in markats
mwhich we operata

3 nCreases in excisé CONSUMPUON OF other taxes on
1abacce praducts in markets in which we operate

4 lingaton around tha world alleqing adversa health
and tinancial effects resulting from or relating to
1obacco products

5 ourability to realize anticipated results of our acquisiion
or other similar investments

B competition in markets in which we operate or into
which we seek (o expand

7 datenoration in 8ConomIC conditions in araas that
matier {0 us

8 economic regulatory and polincal changas such
as nationalization {erronsm wars and cwvil unrest
n countnés in which we operate

9 fluctuations in foreign exchangea rates and tha costs
of raw materals and

i0 catastrophes including natural disasters
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Year-on-year change

+9.94

Year-on-year changs at
canstant excnaﬁge rates

fﬁﬁzﬁfﬁﬁ%(ﬁﬁﬁﬁa’ﬂ)

_~ Highlights

From the third quarter of FY2015,
beverage business has been

classified as discontinued operations
In accordance with IFRS requirements
Consequently, profit {loss) and some
1items from continuing operations and
discontnued operations are presented
separately for the financial results

of FY2015 and FY2014 To facilitate
better understanding of our business
performance in FY2015, we offer

our analysis with a focus on
continuing operations

Results for FY2015 and 2014

Reported basis

In addition, FY2014 was a transitional
penocd for the Company due to the
unification of accounting period
Therefore, for the purpose of fairr
business performance companson,
we are providing figures for the
twelve-month period from January 1,
2014 to December 31, 2014 {Like-for-
Like basis) with regard to all business
segments In continuing operations

Like-for-Like basis
(comparison with Jan-Dec 2014}

Jan  Apr Jul Oet Jan  Apr  Jul Qct
Mar Jumn Sep Dec Mar Jun Sap Dac

Romentic
Intarmational

FY2014 FY2015

Jan  Apr Jul Qo oJgan Apr Jul Oet

Mar  Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun  Sep Dec
Domestic
Intarnational

2014 Jan - Dec Fr2015

In Pinancial Staternents and Notes FY2015 and
FY2014 results are shown on a Reportad basis

Excluding Financial Statements and Notes 2014
results are shown on a January to December
(Like-for-Like) basis

Revenue operating profit adjusted operating profit
from continuing operations and profit attributed 1o
owners of the parent company from continuing and
discontinued operations combined for January to
December 2014 were disclosed in the Annual
Securities Report which was audited
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At a Glance
Our businesses

F¥2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31 2015

The JT Group s a leading international tobacco company unth operations in over 70 countries
Our products are sold in over 120 countries and our internationally recognized brands include
Winston, Camel, MEVIUS and LD.

We are also active in pharmaceutical and processed food businesses and we expect them to
establish a foundation for future profit contribution, as we strive for sustainable growth.

International
Tobacco
Business

Global brand ranking
{excluding China Natronal Tobacco Corp)

\Winsto‘li' #2

MEVIl.!Sg #5

aa v b
tTHE FUTURE

9
LD #13

Source JTlesimate as of 2015
Note Tha brand rankings of Winstan and
Camelinclude sales by Reynolds Amencan Inc

1 Censolidated profit consolidated adjusted operatng
profit from continuing operations
2 S0M Share of market

Pharmaceutical
Business

Today the international tobacco
busingss continues to strengthen

its role as the JT Group's profit growth
enging, generating more than 60% of
the consolidated profit! In the years to
come, we expect it will further increase
its cantribution, enabling the JT Group
10 continue delivering sustainable profit
growth in the mid to long term

QOur brand portfolic 1s competitive
and well-balanced, allowing us to
capture down-traders and up-traders
We have structured our portfolio
into three broad categories including
ready-made cigarettes, fine cut

and emerging products

B Markets whera JTG s SOM?
1s 5% or highar as of 2015

JT Group’s pharmaceutical

business focuses on the research

and development, production, and
sale of prescription pharmaceutical
products its rission is 1o build
world-class, urigue research and
development capabiiities and reinforce
1is market presence through innovative
drugs In the pharmaceutical business,
JT concentrates on research and
development activities mainly on the
fields of glucose and ipid metabolism,
anti-virus, and immune disorders and

JAPAN TOBALLOINC ANNUAL RFPORT 2015

Results for FY2015

Achieved double-digit profit growth
at constant exchange rates while
delivering on committed investments

Key drivers.

* (Global Flagship Brands
volume growth

* Market share gains across
our footprint

* Robust pricing

+ Long-term commitment to
investing into Brand equity,
Emerging Markets and
Emerging Products

s 76,000 dedicated employees

inflammation, while Tort Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd 15 1n charge of manufacturing
as well as sales and promotion in the
domestic market

Qur products mchude Remitch
Capsules (anti-pruntus), Truvada
Combination Tablets (anti-HIV) and
Riona Tablets (hyperphosphatemia)
etc Duning 2015, ‘MITICURE House
Dust Mite Sublingual Tablets” was
launched by Toru Pharmaceutical

in Japan




Revenue breakdown by business sagment

Processed food Others
7 4% / 0 8%

! /

Pharmaceutical International tobacco
3.4% . 58 5%
\ Japanese domestic tobacco
30.1%

Japanese Domestic
Tobacco Business

We are the market leader in Japan,
which 1s one of the largest markets in
the world, with around 60% market
share mainly driven by MEVIUS

Qur Japanese domestic tobacco
business continues to be a significant
profit contributor to the JT Group,
generating about 40% of our
consolidated profit’

Composrttion of JT SOM? as of 2015

MEVIUS

Management

001 Financial Highlights

002 At a Glance

004 Conselidated Five-yenr
Financial Summary

008 Message from the
Chairman and CEQ

003 CEO Business Raview

010 Management Principle,
Strategic Framework and
Resource Allocation

012 Business Plan 2016

013 Role and Prierity of
Each Business

014 Performance Mcecasures

During 2015, we have further
enhanced our brand portfolio through
the brand intsgration of Caster and
Cabin into Winston and the acquisition
of Natural Amernican Spint business
outside the United States {completed
In January 2016}

Results for FY2015:
Achieved 6 4% year-on-year
profit growth

Winston

Seven Stars

Pianissimao

B Peace
Hope

B OQOthers

Processed Food
Business

Remain resilient in the
context of intensified
competition

Plsase be reminded that this secuon 1s intendad 10 explan the business operatons af T to INvesiors.
not to promote sales of tobacco products to encourags smoking by consurmers

With Group company TableMark Co,
Lid taking a centrat role, the processed
food business I1s primarily engaged

In business concerning frozen and
ambient processed food, ma:nly staple
food products such as frozen noodles,
frozen rice, packed rice and frozen
baked bread, and seasonings including
yeast extracts and oyster sauce

We have solidified 11s No 3 position

in the frozen food industry with several
top-selling products within respective
categories, such as frozen Udon
noodles and frozen Okonomiyaki
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Consolidated Five-Year Financial Summary
Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

In accordance with IFRS requirements, beverage business had been classified as discontinued operations from the third
quarter of FY2015 due to the withdrawal from this business in 2015 Consequently, profit {loss) and some items from
contnuing operations and discontinued gperations are presented separately for the financial results of FY2015 and FY2014

In addition, due to the change in accounting period, FY2014 was a transitional penod, covering nine months from Apnl 1,
2014 1o December 31, 2014 for Japanese domestic business The same change in accounting period 1s apphed to the
Company’s consolidated subsidiaries whose current closing date was other than December 31 For International tobacco
business and rts subsidiaries, accounting period remains unchanged from January 1 to December 31, 2014 (Reported basis)

For the purpose of fair business performance comparison, we are providing figures for the twelve-month period from
January 1 to December 31, 2014 {Like-for-Like basis) wrth regard to all business segments in continuing operations

Biihons of yen

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 2014 FY2015
(IFRS) {IFRS) (IFAS) {Jan-Dec) {IFRS)
For the year Continuing Operations
Revenue (Note 1) 20338 21202 23998 22692  2,2529
International Tohacco 966 3 10107 12700 13280 1,317 2
Japanese Domesuc Tobacco 646 2 6871 7103 6874 6773
Pharmaceuucal 474 532 64 4 658 756
Food 3894 - - - -
Beverage 1888 1855 1845 - -
Processed Food 1707 1687 156 9 1612 1658
Others 148 150 136 169 170
Core revenue {Note 2}
International Tobacco 8946 9431 1,2007 12582 1,252 5
Japanese Domestic Tobacco 6119 654 ¢ 676 2 6498 642 2
Operating profit (Note 3} 45692 5322 648 3 5726 565 2
International Tobacco 2524 2894 3is 4 3795 346 9
Japanese Dc;mestlc Tobacco 2093 241 3 2581 18156 2492
Pharmaceuucal (135 (16 2} Qo (73} 23
Food 20 - - - -
Beverage 45 23 21 - -
Processed Food {2 5 58 02 (12 32
Others 90 22 50 202 318
Adjusted EBITDA/Adjustad Operating Profit (Note 3} 5771 6220 6418 6610 6267
International Tobacco 3148 3432 4108 4471 3944
Japanese Domestic Tobacco 2623 2813 2577 2387 2541
Pharmaceutical (100} (127) 1t R0)] 73) 23)
Food 200 - - - -
Beverage 46 24 21 - -
Processed Food 54 74 06 14 27
Others (98} 96) 116 2) (18 9) (22 2)
Depreciation and amortization (Nots 3} 1188 1165 1329 i286 1331
Profit (attnbutable to owners of the parent company) (Note 4) 3209 3436 4280 3914 3985
Free cash flow (FCF) (Note 5) 4513 3160 2126 4564 3867

* Results from ¢ontinuing operations and discontinued eperatons cominnad for both FY2015 and Jan-Dec 2014
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FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31 2015

Billans of yan
Consohidated FY201% Fyz012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
{Continuing and discontinued operations combined) (FRS) {IFRS) IFRS) [IFRS) {IFRS)
At year-end
Assets 36670 38526 46168 47047 4,558 2

Interest-beanng debts {Note 6)

5024 3272 3759 2282 2553

Liabilities 1,952 4 19601 20207 2,0822 2,0367
Equity 1,714 6 18924 25961 28225 25215
Amounts per share (in yen)

Diluted EPS (Notes 7/8) 168 44 18098 23535 189 56 27037
Book value per share (attnbutable to owners of the parent) (Note 8) 85809 993 98 1,378 57 i,39574 1,369 06
Drnadend per share {Note 8) 50 68 96 100 118
Dwvidend payout ratio (Note 9) 297% 376% 408% 501% 53 2%~

"* Payout ratio for F¥2015 is based cn basic EPS from continuing operations

Major Financial Ratios (Consolidated)

Return on Equity {(ROE) {%) {Note 10) Return on Aasets (RQA) (%) (Note 11}

20 3% 20 0% 19 5%

12.1%

2,605.6 § 2,536.% L aN:] 3,667.0 § 3.852.6 § 4,616.8 4,558 2

Fr2011 Fy2012 FY2013  FY2014  FY2015 FY2011 FY2012  FY2013 FY2014  FY2015
8 Equity attnibutabla to ownars of the B Assets (Bilhons of yen)
parent company (Bilhons of yen) — Return on Assets

— Returrn on Equity

Notas
Excluding tabacco excisa taxes and ravenus fram agent transacipns
2 Excluding revenue from distnbution businass of imported tebacco amaong others
n the Japanese domesiic tobacco business 1n addion to the disinbuton pnvate
label contract manufagiunng and other peripheral businesses in the Intamauonal
tokacco business
(Before FY2012] Adjusted EBITDA = Op vg profit + depi on and amortizalion
+ adjustad 1tems {income and costs)*
*adjusted 1zams (income and costs) = impairment losses on goodwill £ rasttuctunng
income and costs & others
{Since FY2013) Adjusted aoperating profit = Oparating profit + amortization cost
of acquired intangibles + adjusted ems (income and costs)*
*adjusted itams (income and costs) = imparment losses an goodwill + restructunng
wCome and costs x others
4 Under IFAS profit 1s presented bafore deducting non-controlling interests

For comparisan wa show the profit attnbutable to the owners of the

parent company

w

wm

FCF = [cash flows from operaling actmvites + cash {lows fram investing activities)

exciuding the following tems.

From “cash flows from operating actvitias  In arests and dividends received and thesr

1ax affect/interest paid and its tax effact

Fram “cash flows trom invastng actvities™ Purchase of securines/oroceads fram sale

and redempuicn of secunues/paymeants into umas deposits/Proceeds from withdrawal of

ume deposits/athars (but not businass mlated iInvesiment sacunnas which are included

in the nvestment secunities itam)

Including lease obligation

7 Based on profit (atinbutable to owners of tha parent company)

A 200-lor one share sphtis done effective as of July 1 2012

Calcutaied on the assumpuon that this share split was conducied at tha beginning

of FY2011 {Apnl 1 2011)

9 Based on profit (aitributabie to owners of the parent company}

10 Return on squity {atinbutable to awners of the parent company}

11 ROA=(Profit bafore income 1axas)/Total assels [average of baginning and ending balance
of the pencd]

12 Financial data disclosed harein are basically rounded

o
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Yasutake Tango
Chairman of the Board

® Message
from the
Chairman

& CEO

A fFo -

Mitsuomi Koizumi
President and CEQ and
Representative Director

Maintaining Strong Profit Growth
We are very pleased to mnform you that the JT Group had
another successful year of strong business performance

With the prolonged economic stagnation, huge foreign
exchange volatiity and geopolucal nsks, 2015 presented
uncertain future prospects, not only for the tobacco
industry, but also for the global economy The business
environment in 2015 was extremely difficult for the

JT Group In particular, as we operate our business on

a global scale, the effect of foreign exchange volatility
was substantial and required close attention

2015 also marked a major turning point for JT Group

We restructured the sales and manufacturing cperations
of the Japanese domestic tobacco business Moreover,
we decided to withdraw from the beverage business, a
business which we had operated for more than 20 years
The withdrawal from thrs business was completed as
scheduled at the end of 2015 We are most grateful for
many years of support extended to this business
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Meanwhile, our business fundamentals continued to be
robust Adjusted operating profit dechined by approximately
5%, affected by the aforementioned foreign exchange
effect However, excluding the unfavorable foreign
exchange impact, we successfully achieved profit

growth of approximately 10%

In the international tobacco business, our profit growth
driver, we accelerated our mvestment In emerging products
and expanded our geographical footprint At the same time,
we continued to invest in our brand equity Importantly in
2015, we are proud to achieve increase in share of market

in most of our key markets as well as double-digit profit
growth at constant currency, including a significant increase
In business Investment

Moreover, we acquired non-US business of Natural
Amencan Spint [acquisition was completed in January
2016) as an initiative to achieve sustainable profit growth
for the tobacco business in the mid- to long-term [n
particular, this brand has been achieving cutstanding
growth in Japan, our home market \We believe this
acquisition will consolidate our position in the prestige
segment, as INCreasing our presence in this price segment
had been an ongoing challenge At the same time, it will
allow us 1o further strengthen our brand portfolio

Shareholder Return — a New Phase

in accordance with the robust business performance,

we continued to enhance our shareholder return, raising
dividend per share As a resulit, our dividend payout ratio
exceeded 50% based on profit from continuing operations
We trust therefore that we have achieved our goal of
reaching a competitive level of payout ratio, comparable

to our global peers in the FMCG sector In 2015, we
implemented a share repurchase program of 100 billon yen
to ensure that we can meet our mud-term target rate of EPS
growth at constant currency

Our policy s to seek a balance between investment

in our business for sustainable future profit growth and
shareholder return While maintaining a solid balance shest
that would allow us to respond to changes in our operating
environment, we will strive to improve shareholder return
based on mid- to long-term profit growth outlook

Our aim 1s to deliver sustainable and stable increase of
dividend per share As for share buyback, we will consider
the mid term outlook for the Group’s operating environment
and financial position, In order to determine If buybacks
should be implemented

Pursuit of the 45 Model

Our management pninciple 1s based on the 4S5 model, under
which we balance the interests of consumers, shareholders,
employees and wider society We strive 1o fulfill our
responstbilities to them, and at the same time, we am

to exceed their expectations

Corporate governance 1s a top prionty for the management
and a matter we have been striving to reinforce Recently,
we established our corporate governance policy n order to
clarify our thoughts on the matter Corporate governance
has become increasingly important in recent years in
building relationships of trust between the capital market
and the corporate community We will continue to strengthen
our nitiatives on corporate governance, while taking into
account the opinions of our stakehoiders

Toward Further Growth

In 2015, we succeeded in achieving strong profit growth
while making significant investments in terms of quantity
and quality This is precisely the result of investment in our
business, something that we have pursued in the past
based on the belef that there will be no growth without
investment We are confident that our most recent
investment n our business and investment that we will

be making in 2016 and beyond, will contribute to our
profit growth in the mid- to long-term

We are in times of uncertainty — 1t s difficult to make even

a three- or five-year forecast Nevertheless, we pledge not
to merely pursue short-term results, and we will always look
at mid- to long-term perspective and strive for sustainable
profit growth
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CEO

Business
Review

Mitsuomi Koizum

7
NN

We achieved robust profit growth again
in 2015. And we continue pursuing
@ pusiness investments in order to achieve

Juture profit growth. 7
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Maintaining mid to high single-digit profit growth
When we changed our business plan to an annual rolling
plan over a three-year period, we set ourselves a goal t©
achieve mid to high single-digit adjusted operating profit
growth at constant currency over the mid- to long-term
Since then, every year, we have exceeded this profit
growth target

In 2015, we achieved consalidated adjusted operating profit
growth of approximately 10% excluding unfavorable foreign
exchange effect More importantly, both the domestic
Japanese and international tobacco businesses achieved
robust results

Business results by segment

In the international tobacco business, amid unstable
macroeconomic conditions, industry size continued to
decline due to tighter regulations and excise tax hikes
Nevertheless, JTI's shipment volume declined only 1%,
dnven by GFB, whuch grew strongly by 4 3% Particularly
In Europe where shipment volume had been soft, JTI
enjoyed outstanding results In ltaly, France, and Spain,
JTI grew market share as well as shipment volume, while
in the UK, we achieved the long-desired leadership position
in market share

As pricing continued to act as the driver in 2015, adjusted
operating profit excluding unfavorable foreign exchange
effect grew 10 8% year-on-year

As | communtcated to our stakeholders at the beginning
of 2015, | defined 2015 as a year of investment, mainly for
the tobaceco business Accordingly, we made sigmificant
investment In our business in terms of both quantity and
quality We steadily made mvestments not only in brand
equity enhancement but also in emerging products angd
expanded our geggraphical foctprint

While making investments for the future, we strengthened
our cost competitiveness by prepanng for the restructuring
of European manufacturing operations and by optimizing
production in Russia

We are proud of the double-digit profit growth as we made
significant investment in our business at the same time, In
terms of both quanuity and quality

The Japanese domestic tobacco business produced strong
resuits, amid intensifying competition with our competitors
in a specific price segment Industry volume decline was
mederate in comparison 1o our intial forecast

From 2015 and into 2016, we have taken several significant
initiatives to enhance our brand portfolio for further growth
in the future For example, Cabin and Caster, both brands
which have long-standing loyal consumers, were Integrated
into the Winston brand Another iniative undertaken 1s the
acguisition of non-US business of Natural American Spirit

The brand enjoys a strong presence in the prestige
segment, a segment which has been an ongoing challenge
to JT Price increase of MEVIUS, another mitiative, was
taken in order to enhance its brand equity further Rather
than pursuing short-term results, all of these initiatives
aim to enhance profit generating ability of the Japanese
domestic tobacco business in mid- to long-term, in order
to achieve mud to high single-digit profit growth for our
tobacco business, international and Japanese domestic
taken together We will stnive to maximize the effect of
these initiatives

As for the pharmaceutical and processed food businesses,
we are making steady progress In the pharmaceutical
business, royalty revenues from Stribild and Mekinist are
growing favorably In the processed food business, we
achieved profit growth while coping with the structural
problem of continucusly high raw materna! prices caused
by weak yen and delivered strong top-line performance

All businesses to contribute to profit growth
Economic recovery has been slow and the operating
environment 1s unlkely to Improve any time soon In
addition, foreign exchange rates are not moving in favor

of our business Despite these difficult circumstances, the
JT Group's fundamentals continue to be strong We believe
this is a result of continued investment in our business — we
do this from a mud- to long-term perspective and we do not
merely pursue short-term results For 2016, we expect to
deliver growth of around 7% in consolidated adjusted
operating profit at constant currency while continuing

to enhance investments

In addition, 2016 will be the first year when all of our
businesses are forecast to post profits and contrnbute

to the Group’s profit growth Importantly, we expect the
pharmaceutical business to contribute to profit growth,

not only in 2016 but also in 2017 and beyond We have built
a business foundation that enables R&D investments for
future profit growth, as we forecast an increase 1n royalty
revenue and top-line growth — an achievement from making
continuous Investment from mid- to long-term perspective

We expect that the surrounding environment will change
constantly and at an increasing pace Existing ways of
doing business or treasuring past results may not lead 10
stabifity or sustainability, but could mean regression or
taking step backwards We need to react flexibly to
changes and at umes make bold decisions, in order to
achieve sustiainable profit growth in the mid- to long-term

Being diverse, aniicipate changes and proactively pursue
results All of these gualities are built into the JT Group’s
DNA We are confident of achieving sustainable profit
growth m the mid- to long-term by making the most of
these qualities
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Management Principle, Strategic Framework

and Resource Allocation

Management Principle

The “4S” model, our management principle,
15 the most shared value among JT Group
employees across businesses and countries.

e®

The “45" model — we will balance the interests of
consumers, shareholders, employees and wider society,
and fulfill our responsibilities towards them, aiming to
exceed their expectations

Strategic Framework

The "45" model 1s JT Group's core competency

Our decision-making has been and will continue to be based
on this management principle To balance the interests of
and fulfill responsibilities towards stakehoiders and exceed
their expectations,

* For our consumers, we will offer superior products which
meet or even go beyond their evolving needs To achieve
that, we will make the most of JT Group’s diversity to
enhance our capacity In innovation

* For our shareholders, we intend to strike an optimal
balance between profit growth and shareholder returns
This means that we will enhance our shareholder returns
based on our profit growth outlock in the mid- to
long-term

* For our employees, we will further evolve to become
an attractive and respected company so that employees
feel proud to be a part of it For that, we will highly value
the employees with a strong sense of commitment to
deliverables and properly reward therr accomplishments

* The growth of the JT Group 1s dependent on sustainability
of society We will continue to contribute to society and
in doing so enhance our company value

Our track record prroves that our strategy s right, and we believe that 1t wnll continue to underfnn

the strong performance of the JT Group.

Quality
top-line growth

Competitive
cost base

Robust business
foundation

Amaong the strategic pillars, the JT Group places a particular emphasis
on quality top-ine growth, which is indispensable for sustainable growth
We aim 1o grow top-fine by consistently offening innovative products

We continue to improve our ¢ost base, while not compromising
on investiments for future susiainable growth

Business environment surrounding the JT Group has been changing
fast In order to respond to and even take advantage of the changes,
we encourage each employee and organization to challenge the status
quo for continuous iMprovement
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Resource Allocation

Furst, we grow profit through business investment. Then, use this profit to return cash

to our shareholders.

Business investment and capital policy

The JT Group 1s a growth company Investing for both
external and organic growth, we historically increased
profit, and eventually corporate value We believe that
copportunities exist to expand the earnings base especially
for tobacco business Qur investment will mainly focus
on this core business to fuel its growth As we expect
pharmaceutical and processed food businesses to
contribute to the Group profit in the future, we will
allocate our funds to best utilize existing assets and
improve their profitability

Under the Japan Tobacco Inc law, we are subject to the
restnction In 1ssuing new shares Given the circumstance,
we plan to maintain a strong balance sheet for debt
financing and not to cancet treasury stock With sufficient
debt capacity, we can consider share repurchase when
the Government, who holds one-third of our outstanding
shares, releases them, in whole or in part, In the future

Shareholder Return

We achieved our previous target for shareholder returns
and our approach towards shareholder return moves on
to a new phase

We believe that maintaining a solid balance sheet s
essential for the JT Group as it will provide us the ground
to continue pursuing aggressively business investment
opportunities and cope with any adversity ansing out of
the volatile environment At the same time, as we already
mentioned, we intend to strike an optimal balance between
profit growth and shareholder returns This means that we
will enhance our shareholder returns based on our profit
growth outlook in the mid-to long-term In particular, we
will deliver sustainable and steady increase of dividend

per share Dwidend payout ratio will no longer be set

as our management target although it will be taken into
consideration when decide the dividend amounts As for
share buy-back, we will consider nt after scrutinizing the
mid- to long-term expectations on the Company’s business
environment as well as financial achievernents and position,
among other factors

We will continue to monitor the trend amongst the
global FMCG companies that have a stakeholder model
similar to our 4S5 model and that have achieved strong
business growth

Dimwdend per share (IPY)

128

118
| Ilo. I

Fy2011 Fr2012 FY2013 Fr2014 Fy2015 FY2016
Forecast
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Business Plan 2016

The JT Group’s Business Plan covers a three-year period, and 1s

rolled over annually to reflect the changes in our business environment
wncluding economacs, geopolitics and competition. By leveraging and
enhancing our ability to adapt to changes, we will achieve sustainable

profit growth.

Group profit target:

* Annual average growth rate of adjusted operating profit at constant
currency over mid- to long-term
- Mid to hugh single-digit

Shareholder return policy:
* Aim to enhance shareholder returns considering the Company's
mid- to long-term profit growth trend, while maintaining a sohd
balance sheet
- Deliver consistent dividend per share growth
- Consider implermenting share buy-back, which takes into

account the Company’s mid-term operating environment
and financial outlook

- Continue to closely monitor shareholder returns of global

FMCG companies”

* Asits financial pohcy the Company maintains strong hnancai base that secures stabiity in case
af changes in business earvironment such as acanomic crises and flexibility enabling expeditious
responsas 1o businass invasiment opporiumies

** The Company monitors global FMCG companias which have a stakeholder modal similar 1o our

45"model and have realized strong business growth

Adjusted Operating Profit (JPY BN}

Forecast for FY2016
* Adjusted operating profit 1s forecast

o grow more than 7% at constant
currency Internatronal tobacco
business, the profit growth engine,
Is expected to grow its currency
neutral adjusted operating profit
by 9% driven by top-line Japanese
domestic tobacco business Is
projected to increase adjusted
operating profit at approximately 3%
mainly through cost optimization
On a reported basis, adjusted
operating profit is forecast to decline
103% As for the impact of local
currencies’ movements against the
dollar, we expect another substantial
negative impact in 2016 Russian
ruble and all other major currencies
are forecasted to be weaker against
the dollar Furthermore, the yen's
appreciatton will cause an unfavorable
impact on our financial resuits
Based on the shargholder return
policy, we offer annual dividend
per share of 128 yen, representing
an 8 5% increase year-on-ygar

Dividend per share (JPY)

012

6267

Fy2015

6730

Business  FY2018
momentum  Forecast
at current
currency

5620

Local JPYwvs USD FY2016
currency FXeffects Forecast
vs USD
FX effects

JAPANTOBALCO INU ANNUAL RFPORY 2015

128

FY2015 FY20186
Forecast




Role and Priority of Each Business

In view of Business Plan 2016, the role and prionity
of each business in the mud- to long-term are as follows.

Tobacco Business

Grow ad)justed operating profit at mid to high single-digrt rate per annum over the
mid- to long-term as the core business and profit growth engine of the JT Group

International Tobacco Japanese Domestic
Business = @2 B Tobacco Business

Continue to strengthen 1ts role as p22 Maintam 1ts highly competitive p30
the group’s profit growth enging platform of profitability

+ Prioritize quality top-line growth - Strengthen our brand equity with focus on core brands
-~ Grow or maintain market share in existing key markets

« Strengthen business foundation - Broaden geographical earnings base
- Davelop emergin‘_g_ products categories

"Continue to improve cost base

Processed Food
Business g

Aim to make stable profit contribution to p34 Achieve operating profit margin on par p38
the JT Group through R&D promotion for with iIndustry average, aiming to make
the next generation of strategic compounds profit contribution to the JT Group

and value maximizatuon of each product
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Performance Measures

FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31 2015

In our Business Plan 2016, target 1s set for adjusted
Operating Profit growth rate at constant exchange rates.
Whale 1t 1s a mad- to long-term target, we also monator
the performance measures annually.

Tobacco sales volume GFB shipment volume

Intemational (BnU} Japanese domest GFB shipment volume (BnlJ)

tobacco (BnU)

I

116.5 112.4 +109.2

l

2013 2014 FY2015
Jan-Dec  Jan-Daec

267.5 2622

2014 2013 2014 2015

QR © TAONS
F9RBY 09

4 39,

to 273.68rU

Shipment volume of GFBs,
namely Winston, Camel, MEVIUS,
LD, B&H, Sitk Cut, Glamour and
Sobranie in the international
tehacco husiness.

Revenue

Revenue (JPY BN)

. In our strategic framework to achieve adjusted Operating

Profit growth, the JT Group places a particular emphasis
on “quality top-line growth"”, while, at the same time,
focusing on building a “competitive cost base” and 237220 2.259.2 4 2.252.9
“robust business foundation”.

In line with our strategic emphasis, the measures to review 2013 2014 FY2015
an-Leac an-

our business performance are skewed towards top-line

related indicators. As for shareholder return, we will deliver 03% 10

sustainable and steady increase of dividend per share. +2’ 2 52 . 9Bn

Revenue on a consolidated basis
which, for the avoidance of doubt,
excludes excise and other similar
taxes, as well as sales from
fransactions in which the

JT Group acts as an agent

Noie For both Jan Dec 2014 and FY2015 the figures
wera tha results from continuing oparatans only
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Core revenue
Japanese domestic tobacco (JPY BN)

Intemational tobacco {US$ MM)

12,273 11,911 649.8

Business 2015 at 2013 2014 FY2015
constant Jan-Dec  Jan-Dac

currancy

1770 642 . 281’1

+7. O% For the international tobacco business,

at constant exchange US dollar-based core revenue includes

rats to US$12,738 MM revenue from waterpipe tabacco
products and emerging products, but
excludes revenues from distribution,
contract manufacturing and other
peripheral businesses.

For the Japanese domestic
tobacco business, core revenue
excludes revenue from distribution
of imported tobacco in Japan,
among cthers.

Adjusted Operating Profit Dividend per share
Dividend per share (JPY)

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Adjusted Operating Profit (JPY BN}

2013 2014 Bygsiness FY2015 Fx
Jan-Dec Jan-Dec at constant
curmancy

+18vyento 1].8 €1l
y

The sum of intenm and year-end
dividends per share, the record
dates of which fall in the relevant
fiscal year

S L - g

Note For both Jan Dec 2014 and FY2015 the figures were the resulis from continuing oparations anly
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OpRgerations
and Analysis

2015 Awards
and recognition

e

We have been selected as a member of the Dow Jones Sustainability Asia/
Pacific Index (www sustainability-indices com) for two consecutive years since
2014 And we are also a member of the Morningstar Socially Responsible
investment Index (MS-SRI) (www morningstar co jp/sn, m Japanese)

For the information regarding our approach to sustainability, please refer to
page 44 'JT Group and Sustainability’

MEMBER OF

Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices
'n Collabaration with RobecoSAM «®
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Industry Overview
Tobacco Business

Tobacco industry

Market dynamics

There are many types of tobacco
products avallable in today's
marketplace Cigarettes remain the
most popular chowce for consumers,
while fine-cut, cigars, pipe tobacco,
snuff, chewing tobacco and water-
pipe tobacco continue to draw
consumers’ interest, with some

of these product categories
increasing their volumes worldwide

In addruion, the next generation of
emerging products such as electronic
cigarettes (e-cigarettes) has become
widely popular E-cigareties use
vaporized liqund solutions often
containing nicotine, and vapor i1s
inhaled to offer a different expenence
Sales volume of e-cigarettes has been
growing at a fast rate in markets such
asthe US or Europe As e-cigareties
do not use tobacco leaf, they are often
not regulated or taxed as tobacco
products We would, however, expect
regulation or taxation of e-cigarettes
to be tightened over the coming years

Another type of emerging products
referred to as ‘Tobacco-vapor’ or
‘Heat-not-Burn’ products, have
become avatlable to consumers
Unlike e-cigarettes, Tobacco-vapor
products often use tobacco leaf and
are therefore taxed and regulated as
cigarette products Although market
size for e-cigarettes or Tobacco-vapor
1s still small, further mnovation and
praduct offerings are anticipated,

as market players take keen interest
in this new growing category

Approximately 5 7 tnllion cigarettes are
consumed around the world China s
by far the largest market, accounting
for over 40% of global consumption,
but it 1s almost exclusively operated

by a state monopoly Russia, the US,
Indonasia and Japan are the next four
largest markets, according to a survey
conducted for 2014

In general, the market dynamitcs are
distncuvely different between mature
and emerging markets In mature
markets, industry volume tends to

Industry data will be updated on the JT website around July 2016.

Top market players

Shara of markst (%}

2010 201 2012 2013 2014
Philip Morns International Inc 246 251 257 57 262
British Amercan Tobacco Plc 187 181 190 191 192
Japan Tabaceo Inc 163 156 160 163 160
Imperral Tobacco Group Plc * 87 86 85 85 85

Source JT estimare {2014 data as of July 2015} ** Company name changed to Impenal Brands as of February 2018

Excluding China Nanonal Tobacco Corp (CNTC)

Top 10 countries by volume

Billron umits
Country 2010 201 2012 2013 2014
China 23167 24062 24616 24905 25429
Russia 3831 3751 3708 3463 3165
us 3091 3006 2927 2795 2702
Indonesia 1816 1918 2031 2212 2389
Japan 2179 1959 1974 1841 1875
India 986 1028 1021 1009 959
Turkey 934 912 953 97 947
South Korea 905 889 893 885 Bg5
Philippines 1014 974 1025 867 827
Germany 839 B45 834 736 804

Source JT estimate (2014 data as of July 2015)
Excluding China Natvonal Tobacco Corp [CNTC)
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decline reflecting vanious factors
such as limited economic growth, tax
Increases, tightening regulations, and
demographic changes, among others
In addition, down-trading 15 prevalent
in these markets Consumers are
inclined to seek more value as they
feel tobacco products become less
affordable in the context of imited
growth of disposable income
Recently, these trends have been
observed in EU countnes, resulting in
Industry contraction and down-trading
N many markets

In emerging markets, on the other
hand, total consumption tends to
increase, driven by population

growth and economic development,
pariicularly in Asia, the Middle East
and Africa As their disposable income
increases, consurners look for qualty
and trade up to products in higher
price bands

Overall, when we exclude China,
global industry volume has been
slightly decreasing according to a
survey conducted for 2014° However,
moere importantly, industry value
continues to grow even n the current
difficult operating environment, mainly
driven by price increases This is a sign
of the resilence of the industry These
trends - dechine in volume and
Increase In value — are expected

to continue In the years ahead

* Source JT estimate (2014 data as of July 2015)
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Industry overview confinued

Tobacco Business

Regulations

The regulatory environment continues
10 be maore restrictive for the tobacco
industry Restrictions on promotons
and advertisements are the most
common around the world An
increasing number of markets

are introducing bans on smoking

N public places and promoting
larger health warnings on product
packaging, in some cases with
pictonial health warnings

Recent regulations are focusing more
on the product riself Plain packaging
has been introduced in some markets
and furthermore, regulators are
becoming more aggressive by
restncting ingredients and ermissions,
following the guidelines on these
attributes proposed by the Framework
Convention on Tobacco Control

In Europe, the European Tobacco
Product Directive adopted extended
health warnings, minimum packaging
requirements or restrictions on the use
of additives, among others We expect
o see EU member states complying
with these restrictions by May 2017
These moves to commoditize
tobacco products will underrmine

farr competition among tobacco
manufacturers trying to meet
increasingly diverse consurmer
preferences Worse, they could

result in an undesired increase

in dhcit trade, as commoditized
products with less unigueness

are easter to counterfert and more
difficult to detect when smuggled

Industry data will be updated on the JT wehbsite around July 2016

Excise taxes were ra|sed N various
markets dunng the past year, and

In general, tax increases are passed
onto prices However, repeated tax
INncreases In a short period of time,

or steep tax increases, could lead to

a dechine in industry volume Often, tax
increases comcide with an increase In
ilicit trade, which could in turn affect
our business

Competition

Excluding China, two-thirds of world
industry volume 1s produced by four
mayor global tobacco companies,
namely Philip Merris International Inc,
British American Tobacco Plc, Japan
Tobacco Inc and Impenal Tobacco
Group Plc ™ The competiion within the
industry 15 intense and, as consumers’
needs and preferences continue to
diversify, a strong portfolio with
established brands i1s increasingly
important to support market share
gains Therefore, major global
companies are focusing on brand
equity enhancement to strengthen
theirr brand portfolios by introducing
innovative products In addition to the
pursuil of organic growth, M&A 1s an
effective way to supplement growth
opportunities i this industry

* Source JT estimate {2014 data as of July 2015) The
company name of Impenal Tobacco Group Plc was
changed 10 Impanal Brands Ple as of February 2016

Top brands

Bilion units
Brand Company 2010 20m 2012 2013 2014
Mariboro ¢ Philip Mornis International Inc » Altna Group Inc 414 4 4108 414 1 3859 3914
Winston * Japan Tobacce Inc * Reynolds American tnc 1224 1224 1302 1359 1279
Pall Mall * British Amencan Tobacco Plc  » Reynolds Amencan Inc 994 e 1016 1048 1001
LEM * Philip Marris International Inc 847 873 881 885 890
Mevius = tapan Tobacco Inc 9652 gi2 844 837 791
Camel & Japan Tebacco Inc * Reynolds Amencan In¢ 643 606 603 608 66 2
Gudang Garam e Gudang Garam Thk PT 523 537 578 605 643
Kent * Bnush American Tebacco Plc 570 602 636 618 60 2
Gold Hake * |TC Ltd * Brittsh American Tobacco Plc 592 590 619 606 529
Dunhill * British Amenican Toebacco Plc 480 471 470 515 528

Source JT esumate (2014 data as of July 2615}
Excluding China National Tobacco Corp [CNTC)

018
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Operations & Analysis

Pharmaceutical Business

Market dynamics

The global pharmaceutical market
continues to grow, reaching sales
of approximately US$1,057 2 billion
in 2014 according to IMS Health

'n emerging countries, demand for
modern medicine is raprdly growing
due to mulupie factors mcluding
growing consclousness of health,
increase In population, and
development of public healthcare
systems, among others Mature
rmarkets also see a value increase,
though the pace of growth 1s moderate

Worldwide Pharmacautical Market (USD EN)

H Bl EEERE 1,057.2

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Source 2015 IMS Health

Facing a rapidly aging society and

a fiscal deficn, the governments in
these markets try to contain healthcare
costs through wider promotion of
generic drugs

In addrtion, patents of commercially
successful drugs have been expinng
during recent years, which accelerates
the global trend of industry
consolidation

. Mature markets hold majority of share
it global pharmaceutical markets
North Amertca 1s the largest market
and accounts for 38% of the worldwide
market, followed by Europe and Japan,
representing 25% and 8%, respectvely

2014 Regional Composition

North Amenca 38 0%
Europe 25 3%

China 10.3%

Japan 8 3%

Others 18 1%

Source 2015 IM$S Heatth

In Japan, the main market for our
pharmaceutical business, prescription
drugs comprise the magonity of the
market in terms of net sales The
Japanese generic drug market for
prescription drugs 15 still small
compared with that in the U S

and Europe However, it has been
expanding more recently due in part
to government promotion of genenc
drugs in order to control medical
care expenses

In Japan, the government determines
the price of pharmaceutical products
with revisions being made every two
years In April 2014, the latest round of
price revisions led to an industry-wide
reduction of drug prices by 5 6%

on average excluding consumption
tax ncrease

Competition

The pharmaceutical industry 1s
highly competitive worldwide Qur
pharmaceutical business focuses
on bullding a R&D-led operatronal
platform Based on this platform,
original compounds are developed
and marketed as leading products
in major global markets

As such, we face competition

with Japanese and multinational
pharmaceutical companies These
companies are also focused on therr
research and development pipelines

JAPAN TOBALLO INC ANNUAL RFPORT 2015
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Industry overview conlinued

Processed Food Business

Japanese Frozen Food Market (JPY BN}

$32.8 = £99.2 983 7

2010 20m 2012 2013 2014

2014 Share of Market by
Frozen Food Manufacture

Nichiret 22 1%
Maruha Nichiro 19 6%
Table Mark 11 8%
Annomoto 11 0%
Nissui 8 1%

Others 27 4%

%

Source The Mikkel Business Daily

020

Market dynamics

JT's processed food business Is
operated through our subsidiary
TableMark Co, Lid (TableMark)
which plays a central role TableMark
focuses on frozen food products, such
as frozen noodles, frozen rice and
bread, ambient processed foed
represented by packed-cooked rice,
seasoning business utifizing our yeast
technology, and bakery business

The size of the Japanese frozen food
market in 2014 on a consumption basis
including imports was ¥983 7 billon,
up 0 7% year-on-year (Source Japan
Frozen Food Association)

After a consumption tax hike, the
domestic production of frozen food
was decreased This was due to
declining consumption amount and
consumption basts of Japanese
domestic manufacture caused by
stagnation of household consumption

JAPAN 1OBACCO INC ANNUAI RFPORT 2015

For the Japanese processed

food industry, we expected to see
additional price increases in imported
raw materals and prices of raw
materials remairung at high levels
The processed food business i1s

also significantly impacted by
developments in the wholesale and
retall sales channels, particularly by
their consolidation We will continue
to monitor the development of these
channels, especially in the area

of M&A

Competition

TabieMark 1s competing against
major players like Nichirel, Maruha
Nichiro, Apnomoto and Nissur as
well as a multitude of mid- or
small-scale producers

We are seeing a polanzation of
retallers as well as reocrganization

and oligopolization of the wholesale
sector led by sogo-shosha, the general
trading companies, resulting in
stronger price negotiaiion power
against manufacturers We are

also seeing an increase in private

label brands




Review of Operations

Tobacco Business Value Chain

Operations & Analysis

Procierement

Tohacco teaf 1s the most important material
for our products, and we dedicate our
etforts to strengthen our capahility to
ensure a stable supply of quality leai

in the long-term.

* [ncrease the proportion of {eaf from our
vertcal integration bases in Afdca, Brazil
and the U S.

« Enhance suslainabtity of tobacco farming
by helping farmers to improve productivity

Our emphasis on product quality 1s

increasing to meet consumer expectations

for innovative offerings In addimion, we

consistently pursue an optimal

manufactuning foctprint which ensures

efficient and tmely product deliveries

to markets

* Sirengthen our ability for business
continuity In times of emergency

@ Marketing

Our strategic focus is placed on our flagship
brands and we strive to enhance their
equity through effective communications
with consumers.

Sales & Distribulion

There are vanous sales chamnels for
tobacco products such as supermarkets,
convenience stores, street and frain station
kiosks, small ndependent retailers and
vending machines. Key channels are
different depending on the market and we
develop win-win ralationships with them
to increase the availability of our products.
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Ensure stable supply
of quality tobacco leaf

as well as tzking ntatives 1o support
their communities

* Maintain good refationships with
exlernal suppliers to ensure suiicient
supply at competitive prices.

With regard to non-tobacco matenals,

we aim to mitigate cost Increases due

to design enhancements and mvestment

N nnovative products by, among others,

effectively managing procurement lot-size.

r g =

Support top-line growth by
delivering quality products

* Ensure high quality of products and
enhance flextbility in the manufacturing
process, overcoming complexity in
manufacturing due to an increase In
number of products

* At the same time, seek efficiency
by containing cost increases
through continuous improvement
and reviewing manufacturing footprint
for further optimization

Enhance equity
of flagship brands

* Allocate appropriate resources
to support GFB’'s equity building.

* Implament effective marketing
programs, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations
as well as our own marketing code.

Expand product availability
by leveraging our trade
marketing excellence

* Strengthen relationship with key
accounts, leveraging our trained
sales forces.

* Develop trade marketing initialives
for each market, taking into account
the channel development as
well as consumer trends and
competitors” actions.




Review of Operations continued
International Tobacco Business

FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

JTI manufactures and sells
over 90 brands in more
than 120 countries. 59

Thomas A McCoy
President and Chief Executive Officer JTI

“2015 was an excellent year for JTT Itis our fifth consecutve

year of delivering double-digit profit growth at constant
currency. We achieved our targets and strengthened our
role as the profit growth engine of the JT Group

Last vear, JTI committed to Invest more
to expand and accelerate our business
growth into new gecgraphies and
emerging products We delivered on
that commitment and through those
Investments we are establishing solid
foundations on which we continue 1o
build our business into the rmid and
long term

2015 was not without its challenges
due to ongoing industry contraction
and an acceleration in the growth
of the value segment across many
of our key markets

In Russia, our largest market, we
expenenced a high single-digit
industry volume decline and intensified
competition in the lower price
segments In thus difficult operating
environment, we successfully grew
Global Flagship Brands (GFB) market
share driven by a resilient Winston
holding market share and the strong
performance of LD

In Europe, we registered a very
strong volume, core revenue and
adjusted operating profit performance
drniven by our GFBs We grew share
across most markets and we reached
the leading position in the UK driven
by our continued nvestments since
the Gallaher acquisition

We continued to grow our presence
internationally, both organically

and through acquisitions Seeding
Investments, t¢ expand In markets
where our presence Is limred,

are already delivering positive

022

results in terms of volume and market
share growth

In emerging products, we consolidated
our global presence by entering the
USA, the largest e-cigarette market
worldwide, and expanded E-Lites

and Logic in new geographies

For 2016, we have a balanced plan
that will support short-term profit
delivery and long-term sustainable
growth We are targeting 9% adjusted
operatting profit growth at constant
currency as we builld on our 2015
momentum and continue investing
for future growth "

Our strategles

The core rmussion of JTHs to be the
profit growth engme of the JT Group
Using the JT 45 mode! as our guiding
pnnciple, JTI has developed a clear and
actionable strategic growth agenda

Qur key strategic drivers are
* Bulld and nurture outstanding brands
» Enhance productivity conunuously
* Maintain focus on responsibility
and credibility
» Strengthen human resources as
a cornerstone of growth

JTV's strategic growth agenda sets out
three key pnonties
* QOrganic growth in markets where
JTI's presence 1s estabhshed
* Expansion of our geographic
footprint in emerging markets
for future growth
¢ Develop a leadership position
N emerging products
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Global Shipment
Volume

273.6

(Bl

+4. 39,

Year-on-year chanye

Core Revenue

10,338

(US$ MM)

-13.24,

Year-on-year change

+7.0%

Year-on-year change at constant
currency




We believe the combination of these
strategic initiatives and continuous
improvement provide the nght balance
between short-term profitability and
sustainable long-term growth

2015 Performance Review

Volume & Share

Total shupment volume was down

1 0% to 393 9 billion cigarette
eguivalent units, due to significant
industry contraction and a volatile
operating environment n the Middle
East Our fine cut volume was up

13 1%, parually offsetung the decline
N total cigarette volurne

The performance in South & West
Europe was particularly strong with
growth across all key markets North
& Central Europe alsc grew volume,
fully offsetting the impact of industry
contraction in the UK In the Rest-of-
the-World cluster, total volume was
up, mainly drniven by Turkey and Iran
The significant industry contraction
across the CIS+ cluster drove total
volume to decline

GFB shipmant volume increased 4 3%
to 273 6 billon cigarette equivalent
units This positive performance was
driven by the strong equity of our
portfolio, and most notably Winston,
Camel, LD, Benson & Hedges and
Sobranie As a result, GFB mix in our
total shipment volume grew to 69 5%,
an increase of 3 6 percentage pomnts
Versus pror year

Looking into the clusters, GFB volume
was very strong, increasing by high
single-digit and even double-digit,
except In CIS+ due to industry
volume contraction

Bnl)

South& North & Rest of
Wast  Central he Total

Europe Europe CIS+ World JT
Total
shipment
volume 632 530 1525 1252 3939
GFB
shipment
volume 558 305 N33 70 27386

Overall as a3 company we grew total
and GFB share of market as well as
total and GFB share of value Across
our seven key markets, JTI's market
share grew to 21 3%, a 01 percentage
point Increase versus prior year driven

by France, ltaly, Spain, Taiwan,
Turkey and the UK In these markets,
our GFB market share wasup 12
percentage points to 17 8% dniven by
all seven markets, demonstrating the
strength of our GFB portfolio and the
value of continued equity building
investments We also grew market
share in fine cut, notably driven by
strong growth in the key markets

of France, Italy, Spain and the UK

Importantly, we grew total and GFB
share of value to 21 4% and 16 2%,
respectively, in all our key markets
except Russia, due to the large
volume decline across the industry

Financials

Core revenue grew 7 0% at constant
currency driven by robust price/mix
and GF8 shipment volume growth
Price/mix contribution mcreased by
almost USS$1 brllion, fully offsetting
the volume decline rmpact Ail clusters
contributed to the price/mix increase,
notably driven by Russia and the UK
The South & West Europe cluster
generated US$55 million in price/mix,
combined with US$178 million from
North & Central Europe, US$628
million from ClIS+ and US$136 million
from Rest-of-the-World

Pricing was the key driver of our 10 8%
increase In adjusted operating profit at
constant currency While South & West
Europe delivered high single-digit
adjusted operating profit growth at
constant currency, North & Central
Europe and CiS+ both delivered
double-digit adjusted operating profit
growth at constant currency In the
Rest-of-the-World cluster, adjusted
operatng profit was flat at constant

Adjusted operating profit (USS MM}

Operations & Analysis

Cluster breakdown

Rest-of-
the-VWorld
HCI5+
¢+ WM Noth &
Ceniral Europe
33% South &
West Europa
18% 16%
Shipment Cora Ad)justed
volume Revenue Operaling
{reported} Profit
{reported}

currency as we Increased investrments
and redeployed our profit growth

to further build our business for

rmid to fong term profitabiity

2015 key highlights

Invesung for future sustaimable growth
2015 was an investment year for JT!
Investments were directed at three
main areas equity bulding, seeding
imtiatives and emerging products

Global Flagstup Brands were the

main focus of our equity bullding
investments As a result, our GFBs
registered strong performance Despite
the challenging environment, Winston
held its market share in Russia It
became the number two brand In
France and Spain, and the number
three brand in Tarwan Came! became
the number one brand in Turkey The
brand reached record market share

in ltaly and Turkey LD achieved record
market share in Russia and returned
to the number three position In this
market In the UK, two brands were
key contriputors to our growth since
2007 Amber Leaf, the number one
tobacco brand, and Sterhng, the
number one cigaretie brand

+10.8%
L]
-211
4,253
2014 Volume Price/
reported Mix
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Other

3,257
2015 ar EX 2015
consiant repored
currency
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Review of Operatons cwnlinued

International Tobacco Business

FY2015 Resulis for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

Furthermore, we have accelerated

our mvestrnent plans in geographies
where our presence 1s hmited These
seeding nitiatrves included expanding
our distribution in Brazil, Myanmar and
Thalland We also strengthened our
portfolio and marketing and sales
organization In several markets,
inciuding Hungary, Korea and

the Philrppines

in addition to the Logic acguisition,
we Invested in emerging products
by developing our product pipeline,
expanding our geographic reach and
strengthening our R&D capabilities

People, cornerstone of our growth
Our 26,000 employees worldwide

are a ma|jor enabler of our strategy

To ensure sustainable future growth,
we continuously invest In our people
by setting high standards and fostering
a diverse work environment in which
our employees can excel This allows
JTI 1o recruit the best candidates and
develop therr skills and competencies
across the arganization These efforts
were recognized by the Top Employer
Global certification in 2015 and 2016,
awarding 35 countnes across Europe,
Asia Pacific and the Middle East

for their exceptional employee
environment The Top Employer
organization also ranked JTI as
number cne in Asia Pactfic and
number two in Europe for 2016

Strengthening our leadership

During the course of 2015, JTI
achieved a number of important
milestones, most notably reaching
the nurmber one position in the highly
competitive UK market With this
achievement, JT! 15 now leading in
three of its seven key markets,
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namely Russia, Tawan and the UK
Furthermore, JTi reached record
market share in many markets,
including France, Spain and Turkey
as well as being the fastest growing
tobacco company in ltaky

Broadening the base

To complement our robust organic
growth, we conducted a number

of acquisitions during the year Two
of them related to our investments
in emerging products with the
transactions on Ploom Inc's patents
and trademarks and the acquisition
of Logic Inc

A significant deal was the acquisition
of Anan Tobacco Industry (ATI) by

JTI PARS in Iran This acquisition
consolidated our presence in this
rmarket where we have been cperating
singe 2002 ATl complements the

JTI PARS set up, bringing strong
value brands to an already robust
prermium and mid-price portfolio

In addition, ATl strengthens

our competitiveness in lran by
adding a state-of-the-art production
facility to our existing set up and
distritbution capabilities

Lastly, we acquired the Natural
Amencan Spirnt business cutside

the United States This brand offers

a unigue postioning as the only global
exclusively “additive-free” premium
cigarette Positioned in ready-made
cigarettes and fine cut, Natural
American Spint 1s available in 13
European and Asian countries \We
are currently planning the future of
this brand and will consider adding 1t
to our Global Flagship Brands portfolio
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2016 Outlook

We are entenng 2016 with
confidence In our business outlook,
strong fundamentals, positive
rmomentum and the continuation
of significant investments

We expect the operating environment
to remain challenging due to increasing
regulation in Eurcpe, continued
recession in the CIS+, and volatility

in the Middle East Currencies are
expected to negatively impact our
reported financials in 2016

Our total volume 1s expected to remain
flat year-on-year despite the continued
industry contraction, supported by
market share progression and 2015
acquisitions GFBs will grow volume
and share as we continue to enhance
brand equity and geographic reach, as
well as benefiting from the opportunity
to add Natural American Spirit

Continued pricing gains combined
with our GFB momentum will drive
core revenue growth at constant
currency We will continue to
increase Investments to strengthen
our leading positions across key
markets, grow our presence where
we are under-represented, and
broaden our emerging products
portfolio and its geographic footprint

Our balanced approach between
short-term profit delivery and investing
to secure long-term sustainable
growth is forecast to generate another
strong year of earnings delivery at
constant currency JTI will remain the
profit growth engine of the JT Group

Please ba reminded that this secuon s intended

10 explan the business operations of JT to iInvastors
not 1o promaota sakes of tobacco products (o ancourags
smoking by consumers



Global Flagship Brands (GFB) Portfolio
Our GFBs form the core of our brand portfolio.
We have eight GFBs providing a well-balanced
portfolio to address consumer needs globally.

Global sales

132.1311U

\lliﬁ'»l

- . .
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First introduced in 1854, Winston is one
of our key growth drivers. The second
largest cigarette brand worldwide since
2007, Winston is currently soid in more
than 120 markets.

Global sales

50.9B|1U

Launched in 1913 and onginator of the
Amencan blend, Camel has stood the
test of time and is now the benchmark
of creativity amongst adult consumers.
It is sold today in 88 markets and is

The brand is articulated around
a two-pillar portfolio architecture,
Winston Core and Winston XS,

Our Core pillar delivers an authentic,
high guality, premium smoking
experience. [t continues 10 grow
steadily and we started introducing
rejuvenated packaging with firm tech
filter technology in several markets. Our
XS pillar ofters a more style-focused

one of the top five premium brands
in many of our key markets. Carnel
continues to successfully reinvent
itself, building on its strong heritage
and genuine taste.

In 2015, Camel exceeded 50 billion

units for the first time in its history,
increasing by 9.7% versus pricr year.
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product, created specifically 1o open
up new segments and territories o
Winston. XS is the number one King
Size Super Slim offering globally.

In 2015, we continued to invest in the
equity, innovation and global expansion
of Winsion. As a result, the volume
performance of Winston was strong,
up 1.9% and growing double-digit in
40 markets, reaching over 2 bilfion units
in 13 markets or over 1 billion units in
26 markets. Fine cut shipment volume
rmomentum continued with an increase
of 39.4%.

Winston consolidated its global
ranking, growing its market share
0.3ppt t0 9.1% in JTI's top-40 markets.
Winston achieved record market share
in 23 markets, including Jordan and
Malaysia where it became the number
wwo brand. We continued expanding
the reach of Winston, launching in
Bangladesh, parts of Indones:a and
Myanmar. In fine cut, Winston's market
share was up across Europe.

This strong performance was mainly
driven by Turkey as well as strong
growth in many European markets,
including France, ltaly and Spain. Fine
cut also supported this growth with
volume up 23.0%. Camel grew market
share 0.5ppt 10 3.2% across JTI's
top-40 markets, setting new records
in the Czech Republic, ltaly, the
Netherlands, Spain and Turkey.

Among the key Camel developments in
2015 was the introduction of a new and
enhanced Carnel Curve proposition in
35 markets. We also rolled out Camel
Activate Double, our dual capsule
offering which was first-to-market

in 15 markets, including Brazil, ltaly,
the Netherlands and Switzerland.
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Global Flagship Brands (GFB) Portfolio continued

Global sales

17. ]BnU

Launched as Mild Seven in 1977 and rebranded in 2013,
Mevius is the top-selling brand in Japan with over 30%
rmarket share. Internationally, Mevius continued to expand
geographically, entering Kazakhstan, Georgia, Poland,
Romania and Tajikistan.

In 2015, Mevius international volume was flat at 17.1 hitlion
cigarette equivalent units with volume growth in key Asian
markets offsetuing the dechne in Korea following the
significant :ndustry contraction. Market share increased
0.1pptto 0.7% in JTI's top-40 markets. In addition, Mevius
continued to grow its share of the premium segment in its
top Asian markets. Mevius remasned the number one brand
in Taiwan with a share of market of 22.3%, enhancing its
leadership in Premium reaching a 60% share of segment.

Global sales

12 .1BnU

Onginally established in 1873, Benson & Hedges has a
proud British heritage. In 2015, B&H volume increased
10.9% to 12.1 billion cigarette equivalent units with growth
in both ready-made cigarettes and fine cut. B&H increased
its market share 0.1ppt to 0.7% in JTI's top-40 markets.
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Global sales

2. Teuu

Launched in 1964, Stk Cut established its premium
credentials as one of the first low tar brands in the 1970s,
iong before it became the norm of other manufacturers. in
2015, Silk Cut volume dectined 7.0% to 2.7 billion cigarette
equivalent units due 1o industry volurme contraction in
Ireland and the UK.

SILK
cuT
——

Giohat sales

I.: D 49.5311U

LD was launched in 1989 as a mid-price brand in the Russian
market. The brand achieved irmmediate success and is now
recognized as a compelhng international brand, ranked
number two in the Value segment. Since 2007, LD has grown
continuously in all clusters, adding eight new markets in 2015
to reach 46 countrigs overall. LD has constantly expanded its
portfolio 1o meet consumer aspirations, including in fine cut.

In 2015, LD volume grew at an impressive double-digit rate to
49.5 billion cigarette equivalent units. This was mainly driven
by the strong performance of LD Club Compact in the CIS+
cluster, The brand achieved recard market share in 12 markets,
including Canada, the Czech Republic, Kazakhstan, Poland,
Russia, Taivwan and Ukraine. Overall, the brand grew its share
of market by 0.4ppt to reach 3.3% in JTV's top-40 markets.

Global sales

6 .4:BnU

Glarmour is JTI's leading super slims brand introduced in 2006,
in 2015, mainly due to industry contraction in Russia, its
volume declined 10.3% to 6.4 hillion cigarette equivalent units.

Global sales

SOBRANTE 2-7BnU

Audacity, uncoampromised excellence and noble characters
define Sobranie, one of the oldest luxury cigarettes since
1879. In 2015, despite the downtrading environment,
Sobranie grew volume by 4.5% to 2.7 bitlion cigarette
equivalent units.,
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Other Tobacco Products Portfolio

Fine Cut

JTI's fine cut share continued to grow In Europe This
category encompasses roll-your-own and make-your-own
products With a 13 1% increase, our fine cut volume
growth has continued to accelerate in 2015, driven by the
strong performance of our GFB fine cut volume growing
30 8% This growth came mainly from Winston and Camel
and, to a lesser extent, from Benson & Hedges and LD

In 2015, our fing cut share of market in Europe reached

20 8%, an increase of 2 Oppt versus prior year, following
gains in Austnia, Belgium, France, Germany, Hungary, Italy,
Ireland, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain, Switzerland
and the UK

In the UK, market share of Amber Leaf, Sterling and Old
Holborn continued to increase Amber Leaf also performed
well in Ireland and Spain while Fleur du Pays continued to
gain share in France

JTI maintained its number one or two market share position
In Austria, Belgium, France, Greece, Ireland, ltaly, Spain,
Switzerland and the UK

We will continue to ennch our fine cut product pipeline with
innovative product features to keep delivering solid results
in this category

Volume growth

13.1%

Operations & Analysis

Please be rerminded that this secton is intendsd

1o explain the businass operations of JT to investors
not to promote sales of tabacco products 1o ancourage
smaoking by consumers
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Chill. Enjoy. Share

Shisha

After entering the shisha tobacco business in 2013, we
have continuously iImproved the quality of the products,
rationalized the portfolio, rejuvenated the offerng and
further expanded our presence in this category

In 2015, while we consolidated our position in existing
markets as one of the leading shisha tobacco manufacturer
Iin the world, the on-going geopolitical tensions tn the
Middle East impacted negatively our volume, deciining

to 18,300 tons

Tobacco volume

18,300 rons
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Emerging products

2015 was an exciling year for emerging produets. i which we acquived
Logic and more than doubled our investments. We now have a broader
seale. vicher producet pipelive and stronger RED capabilities i line
with [T Growp’s vision lo build leadership in this category.

LOGIC. THE SMATF
WAY OF VAPING

PRb e e IS ||

| o i .

NeT IN NEW YORK
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Special feature

E-Vapor

Building on the assets of Zandera, acquired

in 2014, we have further invested to develop
our portfolio as well as cur geographic reach.
We launched the new E-Lites Curv in the UK,
lreland and Germany. The feedback received
by Curv from the trade and consumers is very
positive across all three markets.

Following the Logic acquisition, we became
the number three e-Cigarette company in

the USA, the world's largest market for this
category. We increased invesiments o focus
on strengihening our footprint in the USA and
expanding the presence of Logic in France
and in the UK. In both markets, we introduced
Logic Pro, our closed tank offering. We were
the first company 10 propose a closed tank
olfering in France and the initial trade

and consumer response is far exceeding

our expectations.

Tobacco-Vapor

In February 2015, we acquired a number

of patents and trademarks from Ploom Inc.
relating to the tobacco vaporization business.
Since then, we have been investing to grow
the pipeline of tohacco-vaper products.

Ploom Tech, our latest innovative and
proprigiary whacco vaporizer being launched
in Japan first, is the most recent addition to
our portfolio. This new device vaporizes a
nicotine-free liguid through a tobacco pod
without any combustion. Initial feedback from
adult consumers is very positive, driven by

the clear tobacco taste provided by our unique

technology. In 2016, we plan to expand the
geographic reach of Ploom Tech in selecied
markets and gain a better understanding of
consumers' reaction.

We will continue investing in this growing
category 1o strengthen our portfolio and
pursue more geographical expansion.

Plegsa he rermunded that thes seCman s ntanded

to mxplin the business opergbons a* JT 1o nvestors,
no: i0 promale sales o *obaduO oL 1o entourdge
smoking by consumers
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Review of Operations conlinued

Japanese Domestic Tobacco Business

FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

Mutsuo lwar
President Tobacco Business

Profit grew by solid

top-line and cost decrease. >,

Japanese domestic tobacco business 1s a highly competiuve
platform of profitabihity In the year ended December 2015,
mdustry volume was 182 3 billion units in Japan, which 1s one
of the largest markets in the world. We own 9 of the top 10
selling products 1n this large market. We are the undisputed
market leader in Japan with around 60% market share

Since the consumption tax hike in
Aprl 2014, we have strengthened
sales promotion activities to retain
consumers, with a particular focus
on MEVIUS and other core brands

The industry volume in Japan, however,
has been declining over the past years
In this challenging environrment, we
priontized quality top-line growth by
investing in brand equity enhancement
and launching new products to meet
consumers' needs

In 2015, we Integrated Caster and
Cabin into Winston and launched new
products, MEVIUS and Seven Stars,
in the growing mentho! segment

We continue to be a significant profit
contributor to the JT Group by further
qualiy top-line growtih and
continuous cost Improvement

Sales volume {Bnl)

Business results
{vol financial performance)
* Enhanced brand equity enabled
price/mix improvement
— JT sales volumes decreased 2 8%
from the previous year in line with
our forecast n 2015
- Core revenue decreased 12 %
year-on-year to ¥642 2 billion as
our average unit price improved,
supported by additional marketing
Investments in brands with higher
price increase as well as the
strong duty-free sales
- Adjusted operating profit grew
6 4% year-on year to ¥254 1 bilion
drniven by prnice/mix improvement
and effective cost management

Core Revenue (JPY BN)

1653

R

WspsTr dalir W0

Core Revenue

642.2

[JPY BN}

-1.29,

Year-on-year change

Adjusted Operating
Profit

254.1 |

{(JPY BN)

+0.49

Year-on year change

Adjusted Operating Profit (JPY BN)

109 2

2014 FY2015
Jan-Dec

030

2014 FY2015
Jan-Dec

JAPAN IOBAC CO INC ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2541

2014 FY2015
Jan-Dec




Business resuits

{market share performance)

+ MEVIUS performance led to resilient
market share In the context of
intensified competition
- In FY2015, JT market share

decreased 0 4 percentage points
to 59 9%

Share avolution of JT and MEVIUS (%)

600 599 600 597 60 1

319 321 323 319 320

Oct-Dec Jan-Mar Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec
2014 2015 2015 2015 2015

e JT
« MEVIUS

Amid the intensifying competition,
we continued t0 make mvestrments
in sales promotion and brand equity
enhancement for MEVIUS, which s
our core brand, and for other brands

in particular, we actively launched new
extensions for Winston, which two
other brands were integrated into in
August 2015

As a result, despite the intense
competitive environment, sales
volume proved to be almost in

line with our forecast, faling 2 8%
year-on-year As for the market share,
JT total share and share of MEVIUS
both remained stable

Our strategies

We focus on quality top-line growth
by Increasing share of market and
promoting consumers to shift to
higher unit price products In order

to achieve this goal, we will continue
to invest In brand eguity enhancement
and business foundation bullding with
a mid- to long-term vision

In addition, we also continue to pursue
effictency to further strengthen our
profitability
» Prionty on quality top-line growth
- Continue to strengthen our brand
equity, with a particular focus on
MEVIUS and other core brands
- Grow or maintain market share
In Japanese domestic market
— Develop emerging product
category
» Continugus cost iImprovement

F
E
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Outlook

The acquisition of Natural Amencan
Spint was completed January 2016
We are still working on its business
plan, however, the performance

of Natural American Spint Is
reflected in the forecasts based

on certain assumptions

In addition, the expected impact of
the amendment of retail prices for
certain brands, of which we received
approval from the Minister of Finance
in February 20186, i1s also included in
the forecasts

We expect our market share to be
somewhat affected by the retall price
revision, but we intend to minimize
the impact by executing marketing
strategy focusing on key brands in
each of price segments, particularly
MEVIUS and Winston

In 2018, in order to build momentum for
top-line growth over mid- to long-term,
we will further enhance equity of our
key brands, launch of Ploom TECH and
support these initiatives with focused
promotion activities

Japanese domestic tobacco business is
committed to fulfilling its role as a highly
competitive platform of proftability This
will be achieved by quality top-line
growth as well as further pursun

of a competitive cost base

Please be rerninded that this section
1s intendad 1o explawn the business
operanons of IT to Investors not 1o
promaote sales of tohacce products o
encourage smaking by consumers
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Our core brands

MEVIUS

S
MEVIUS
-
- Winston

(:_)
M,

Seven Stars

* Qur leading brand in Japan is
MEVIUS, evolved from Mild Seven
in February 2013. MEVIUS inherits
Mild Seven’s strong consumer base
which has commanded the No.1
share in the Japanese domestic
market for more than 30 years
since 1978,

The MEVIUS farily comprises

a line-up of 356 praducts (as of
February 29, 2016 cigarette products
in domestic market), reflecting the
evolution that it has undergone in
step with the changing tmes and
brand expansion.

7y fea

DA A A N N
PEG AR NG NSRS Xe

Natural
American Spirit

.
\ Wincinn

* First introduced in 1954 in the
United Siates, and today Winston
is the second largest cigaretie
brand in the world.

In 2015, CABIN and CASTER were
migrated into Winston in Japan.
Winston has three types of taste,
“Bitter”, "Straight” and "Sweet", in
both Regular and Menthol segments.
The Winston family comprises

a line-up of 26 products

(as of February 29, 2016).

SevenStars

Charooaf Fifer

P o L. T
BomeBiy 1em
“thrsr

* Sonurre TIOS

* Launched in 1969, Seven Stars
featured Japan's first domestically
produced charcoal filter in pursurt
of better taste.

Since its launch, Seven Stars has
consistently offered unique value
in terms of taste, aroma, and
product design.

* The Seven Stars family comprises
a line-up of 19 products (as of
February 29, 2016 including
regional products).

| B sa sk TARESN
SRUIRANT
L
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The Natural American Spirit brand
was born in the U.S. in 1982,

with the idea to prowvide the most
premium, additive-free, all natural
tobacco products. The Natural
American Spirit brand vision

is unchanged even after its
phenomenal growth globally.

The brand has also been the

leader m environmental stewardship
and sustainability while creating
mutually beneficial relationships
with gveryone it touches.

The brand was introduced to Europe
and Japan in 1996 with exactly

the same vision, environmental
leadership and relationship-based
brand buiiding. The brand has grown
in every market it reached, particuiarly
in Japan.

The Natural American Spirit famiiy
comgprises a line-up of 8 cigarette
products (as of February 29, 2016
cigarette products in domestic
market).




No smell of smoke,
® no ash. Real tobacco.

Ploom-TECH

TJobacco-vapor with a newly
developed concept

Ploom TECH 1s different from existing
tobacco-vapor products It offers a
smoother, clearer taste and aroma
provided by unique technology with
no combusuon and no direct heating
of tobacco

. The emerging products category will

contribute to the Group’s profit growth
in the mid- to long-term, not iImmediatety

Furthermore, 1t provides an additional
growth opportunity for the entire
tobacce business in the long-run

Please be raminded that this sectuon 13 intanded

to explain the business operahions of JT 10 invastors
not 1o promote salas of tobacco products 10 encourag
sroking by consumars.

Evolved.
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Review of Operatons coniinued

Pharmaceutical Business

FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31 2015

~
NN

We aim to burld a unique, world-class
pharmaceutical business driven by R&D,
and to increase our market presence through

Id

original and innovative drugs. * -
gt S

Muneaki Fupmoto
President, Pharmaceutical Division

We stnve to strengthen the profit base through value Revenue
maximization of each product and R&D promotion 7
for next generation of strategic compounds. 5 . 6
(JPY BiN)
Strategy fLicensed compounds] +9 . 8
* Promote R&D of strategic ¢ Elvitegravir (Ant-Hiv) . e LY B
compounds for next generation — E/C/FITAF [single-tablet oo vedr change LPY B
and seek optimum timing to regimen “Genvoya”) - .
out-license them Approved inthe US and EU gd’f‘fswd Operating
¢ Maximize the value of each product * Trametinib {Melanoma) rofit
— Regulatory application filed _2 3
Performance Overview by partner in Japan .
[Development in Japan] — For use \n combination {UPY BN}
with dabraferib
* “Allergen Scratch Extract Positive Approved in EU +5 O
control (Torn) Histamine *
Dihydrochlorde” Business results Year-on-yar change (FY BN)
Approved (Sep 2015} {financial performance):
* “MITICURE House Dust Mite * Revenue grew ¥9 8 billion driven by
Sublingual Tablets™, an Allergen an increased royalty from our icense
Immunotherapy Tablet for House partners, most notably related to
Dust Mite Allergy Strnbild Torn Pharmaceutical's
Launched by Tori Pharmaceutical top-hne growth related to Riona
. (Dec 2015) and Stribild also contributed
¢ TO-206, an Allergen Immunotherapy  * Operating loss impraved by
Tablet for Japanese Cedar Pollinosis ¥5 0 billion due to revenue increase

- Regulatory application filed by
Torn Pharmaceutical (Dec 2015}

Revenue (JPY BN) Adjusted Operating Profit (JPY BN}
-23
756
2014 FY2015 2014 FY2015
Jan-Dec Jan-Dec
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Operations & Analysis

Value chain

R&D

Continue 1o strengthen R&D capability, a cornerstone of our

pharmaceutical business

A particular emphasis is placed on research and development in ine with our

mission to establish a uniqgue R&D onented business model which can compete

on a global basis By focusing our resources on specific areas, we efficiently

strengthen our R&D capability which enables us to create innovative drugs

* Focus mainly on the fields of glucose and lipid metabolism, anti-virus, and immune
disorders and inflammation to best leverage our expertise

* Allocate adequate resources in R&D in light of the increasingly complex, time-
consuming and therefore costly development process due to stringent regulations

* Aiming at discovery of "first-in-class” compounds, enhance pre-chrical research
capabiiity and build development strategies tailored to accomplish the objective

* Translate Innovation into medicines that are both approvable and commercially viable

Manufacturing

Ensure a reliable supply of quality products

s Sustainable supply chain to deliver high quality products to our patents has established
We also pursue efficiency in our manufactuning arrangements, products marketed in
Japan are mainly produced by Torn Pharmaceutical to maximize intra-group synargies,
while outsourcing to contract manufacturers where approprate

* Remain focused on quality assurance and safely control

* Maintain optimal manufacturing arrangements

* Continuously strive to reduce envircnmental impacts, as evidenced by operation and
maintenance of the ISO 14001 certificate by our Sakura plant

Sales & Promotion
Build marketing competence on our MRs
In the pharmaceutical Industry, medical representatives (MRSs) play a crucial role in
successful sales and promotion by providing medical and scientific knowledge with chents
At the same time, they collect valuable information from the medical front which could be
reflected in the ongoing or future R&D activities Torn Pharmaceuttcal is marketing our
products in Japan through 512 huighly-trained MRs Qutside Japan, we do not have a sales
function As such, instead of directly marketing our preducts, we receive royalties based on
sales performance from our license partners for the compounds for which we out-license
the night 1o develop and market
* Provide extensive training programs to MRs and expand their knowledge to earn trust
from our clients
» Strengthen our marketing capabilities by leveraging the marketng support system,
which integrates clients’ information including their needs spread across functions
* Build a sales and marketing strategy to meet the existing and future market needs
in the changing business environment

JAPAN IGBACLC O INC ANNUAL RFPORT 2015

Manufacturing Y

Supporl top-line
growth by delivering
gquality products

Sales & Promotion Wy

Expand product
availability by
leveraging our trade
marketing excellence
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Review of Operanons conlinued

Pharmaceutical Business

Japan Tobacco Inc Clinical Development (as of February 4 2018)

In-house development

Code Potantial Ind:cation/

(Genanc name) Dasage farm Mechanism

JTK303 HIV infection HIV integrase inhibitor/

{ehntegraviry/ fOral Nucleoside reverse

cobicistat/ transcriptase inhibitor

emtricitabine/

tenofovir

alafenarmude

fumarate

emtncitabine/  HIV infection Nucleoside reverse

tenofovir {0ral transcriptase inh:bitor

alafenamide

fumarate

JTT-851 Type 2 diabetes mellitus G protein-coupled
fQral receptor 40 agonist

JTZ-951 Anemia associated with HIF-PHD inhibitor
chronic kidney disease
fO0ral

JTE-052 Autoimmune/allergic JAK inhibiter
diseases
{Oral Topical

JTE-051 Autoimmune/allergic Interleukin-2 mducible
diseases T cell kinase inhibitor
fOral

JTE-151 Autorrmmune/allergic RORy antagomst
diseases
fQOral

JTT-251 Type 2 diabetes mellitus PDHK inhubitor
fQral

JTK-351 HIV infection HIV integrase inhibitor
1Oral

Chrical trial phase prasented above 1s based on the first dose

Licensed compounds

Description

Suppresses blood RIV levels by inhthiting the acuvities of integrase
and reverse transcnptase, enzymes involved in the rephcauon of HIV

Suppresses blood HIV levels by inhtbiting the actvity of reverse
franscnptase an enzyme involved in the replication of HIV

Decreases blood glucose by simulation of glucose-dependent
Insulin secretion

Increases red blood cells by sumulating production of erythropoietin
an erythropolesis-stimulating hormone, via inhibition of HIF-PHD

Suppresses overactive immune response via inhtbition of Janus kinase
(JAK) related to immune signal

Suppresses overactive immune response via inhibition of the signal
to activate T cells related to immune response

Suppresses overactive iImmune response via inhibitton of
RORy related to Th 17 activation

Decreases blood glucose by activation of pyruvate dehydrogenase
{PDHj) related to carbohydrate metabolism

Suppresses blood HIV levels by inhibiting the activity of integrase
an enzyme involved in the replication of HIV

Compound

/T s codet Licensee Mecharnism Note

trarmetnib Novartis MEK infbubitor  Inhibrts cellular growth by specifically Melanoma
inhibiting the activity of MAPK/ERK Kinase Japan marketng approva! submitted
{MEK1/2)

Ant-ICOS Medimmune ICOS Suppresses overactive Immune response

menoclonal antagonist via inhibition of 1ICOS which regulates

antibody activation of T celts

JTE-052 LEQ Pharma JAK inhibitar  Suppresses overactive Immune response

via inhibiwen of Janus kinase (JAK) refated

1o immune signal
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Location

Japan

Japan

Japan

Overseas

Japan

Overseas

Japan

Overseas

Overseas

Overseas

Japan

Phase 1

®

® e 2 & 0000 @

Phase 2

poN

Ry NP RNV N Y4

.~

Phasa 3 Prepanng to file Filed

o
®
O

OO0 0O O O0000 e
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Operations & Analysis

Ongin

JTK-303{elvitegravir},

In-house

Cobicistat, Emtncitabine, Tenofovir
Alafenamide,

In-license

{Gilead Sciences)

In-license
(Gilead Sciences}

In-house

In-house

In-house

In-house

In-house

In-house

In-house
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Review of Operatons confinued

Processed Food Business

FY2015 Year ended December 31 2015

-

Atsuhiro Kawamata
Presidant and CEQ TableMark

A

DI

If we are going to prepare food for those who
matter to us most, we wish to do so cordially
and with care. This is our desire when

CNIN
N

running our business at TableMark. <

From 2010 onwards, TableMark began 1ts operation as a food Revenue
manufacturer with frozen and ambient processed food, bakery

items and seasoning as our business pillars In particular, we strive 165 . 8
to pronide high value-added products by focusing on staple food 1JPY BM)

such as frozen noodles, frozen rice, packed cooked nce and 7
frozen baked bread. +4.

Strategy
* Achieve operating profit margin on
par with industry average and am
to make profit contribution to the
JT Group
— Increase the attractiveness of our
offerings with a particular
emphasis on staple food products
by meeting consumer needs with
our own expertise
— Mimimize negative iImpact of rising
raw material costs and weak yen

Performance Overview

* The processed food business 1s
primanly engaged in business
concerming frozen and ambient
processed food, marnly staple food
products such as frozen nocdies,
frozen rice, packed nice and frozen

* Staple food products frozen noogles frozen rnica
packed cooked rice and frozen baked bread

Revenua (JPN BN)

Year-or-year change (LPY BN)

baked bread, bakery chain outlets .
In the Tokyo metropolitan area, and g:::;’.“st ed Operating
seasonings including yeast extracts
and oyster sauce 2 7
* \We Increased revenue In alfl of our .

busmness areas, namely frozen and WPY BN)

ambient processed food, bakery

and seasoning +1 3
[ ]

. e - h
Business results ear-on-year change {JPY BN}

(financial performance)

* Revenue increased 4 7 bilicn yen
driven by growth of staple products
and frozen food for bento box use

s Adjusted operating profit increased
13 billion yen Revenue growth
rmore than offset the effect of higher
material cost and weak yen

Adjusted Operating Profit (JPN BN}

1658

2014 FYy2015
Jan Dec

038
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2014 FY2015
Jan-Dec
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Value chain

| of safe and quality

| raw malanials

Food Safety Control

Production

Pricritize safety and
follow established
quality control
procedures

Operations & Analysis

by

Marketing V

Sales & Distribution By

Strve “or effective
marketing 1o improve
product awareness

Increase penetration
to retail outlets

Ensure safety control at all levels of the value chain

R&D
Strive to develop innovative products to meet
consumers’ needs
* |everaging our own know-how, we aim to develop
value-added products to meet diversified consumers’
needs
* Frozen baked bread products have been developed which
allow consumers 1o enjoy the taste of freshly baked bread
at home TableMark’s onginal techniques for fermentation,
baking and freez:ng recreate and preserve the taste and
texture of fresh bread
~ A new process for making frozen udon noodles, called
“Tamnen)ikomi Aya Jyukusel-ho” has been developed
This process enables us to offer higher qualty and
value-added udon products

Praocurement

Ensure procurement of safe and quality raw matenals

* Review of quality assurance certificates submitted by
our supphers

* Inspections and monitoring of agrochemical residues and
regular inspection at processing plants, in compliance
wath JT Group's internal standards the Food Sanitation
Act and other relevant laws

¢ Examination of safety of production sites for raw materals
sourced abroad

* As for agricultural farms, inspections are made not only
for soll and water but also in terms of how products are
cultvated and how agrochemicals are handled Breeding
farms are also inspected

Production

Prioritize safety and foliow established qualty

control procedures

« JT Group 1s pursuing the adoption of the HACCP systern,
15022000 and FSSC220Q0 in our and business partners’
factonies Under the 15022000 and FSSC22000 standard,
continuous iImprovements are made following effective
rules to control sanitation and other key 1ssues These
rules are based on the HACCP concept, and therr
effectiveness 1s tested using scientific evidence

s All of JT Group's 31 factories in and outside Japan
and contract manufacturers have achueved the
1SO22000 certification

Marketing

Strive for effective marketing to improve product awareness

* We analyze the market from consumers’ point of view
and, by combining the technology owned by TableMark,
we strive to provide products with new values to increase
our place in the market We strive for effective marketing
in order to iImprove consumer awareness of our products

Sales & Distnbution

Increase penetration to retail outlets

s Strive to enhance profitability through our imitiatives

* o INCrease our presence In supermarkets and
convenience stores, by ofiening a wider range of preducts
while also seeking better shelf space

* TableMark products are also sold to restaurants and other
public faclities

Food Safety Control

Ensure safety controi at all levels of the value chain

¢ Independent food safety management dvision 1s
responsible for overall safety control, ensuring that
consumers can confinue to enjoy our products safely

* External food safety experts provide assessment and
advice regarding our Initiatives — their knowledge and
viewpolns are actively incorporated into our business
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Risk Factors

The JT Group operates diverse businesses, namely tobacco,
pharmaceutical and processed food. In addition, we conduct our
business on a global bass, extending to Europe, CIS countrues,

Africa, the Middle East and others. Due to this dwersity and
these changing environments, we are exposed to varwous risks.

Considering such circumstances, we have put in place

a nsk management framework Under the framewark,
relevant divisions are assigned to carefully monitor the
development of events that may adversely impact the

JT Group and prevent their materiahzation where possible

When risks matenalize, we promptly respond in order to
minimize their unfavorable impacts In reviewing nsks, the
magmitude of potential impact and likelihood of occurrence
are most prudently assessed among cother factors Matenal
nisks, which could have a significant impact on our
sustainable profit growth and business continuity, are
reported to the CEQ together with the request for approval
to implement countermeasures against them

The following section describes certamn nisks which
potentially have a matenal impact on our business
operations and financial results, but 1s not intended

1o be an exhaustive list of the nisks we face In addition,

It 1s possible that nsks that are currently considered
immaterial or even unknown could turn out to be material
In the future, as the business envircnment changes

This section should be read together with the forward-
looking and cautionary statements contained in this
annual report

1. Disruptive tax increases

Tobacco products are subject to excise or similar taxes

in addition to value-added tax Excise taxes are increasing
in most markets where we operate as governments seek

to secure their revenue or promote public health In general,
value-added tax 1s also Increasing As a general principle,
we fully pass on any tax increase to consumers by adjusting
our sales prices In addition, to the extent possible, we
Increase our prices more than the tax increase, considering
the financial impact of an expected volume decline A tax
increase within a reasonable range 1s manageable through
such a prnice Increase as well as our efforts to support
top-line and pursue efficiency Most governments are aware
that a substantial tax increase or repeated tax increases
can reduce ther revenue and they take a rational approach
However, in the past we have experienced tax increases

n some markets, that have disrupted our business

Risk description and potential impact

A disruptive tax increase on tobacco products could result
in a large industry volume decline due to lower consumption
and, in many cases, increased illicit trade In addition,
down-trading 1o lower priced products could be intiated or
accelerated QOur shipment volume, revenue and profit could
decrease due to these negative reactions by consumers

Measures to address the rnisk

* Promote the understanding of relevant authorities that
a disruptive tax increase does noi necessanly serve
their purpose

* Optimize our product offerings to capture the potential
changes in consumer preference

* Enhance our geographical portfolio to imit the negative
impact of a disruptive tax increase in a specific market

¢ Further improve efficiency to protect revenue and earnings

» If a disruptive tax increase takes place, find an optimal
price for each product which mimimizes the unfavorable
influence in the market

2. Pressure from illicit trade

llheit rade 15 @ major concern not only for the tobacco
industry, but for wider soctety For the tobacco industry, it
undermines legibmate tobacco business For society, ilicit
trade reduces excise revenue for the government, often
fuels organized crime, and may increase health concerns
due to poor manufacturing standards and improper product
handhng The tobacco industry has been fighting against
ilhcit trade, which takes the forms of contraband, counterfert
andillicit whites
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lllegally traded products in a market tend to increase

after a steep tax increase Regulatory actions seeking to
commoditize packages and products could also tngger the
acceleration of illicit trade because such commoditization
could make counterfeit manufactuning easier and detection
of dlicit products more difficult We take a zero tolerance
approach towards all these cnminal actwittes with an
emphasis on eliminating contraband products

Risk descnption and potential impact

An increase in et trade could reduce legitimate industry
volume, leading to a dechine in our shipment volume,
revenue and profit In addition, the industry bears the cost
to combat ilicit trade, resulting in pressure on its earnings
Furthermore, 1t 1s possible that low qualty counterfeits
and improperly handled smuggled products damage the
credibility of genuine brands, as well as the reputation

of therr owners

Measures to address the nsk

* Engage with governments, regulatory bodies and law
enforcement agencies to eradicate illicit trade

* Ensure we buy from and sell to only reputable business
partners following our rigorous compliance mitiatives

» Raise awareness among individual consumers of the
negative consequences of purchasing illegally
traded products

Working together with authorrties

In 2007, JT International Helding BV and JT International
S A, JT Group subsidiaries, entered a cooperation
agreement with the European Commission, the executive
branch of the European Urion (EU), and 26 EU! Member
States as part of efforts to combat illicit trade 1n 2008,
the United Kingdom joined the agreement

Under the terms of the agreement, the JT Group
contributed US$5C mullion annually in the first five
years from 1ts execution and contributes US$15 million
annually in the subsequent ten years This financial
contribution 1s 10 be used to support anti-smuggling
and anti-counterferting iniatives led by the EU or

EU Member States

In 2010, JTI-Macdonald Corp, a JT Group Canadian
subsidiary, also signed a similar agreement with the
Government and Provinces of Canada

Operations & Analysis

3. Tightening tobacco regulations

The tobacco industry is highly regulated in varnious aspects,
and regulations could influence our business performance
and financial results Among the regulations on products,
for example, we may incur additional costs in order to
comply with ingredients and packaging requirements

Furthermore, the regulatory attempt to commoditize
tobaceco products could lead to an increase in ilhait trade
and negatively influence our legitimate business

Business activities of tobacco companies are also restricted
With more prohibitive regulations on communication with
consumers, our ability 10 effectively market products
becomes further imited, and our top-line performance
may be adversely impacted

As a responsible organization, the JT Group abides by
applicable laws and regulations wherever we operate

That said, we believe that laws and regulations should
differ country by country, reflecting legal, social and cultural
background We endeavor to hold constructive dialogues
with governments and regulators for a reasonable and
balanced approach towards tobacco regulation

Risk description and potenttal impact

Further tightening of tobacco regulations on marketing
activities could undermine our strategy for top-line growth
as we lose opporiunities to enhance brand equity Moreover,
certain regulations may tmpose on us additonal compliance
costs These may negatively influence our volume, revenue
and profit

Measures to address the nisk

» |dentify ongoing regulatory mitiatives as early as possible
by promptly collecting accurate informatton

* Endeavor to hold constructive dialogues with
governments and regulators for reasonable and balanced
regulations that meet their objectives

For further detalls, please refer to ‘Reguiation and Other
Relevant Laws’ contained in this annual report on page 62
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Risk Factors conlinued

4. Country risks

Our tobacco business has consistently expanded our
earnings base to secure long-term growth by making
acquisitions, entering new markets and increasing share
Iin markets where we had Imited presence Geographical
expansion may INCrease our exposure to country rsks

In any market where we operate, we may face economic,
poltucal or secial turmoil which may negatively affect our
operations and financial results

Risk description and potentral impact

Palitical instability, economic downturn, social unrest or
other unfavorable developments In a certain market could
disrupt our business, leading tc lower volume, revenue
and profit in the market

Measures 10 address the nsk

* Avoid overdependence on a small number of markets
as sources of profits by expanding the poo! of highly
profitable markets

5. Instability in the procurement of key matenals
Across its businesses, the JT Group procures raw

and processed matenals for product manufacturing

in particular, we strive to procure key materials in the
required quantity and at reasonable costs Our key
materials inctude agncultural products most notably,
tobacco leaf for the tobacco business, and grains for

the processed food business Availability of agnicutturat
products s often affected by natural phenomena including
chmate In addition, there 1s a growing concern that
agnicultural production costs may increase, due to the
high dermand in energy resources, global population
increases, and economic growth in emerging countries

Risk description and potential impact

Insufficient supply of key materials could lead to inability
to manufacture our products, subsequently resulting in

the loss of revenue and profit Furthermore, the increase

In procurement costs driven by higher production costs for
agricuitural products would directly pressure our earnings

Measures to address the risk

* Reinforce ability to procure key materials by building a
strong relationship with suppliers In the case of tobacco
leaf, further promote iniernal sourcing

* Promote efficient use of matenals by continuously
reviewing the manufacturing process and product
specifications where possible

6 Unfavorable development in litigation

JT and some of its subsidiaries are defendants in lawsuits
filed by ptaintiffs seeking damages for harm allegedly
caused by smoking As of December 31, 2015, 20 smoking
and health-related cases were pending in which one or
more members of the JT Group were named as defendant
or for which JT may have certain indemnity obligations
pursuant to the agreement for JT's acquisition of RJIR

Nabisco Inc s overseas {non-U S ) tobacco operations

JT and its subsidianes, who are defendants in such lawsuits,
believe that we have valid grounds to defend the claims in
such lawsuits, however, we cannot predict the cutcome

of any pending or future iigation

Risk description and potential impact

A decision unfavorable to us could materially affect our
financial performance due to the payment of manetary
compensation Cntcal media coverage of such lawsuits
may reduce social tolerance of and strengthen regulations
on smoking Such media coverage may also prompt the
filng of a number of similar lawsuns against JT or its
subsidiaries, resulting in increased litigation costs

Measures to address the nsk

« Continue to bulld well-organized teams coordinating
with external legal counsel to defend ourselves against
these lawsuits

* Continue legittmate and appropnate business operations
For further details, see section regarding “Litigation” on
page 65

7. Natural disasters

Our operations may be disturbed by natural disasters such
as earthquakes, typhoons, floods, volcano eruptions and
others Japan is one of the most impaortant markets for the
JT Group's businesses and subject in particular to various
natural disasters The Great East Japan Earthquake was
devastaung The impacts on the JT Group ncluded
casualues among our employees, physical damage to our
factories, and supply shortages of certain tebacco product
matenals Our tobacco business was forced to temporarily
suspend product shipment and limit shupment volume for
an extended pericd

We have developed a Business Contnuity Plan to minimize
the impact of such disasters, with a particular emphasis on
the optimizatien of the global supply chain

Risk description and potential impact

Matural disasters could cause damage to the JT Group
as well as our suppliers, trade partners and consumers,
leading to disruption of our business and negatively
impacting financial results

Measures to address the nisk

» Continuously review the Business Continuity
Plan and revise it as necessary

» Carry out emergency drills to increase employees’
preparedness against disasters

* |Insure key assets such as buildings, machinery,
equipment and inveniory to recover financial losses
as appropriate
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8. Currency fluctuations

As the JT Group s operating globally, we are exposed to the
risks assoclated with currency fluctuations The reporting
currency of the JT Group consolidated financial statements
1s Japanese yen, while the financial statements of our
international substdiaries are reported in other currenctes
such as Russian ruble, Euro, British pound, Taiwanese
dollar, US dollar, and Swiss franc

Therefore, exchange rate fluctuations of these currencies
against Japanese yen influence the Group's reported financial
results As for the financial reportung of the international
tobacco business, JT International Holding BV consolidates
the fimancial results of the mternational tobacco subsichanes
and reports its consolidated financial statements in U S
dollars We often communicate the financial performance

of our international tobacco business in U S dollars, which 1s
affected by exchange rate fluctuations against the U S dollar
In principle, we do not hedge these risks which arise from the
translation of financial statements

However, we hedge against nsks which anse when equity
denominated in each functional currency of the JT Group
Is translated into Japanese yen 1o be consolidated by using
foreign currency-denominated interest-bearing debits and
part of these are designated as net investment hedges In
addition, many companies make transactions In currencies
other than their reporting currencies for day-to-day
operations Such transactions also involve the risk of
exchange rate fluctuations We mitigate these transacuon
risks through hedging activities, however, 1t 1s not possible
to completely eliminate them

Furthermore, If we liquidate or sell a group subsidiary

which we acquired In a currency other than Japanese yen
or impair a substantial value of such a subsidiary, the gain
or loss from the transaction includes the currency fluctuation
impact Specifically, the impact comes from the difference
In the exchange rates of the relevant currency against
Japanese yen at the time of the acquisition and at the

time of such transaction

Risk description and potential impact

Fluctuations of exchange rates sgainst Japanese yen affect
the JT Group’s reperted financial results Reported financial
resuiis of our iInternational 1obacco business in U S doliars
are similarly influenced by the fluctuations of exchange
rates aganstthe U S dollar In addition, we are exposed

to the exchange rate fluctuation risks when a group
company makes a transaction In a currency other

than tts reporting currency

Measures to address the risk

* Mitigate the risk through hedging activities such as
derivative contracts, possession of interest bearing debts
in a foreign currency etc

Operattons & Analysis

9. Competition
The JT Group 1s competing fiercely 1n both domestic
and international tobacco business with our competitors

In the overseas tobacco markets, the JT Group expanded
its business organically as well as through M&A, by
acquirnng the non-U S tobacco operations of RJR Nabisco
Inc and thereafter acquinng Gallaher Ltd As a result, we
are In competition with global players in the international
tobacco business or with local competitors with strength
m specific markets

In the Japanese domestic tobacco market, import of
1obacco products was dereguiated in Y985, followed by
the provisional suspension of custom duties on imported
tobacco in 1987 Since then, compettion has intensified
each year, as smokers’ preferences diversify and as our
competitors pursue aggressive promaotonal achivities

Market share can fluctuate due to a number of factors,
including change in smokers' preferences or changes to
economic conditions of each market It can also fluctuate
from competitors’ pricing strategies or strength of brand
equity Moreover, market share can fluctuate in the short
term due to new product launches by each rmarket player
and the accompanying promotional activities

Risk description and potential impact

Fluctuation of our market share may affect the JT Group
business performance in additon, pnce competiion
(price reductions or brand repositioning, ameng others)
atmed at increasing market share, may negatively affect
our profit margins

Measures to address the risk
» Optimize our product portfolio by
— developing and providing products that can
capture changing consumer preferences and needs
— placing brands with strong brand eguity in each
price category
* Provide product support by enhancing trade marketing
capability and effective promgotional initiatives
» Further improve effictency to protect revenue and earnings
» Avoid overdependence on a small number of markets
as sources of profits by expanding the pool of highly
profitable markets
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JT Group and Sustainability

Our approach to sustainabiity 1s underpimned by our management principles known as the "45" model This provides us
with a framework to balance the concerns and expectations of consumers, shareholders, employees and wider society,
always with a view to fulfiling our responsibiliies towards these stakeholders We believe that pursuing this model
enhances corporate value and helps us to meet and exceed stakeholders’ interest in the most balanced way possible

Summartzed below 1s an overview and topics for 2015 If you wish to learn more about our approach and commitment

to sustainability or specific programs, JT Group Sustainability Report FY2014° 1s currently available on JT Group website
The FY2015 report will be avatlable on our website in June 2016 This report will be compiled in accordance with the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidetines ‘Core’ level

JT Group Sustainabiity Report and GRI G4 index www |t com/csifreport/index html

Contents

Qur sustainability
journey

Overview and topics for 2015

JT Group Matenality Assessment

In 2015, we carried out our first
materality assessment covering the
entire JT Group, bulding on the work
done by our International tobacco
business last year The process began
by conducting a media and peer review,
which generated 31 sustainability
topics of relevance These were then
calibrated through discussions with
operational managers in the business

We then held interviews with 15

JT Group 1op management, followed
by talks with 17 external stakeholders
who included supphers, shareholders,
trade unions, NGOs, and industry
organizations Finally we held a
workshop with aforementioned 15

JT Group top management including
cur CEQ to validate the matenality
assessment results

This process allowed us to arnve at a
final st of 22 matenal 1ssues ranked
by level of mportance to the JT Group
and our external stakeholders — see
matrix on the right

In the future we waill regularly carry
out a matenality assessment with
stakeholders This will help us to
monitor any changes in matenality
and to update the hst if necessary
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Qur peopie

Our way of doing Qur
business

¢ Environmental mpacts of products
* Workplace health and salety

* Environment

» Tax practices

* Contributions to society

* Being a responsible amployer

* Anti-competitive behavior

= Collaborations and partnerships

* Information security

Importance to external stakeholders

Qur planet

pharmaceutical
business

Qur contribution
to society

Qur
processed
food business

= Liigation

= Responsible marketing

+ Equality and diversity in the workplaca

= Political and regulatory
decision-making processes

* lllegal trade

= Anti-bribery and corruption

* Employee development
and talent management

Supply chain managemant

In 2015 our international tobacco business began
work on developing an IT-based supplier Iife cycle
management system that will enable assessment
of all our non-leaf supphers for the first ime with
differant levels of certification based on supplier
nsk profiles

Agricultural tabor practices {ALP}

Qur ALP defines minimum requizements for directly
contracted farmers on preventing and eliminating
child labor respecting waorkers nghts and applying
health and safety measures at the workplace ALP
plans to cover 100% of our directly contracted
farmers by 2018 From 2016 we will extend the
seopa of ALP 1o cover all third party tobaceo leaf
supphers by 2019
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Respecting human nghts

In 2015 we began work on drafting a JT Group
Human Rights Policy that will align with the UN
Guiing Principles on Business and Human
Rights The Policy which 1s being developed in
consultation with stakeholders will formalize and
detall our commitmant to respect human nights in
our value chain and will be launched in 2018

Child taber prevention

We have the ARISE program which aims to
acdress roots causes of child labor in tobacco
growing The program which covers Braail
Malawi Zambia, and, from 2015 Tanzania, tackles
social and economic factors that tempt farmers 1o
employ children
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Diversity and Inclusion

JT Group believes that respecting dversity not only in terms of people’s gender, age and natienality but also in terms of therr
backgrounds and values, including personality, experience and expertise, and finding value in differences will lead to our

sustainable growth

Accepting and respecting diversity

To enhance our business competitiveness and capability
to respond 1o changes, we place emphasis on being an
organization that creates value by taking advantage of
diversity To create an organizatron that takes advantage
of diversity, we provide opportunities for employees to
share and discuss diverse values and implement training
programs for managers to learn about leadership that
utilizes diverse personnel and changes in working style
and lifestyle values

Gender Diversity

In Japan, as part of the effort to promote diversity and
inclusion, we are engaged in taking positive actions for
female employees We provide growth opportunities by
introducing role models or networking opportunities We also
organize training programs and seminars as well as a better
framework for balancing one's career and personal life
Moreover, we facilitate various training programs for
managers In understanding ways of commurnication or,
understanding different pragrams and schemes available in
conjunction with one’s life event These initiatives are aimed
at supporting a diverse range of career optons, sutable to
the indmvidual female employees
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Corporate Governance

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision

Corporate Governance at JT

We have enhanced our corporate governance, based on
our belief that it 1s the means for conducting transparent,
fair, tmely and decisive decision-making for pursuing

JT's management principle, the “4S model” Specifically
the 45 model aims “to balance the interests of consumers,
shareholders, employees and the wider socety, and fulfill
our responsibiliies towards them, aming to exceed

their expectations ”

Initiatives to enhance corporate governance

Rigorous supervisory and advisory function

Quality and prompt decision-making

We have set out the "JT Corporate Governance Policies”
and continuously strive t© make enhancements based

on our belief that it will enable us 10 achreve mid- to
long-term sustainable profit growth and increase corporate
value, which will contribute to the development of our
group’s stakeholders and eventually the economic society
as a whole

The "JT Corporate Governance Pclicies” 1s avallable at

https //iwww jt com/investors/at_a_glance/governanceQi/
index himl

Efficient business execution

Set up the Compliance Committee FY2000

Reduced number of directors FY2000

Introduced executive officer system FY2001

Set up the Advisory Committee FY2001

Promote the delegation of business exacurtion 1o the executve officers FY2000, FY2008 and FY2011

Set up the Compensation Advisory Panel FY2006  Invited outside directors FY2012

* Abolition of tha Adwisory Commuttee on Juna 30 2014

Our corporate governance system

Generzl Meating of Shareholders

Salecton or dismissal of members

Accounting
audit

Selection or dismissal of mambers Selacuon or disrmussal of members

Audit Report Accounting aud/Operating audit
Introduction of comphance-related matters
Report seven members four members
{including two — g Oncluding two oulside
outsida directors) [ Group] Audit & Supervisory
Beard members)

[Comphancel

NN

five members
{including three
outskde mambers)

Enchuding twa outsida

directors snd wo cutside

Audnt & Supervisory
Board members}

Accountng audivOperating audit
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General Meeting of Shareholders

A general meeting of shareholders resolves the matters
stipulated by law and our Articles of Incorporation Under
the Companies Act, certain matters are required to be
resolved at a shareholder meeting including, most notably,
the appointment and dismissal of the directors, audit &
supervisory board members and external accounting
auditors, dividend amount, loss compensation, as well as
change in the Arucles of Incorporatiton Qur Articles of
Incorporation do not stipulate any additional matter to be
resclved at our shareholders’ meeting other than matters
legally required The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
1s held in March, and a special meeting of shareholders shall
be called by the Board of Directors, as necessary The
President chairs the shareholders’ meetings

Within the extent as permitted by law, requirements for
resolutions at our shareholders’ meeting were lowered

by amending our Articles of Incorporation A resclution

at a general meeting of shareholders can be adopted by

a majority of the voting rnights present or represented

at the meeting A resolution for the appointment of the
Company's director and audit & supervisory board members
additionally require a quorum, which is one-third of the total
number of voting nights A special resolution as stipulated
under Section 2, Article 309 of the Companies Act, such

as amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, requires

the quorum of one-third of the total number of voting rights
and the approval of at least two-thirds of the voting nights
present or represented at the meeting Certain matters
resolved at our shareholders’ meetings need further
approvat by the Minister of Finance in Japan
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The Japan Tobacco Inc. Act

JT was estabhished pursuant to the Japan Tobacco, Inc

Act ("the JT Act”) for the purpose of managing businesses
related to the manufactuning, sale and imports of tobacco
products The JT Act provides that the Government of
Japan must continue to hold over one-third of all of the
1ssued shares except for the class shares, which have no
voting right against all matters that can be resolved at our
shareholders’ meeting The JT Act also states that the
1ssuance of new shares and stock acquisiton rights requires
the approval of the Minister of Finance in the case of a
share-for-share exchange, the same approval is required for
issuance of new shares, stock acquisition nghts and bonds
with stock acquisition nghts Under the JT Act, subject to
the approval by the Minister of Finance, JT 1s allowed to
engage In businesses other than manufacturing, sales and
imperts of tobacco products or tobacco-related business,
provided that our engagement in such businesses serves
the purpose of the Company JT 1s also required to obtain
approval from the Mimister of Finance for certain matters,
including the appointment or dismissal of directors and
audit & supervisory board members as well as amendment
to our Articles of Incorporation, distribution of surplus
(excluding loss compensation), merger, corporate split, and
dissolution In addition, within three months after the end
of each fiscal year, we are required to issue a statement of
financial positron, a statement of income, and a business
report to the Minister of Finance

The supplementary provisions of the Reconstruction
Financing Act*, which came into effect on December 2,
2011 states that the Government shall study by the year
ending March 31, 2023 the possibility of full disposal of
government-owned JT shares by reassessing the
Government's holding in JT shares considering the
Government’s involvement in the tobacco-related
industnes based on the Tobacco Business Act

* Act on Special Measures for Securing Financsal Resaurces Necessary
for Recanstruction from the Great East Japan Earthquake
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Corporate Governance confinued
Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision continued

The Board of Directors The directors markad
The Board of Directors assumes responsibility in making with * are afso the
decisions for important issues including the Group strategy "™ oteer
as well as supervising all the activities of the Group In view

of the paint that the Board of Directors determines
Company-wide managerent strategy and important
matters and effectively assumes roles and responsibilities
as the body exercising supervision over all business
activities, the concept concerning the composition

of the Board of Directors shall be set forth as follows

* The number of Members of the Board in the Board of
Drectors shall be fifteen (15} or less, within necessary and
appropriate scope, composed of diverse people with a
high-integrity sense of ethics as professionals, knowledge,
experience and skills

¢ JT shall appoint two (2) or more independent outside
Members of the Board with qualities that will contribute
to its sustainable profit growth and increase of corporate
value in the mid- 1o long-term from the viewpoint of
strengthening supervisory functions and transparency
of business

A board meeting, in principle, 1s held every month and

a special board meeting may be called, as necessary

The Board of Directors decides those matters required

to be resolved by the Board of Directors under the
Companies Act, such as important business plans, disposal
or acquisiion of important assets, significant amount of
borrowings, conclusion of important agreements For the
purpose of supervising the Company’s activities, the Board
of Directors requires directors to deliver a report on the
progress of operations at least on a quarterly basis In year
ended December 2015, we had 18 board meetings to
discuss important issues including the management plan

Members - 7 including two independent
outside directors)
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Yasutake Tangoc
Chairman of the Board

Date of birth March 21, 1951
Term of office 2 years since
March 2016

Number of shares held i 700

Apnl 1974
Entered Mimistry of Finance

October 2006
Director General of the Financial Bureau

July 2007
Deputy Vice Minister

July 2008
Diractor General of the Budgset Bureau

July 2009
Administrative Vice Minister

July 2010
Retired Irom the office of Adrministrative Vice
Mirmster

December 2010
Corporate Auditor The Yormun Shimbun Holdings

December 2012
Special Advisor to the Cabinet

Apnl 2014
Retred from Special Advisor to the Cabinet

June 2014
Charrman of the Board (Current Position)

Significant Concurrent Positions vutside
the Company
Outside Director, The Ogak: Kyonitsu Bank Ltd



Mitsuomi Koizumi’

Fresident, Chief Executive Officer
and Representative Director

Date of birth Apni 15, 1957
Term of office 2 years since
March 2016

Number of shares held 26 300

Apnl 1981
Joired the Company {(Japan Tobacco and Salt
Pubiic Corporation}

Junae 2001
Vice Presidant of Corporate Planning Diisian

Junse 2003
Senior Vice President and Head of Human
Resources and Labor Relations Group

June 2004

Serior Vice President, and Vice President of
Tobaceo Business Planning Division Tobacco
Business Headquarters

June 2006

Executive Vice President and Vice President of
Tobacce Business Planning Division Tabacco
Business Headquarters

June 2007

Member of the Board Exacutive Vice President
and Head of Marketing & Sates General Division
Tobacco Business Headquarters

July 2007

Member of the Board Executive Vige President
and Chief Marketung & Sales Officer Tobacco
Business Headguarters

June 2009
Representative Director and Executive
Deputy President

June 2012
President Chref Executive Officer and
Representative Director (Current Position)

Yasushi Shingai”

Executive Vice President
and Representative Director

Date of birth January 11, 1956
Term of office 2 years since
March 2016

Number of shares held 25,300

April 1980
Joinad the Company (Japan Tobacco and Salt
Public Corporation)

Jduly 2001
Vice President of Financia! Planning Dwision

June 2004
Seniar Vice President Head of Finance Group

July 2004
Senior Vice President Chief Financial Gfficer

June 2005
Member of the Board Senior Vice President and
Chief Financal Officer

June 2006
Member of the Board Executve Vice President JT
international S A

June 2011
Executive Vice President and Representalive
Orector (Currant Position)

Sgnificant Concurrent Pasittons outside
the Company
Qutside Director Recrunt Heldings Co  Ltd
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Mutsuo lwai

Executive Vice President
and Representative Director

Date of airth October 29 1960

Term of otfice 2 years since
March 2016

Number of share held 13,800

Apnl 1983
Joined the Company (Japan Tobacco and Salt
Public Corparation)

June 2003
Vice President of Corporate Planning Division

July 2004
Vice President of Corporate Swategy Division

June 2005
Seror Vice Prasident and Vice President of Food
Business Division Food Business

June 2006
Member of the Board, Executive Vice President
and President Food Business

June 2008
Exacutive Vica Prasident and Chief Strategy Officer

June 2010

Member of the Board Senior Vice President
and Chief Strategy Officer and Assistant 1o CEQ
in Food Business

June 2011
Member of the Board
Executive Vice Presidert JT Internauonal 5 A

June 2013
Seniar Executive Vice President and Chief
Srrategy Ctficer

January 2016
Senior Executive Vice President, and President
Tobaceo Business Headquarters

March 2016
Executive Vice President and Representative
Director {Current Pasition}

Sigmficant Concurrent Positions outside
the Company
Chairman JT Internauonal Group Hoiding BV
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Corporate Governance contrnued

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision continued

-l

Hideki NMiyazaki’

Executive Vice President, Member
of the Board

Date of birth January 22 1958
Term of office 2 years since
March 2016

Number of shares held 4,300

Apnl 1980
Joined Nomura Securities Co  Ltd

July 2005
Semor Manager of Accounting Division
of the Company

January 2006
Deputy Chief Financial Officer

June 2008
Serniar Vice Presidant and Chief Financial Officer

June 2010
Executive Vice Prasident and Chief Financial Officer

June 2012
Executive Vice Prasident Member of the Board
{Current Position)

The directors marked with * are also the
exocuiive officers

N\ |

Motoyuki Oka
Member of the Board {Qutsicle director)

Date of birth September 15 1943
Term of office 2 years since
March 2016

Number of shares held 0

April 1966
Joined Surmtomo Corparation

June 1994
Directar Sumitomo Corporation

Apnl 1998
Managing Director Sumitomo Corporation

Apnl 2001
Semor Managing Director, Sumitomo Corporation

June 2001
President and CEQ Sumitorno Corporation

June 2007
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Sumstomo
Corporation

June 2012
Adwisor, Surmitomo Cerporation {Current Position)
Qutside Director of the Company {Current Position)

Significant Concurrent Positions outside
the Company
Qutside Director NEC Corparation
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Main Kohda
Member of the Board (Qutside director)

Date of birth Apnl 25 1951
Term of office 2 years since
March 2016

Number of shares held 0

September 1995
Started independently as Novalist {Current Posibon)

January 2003
Member of Financial System Council, Ministry
of Finance Japan

Aprd 2004
Visiing professor, Faculty of Economics
Shiga University

March 2005

Member of the Council for Transport Palicy
Ministry of Land, Infrastructure Transport
and Tourism

November 2006
Member of the Tax Commussion, Cabinet Difice
Government of Japan

June 2010
Member of the Board of Governors Japan
Broadcasting Corporation

June 2012
Outside Director of the Company {Current Position)

Significant Concurrent Positions outside
the Company

Novehst

Qutside Diractor LIXIL Group Corporation



The Audit & Supervisory Board

Entrusted by shareholders and ensured of its autonomy,

the Audit & Supervisory Board conducts accounting audits
as well as operating audns Currently, we have four audit

& supervisory board members including two independent
outside audit & supervisory board members Collectively,
they have expenience In management, legal, finance and
accounting among other areas Audit & supervisory

board members have various statutory nights in order

to accomplish therr roles and responsibilities, including
making requests to deliver reports to the directors, executive
officers and employees, 1ssuing an njunction to prevent
illegal actwities by directors, and representing the Company
In case of litigation between any director and the Company
In addimion, the Audit & Supervisory Board has a night to
dismiss the auditing firm which conducts accounting audit
The Audit & supervisory board members' report containing
the results of both the accounting and operating audits I1s
submitted to the annual general meeting of shareholders

If directors and executive officers find any 1ssue that may
cause a substantial damage to the Company, they are
obliged to report it to the Audit & Superwisory Board, along
with other relevant matters that could affect the Company
Audit & supervisory board members are authorized to attend
the meetings of the Board of Directors ang other important
meetings Our directors and executive officers respond in a
prompt and appropriate manner, when requested by audit

& supervisory board members to deliver documents for their
Inspection, to arrange field audits and to submit reports The
Operational Review and Business Assurance Division, which
conducts internal audits, as well as the Compliance Office,
exchanges necessary information and works together with
audit & supervisory board members

Members - 4 (including two iIndependent
outside audit & supervisory
board members)
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Futosh: Nakamura

Standing Audit & Supernsory Board
Members

Date of birth November 23, 1957
Term of office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 4,800

Apnt 1931
Joined the Company {Japan Tobacco and Salt
Public Corporation)

July 2004
Head of Procurement Planning Division

September 2005

Senior Manager of Operational Review and
Business Assurance Division JT Interrational
Holding BV Vice President

July 2008
Semor Manager of Accounting Division

July 2010
Head of Operational Review anc Business
Assurance Dwision

June 2012
Standing Audit & Supervisory Board Members
the Company (Current Position)




Corporate Governance conttnuerd

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision continued

-

Tomotaka Kopma

Standing Audit & Superviscry Board
Members

Date of birth December 19, 1963
Term of office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 0

Aprnl 1976
Entered Ministry of Finance

July 2000
Drrector General of the Fukucka Local Finance
Branch Bureau

July 2002
Deputy Head of Finance Group of the Company

July 2004

Deputy Diregtor-General of Employee
Weifare Bureau, General Secretariat
National Personnel Authority

Apnl 2007
Deputy Director-General of Generat Secretanat,
National Parsonnel Authority

January 2008
Director General of Equity and Investigatian Bureau
General Secretanat of Nauonal Personnel Authority

August 2009
Commussianer National Hospital Organization

November 2010
Executive Secretary Japan Association
of Corporata Directors

June 2013
Standing Audit & Supervisory Board Members
tha Company {Current Position)

052

4

@ —

Yoshinon imai
Audit & Supervisory Board Members

(Outside Audit & Supervisory Board
Members)

Date of birth December 3 1944
Term of office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 700

Apnl 1968
Joined Japan Broadcasting Corporation

June 1985
Bureau Chief of General Bureau for Europe
Japan Broadcastung Corporation

May 2000
Director General Planning & Broadcasting
Department Japan Broadcasting Corporat:on

June 2003
Executive Editor and Programme Host
Japan Breadcasting Corporation

January 2008
Executve Vice President Japan Broadcasting
Corporation

January 2011
Retred from Executive Vice President
Japan Broadcasting Corporation

Apnl 2011
Visiting Professor Ritsumeikan University
{Current Position}

June 2011
Audit & Supervisory Board Members
the Company (Current Position)
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Hiroshi Obayashi

Audit & Supervisary Board Members
(Outside Audit & Supervisory Board
Members)

Date of birth June 17 1947
Term cf office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 0

Apr) 1970
Judicial Apprentice

April 1972
Appointed as Public Prosecutor

May 2001
Director-General of the Rehabilitation Bureau
Ministry of Justice

January 2002
Deputy Vice-Miruster of Justice Ministry of Justice

June 2004
Direclor-General of the Criminal Affairs Bureau
Mimstry of Justice

June 2006
Vice-Minister of Justice Ministry of Justice

July 2007
Superintending Prosecutor Sapporo High Public
Prosecutors Office

July 2008
Supsnintenging Prosecutor Tokya High Public
Prosecutors’ Office

June 2010
Prosecutor-General

December 2010
Retired from the office of Prosecutor-General

March 2011
Registered as Attorney at Law

March 2015
Audit & Supervisory Board Members
the Company {Current Position)

Significant Concurrent Posmions outside
the Company

Antorney a1 Law Obayashi Law Office

Quiside Audit & Supervisory Board Member
Damva Secuntes Co Ltd

Qutside Director Mutsubishi Electric Corporation
Qutside Audit & Supervisory Board Member
NIPPDN STEEL & SUMITOMO METAL
CORPORATION




Independence of Qutside Directors and Outside Audit
& Supervisory Board Members

JT reports to the securities exchanges on which it Is Iisted
that the two outside directors and two outside audit &
supervisory board members are designated as independent
executives We have a criteria list to assess the independence
of an executive Based on the critena, the independence of
the four executives has been confirmed Motoyuki Oka, Main
Kohda, Yoshinon imai and Hiroshi Obayashi, who are outside
directors and outside audit & supervisory board members,
serve as members of the Compensation Advisory Panel

Cniteria list for independence of an executive
A person who fits any of the following descriptions 1S not
designated as an independent executive

1 A person who belongs or belonged to JT or an associate
or sister company of JT

2 A person who belongs to a company or any other form
of organization of which JT s a major shareholder

3 A person who 1s a major shareholder of JT or who
belongs to a company or any other form of orgamzation
which 1s a major shareholder of JT

4 A person who 1s a major supplier or customer of JT
(if the supplier or customer 1s a company or any other
form of organization, a person who belongs thereto}

5 A major creditor of JT including a8 major loan fender
(if the creditor 1s a company or any other form of
organization, a person who belongs thereto)

8 A certified public accountant who serves as an accounting
auditor or an audit adwvisor of JT, or a person who belongs
to an auditing firm which serves as an accounting auditor
or an audrt adwvisor of JT

7 A person who receives a large amount of fees from JT
in exchange for providing professional services for legal,
financial and tax affairs or business consulting services
{if the recipient of such fee 1s a company or any cther
form of orgaruzation, a person whao belongs thereto)

8 A person who receves a large amount of donation from
JT (if the recipient of such donauon 1s a company or any
other form of orgarnization, a person who belongs thereto)

S A person who has fit any of the descriptions n 2to 8
above In the recent past

r66rpomta Information

10 A close relative of a person who fits any of the
following descriptions

{a) A person who fits any of the descripttons n 2 to 8
above (If such descnptions apply to a company or
any other form of organization, a person who
performs important duties therecf)

{b) A director, audit & supervisory board member, audit
adwvisor, executive officer or employee of JT or an
associate or sister company of JT

() A person who has fit the descriptions in (a) or (b)

In the recent past

Support for Qutside Directors and Qutside

Audit & Supervisory Board Members

We provide supports to cutside directors and outside

audit & supervisory board members The Corporate Strategy
Dwviston or Secretary Division explains the agendas for board
meetings N advance, submits requested documents and
delivers necessary information to outside directors for them
to contribute to the quality of board discussion As an
independent body entrusted by shareholders, the Audit &
Supervisory Board 1s expected to moritor the performance
of the directors and execuuve officers, with an aim to
underpin the Company's healthy and sustainable growth as
well as increase its credibiity For outside audit & supervisory
board members to perform their expected roles, we are
supporting them by making necessary information available
and allocating adequate human resources to the Auditor
Otfice which assists audit & supervisory board members

Executive Officer System

JT employs the Executive Officer System to ensure effective
and efficient management by promptly responding to the
changing environment, and thus aims to Increase its
company valug Execuuve officers are appointed by the
Board of Directors At the same time, the board assigns
certain responsibilities and delegates relevant authorities to
the executive officers in accordance with the Rules Defining
the Extent of Responsibdity and Authonty In addition, we
have the structure for quick decision-making and high-quality
implementation of business about plan and strategy relevant
10 all business execution except the matters which are
submitted to the Board of Drectars This structure has

been established by an articulate decision-making process
based on the Rules Defining the Extent of Responsibility
and Authority

Please refer to page 66 for the st of Executive Officers

JAPAN TOBACLO ING ANNUAL RFPORT 2015 053




Corporate Governance conftnued
Internal Control System & Risk Management System

Overview

JT devotes its efforts to ensure appropnate business operation by reinforcing internal control such as compliance, internal
audit and nsk management among other matters The developments of these internal control focuses are reported regularly
to the Board of Directors In addiion, we have the Auditor Office, a department dedicated to support the Audit &
Supervisory Board, for our audit & supervisory board members to effectively perform their duties Collaboration among the
Group companies is encouraged to strengthen the framework for compliance (which includes the internal consultation and

reporting), reliable financial reporting, internal audit and nsk management

Internal control framework

The Board of Directors

Repaortng

Fnancialnsice]

CreaiTexposuTol

Comphance
A Code of Conduct has been created based on our
internal guidelines approved by the Board of Directors

Under the Code of Conduct, all directors and employees

are expected to fully comply with applicable laws,
our Articles of Incorporation, social norms and other
compliance standards In addition, the Board of
Directors has established a fair and effective
comphance framework as described below

* Set up the JT Group Compliance Committee, which
reviews and discusses compliance related matters,
then directly reporis to the Board of Directors

* Assign responsibility for compliance to a Director

* Assign responsibility for compliance to an Executive
Cfficer without directorship

» Agsess and approve the Compliance Policy
as well as the Compliance Implementation Plan

* Review the implemented cormpliance mitiatives

The Compliance Office 1s in charge of improving the
comphance framework, while identifying any 1ssue In
the framework The Comphance Office also promotes
comphance by offering traming programs 10 Directors
and employees

Monitonng

The JT Group has both internal and external hotlines
through which employees may consult or report any
misconduct they suspect to be taking place The
Compliance Office 1s responsible for investigating consulted
or reported cases and implementing Group-wide measures
to prevent the recurrence of misconduct after discussing it
with the divisions concerned Matenal cases are reviewed
by the JT Group Cormpliance Committee, and further
reported to the Board of Directors as necessary

The JT Group Compliance Committee 1s headed by the
Chairman, and external members comprise the majonity
The JT Group Compliance Committee met three times In

the year ended December 31, 2015, and discussed initiatives
to strengthen compliance throughout the Group among
other matters
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Reliable financial reporting

in order 10 ensure the reliability of its financial reporting,
JT has introduced a relevant internal control system in
accordance with the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Act and cther standards In addition, a dedicated division
has been created which reviews the internal control system
and reporis the result of the assessment Reliability of our
financial reporting 1s confirmed by the external accounting
auditor who makes an assessment of our internal controt
system based on the Internal Control Report prepared

by us

Risk management

Financial sk management

JT has put in place the mternal guidelines for financial nsk
management The executive officer in charge updates the
status of financial risks together with the countermeasures
agamst these risks Meanwhile, these nisks and the
countermeasures against them are reported to CEOQ

and the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis

Cnisis management and disaster control

In order 10 deal with possible crises or disasters, JT has
produced a manual for crisis management and disaster
control so that we can make a proper initial response

In the event of a crisis or a disaster, a project team led

by the President 1s immediately assembled In the project
team, the Corporate Strategy Division assumes the key
role to support the President Under the leadership of the
President, we respond promptly and properly, ensuring
close cooperation across the organization Crisis or disaster
incidents shall be reported to the Board of Directors

Management of other risks

In accordance with the Rules Defining the Extent of
Responsibility and Authonty, management of other
risks is delegated to relevant divisions, which identify
and monitor the risks in their areas of responsibility
Significant risks are reported to CEO, together with the
request for approval to implement countermeasures
against them, where necessary

Please refer to page 40 for our risk factors

Corporate Information

Internal audit system

JT has an Operational Review and Business Assurance
Dwision, which 1s thoroughly independent of other JT Group
divisions and organizations engageng in operations Under
such a capacity, it conducts internal audits and directly
reports to the President The Operationa! Review and
Business Assurance Division has uniimited access to

all actrvitigs, records and employees Group-wide to
accomplish its roles and responsibilities The head of the
division 1s required to report to the President the results of
internal audits along with their analysis and assessment,
and also reports to the Board of Directors The head of the
division has the nght to contact the management of JT and
the Group companies regularly and as frequentiy as needed
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Corporate Governance continued

Executive Remuneration

Overview

Remuneration for our directors 1s determined by resolution
at the Board of Directors, taking into account discussion
at the Compensation Advisory Panel Remuneration for
our audit & supervisory board members 1s determined
through the deliberations of the Audit & Supervisory
Board The aggregate remuneration of directors and
audt & supervisory board members cannot exceed

the respective cellings approved at a general meeting

of shareholders In determining remuneration, we refer
to research management remuneration ¢onducted by

a third party, and benchmark Japanese manufacturing
companies operating globally with a scale or profit
comparable with ours

The Compensation Advisory Panel

The Compensation Advisory Panel has been established

as an advisory body to the Board of Orectors with an aim

to increase the objectiveness and transparency of cur
executive remuneration The Compensation Adwisory

Panel comprises the Chairman, two outside directors and
two outside audit & supervisory board members Upon
request, the Panel reviews and provides advice on the policy,
framework and calculation method for remuneration of our
directors and executive officers It also monitors whether our
executive remuneration level 1s reasonable During the past
fiscal year, the Compensation Advisory Panel met twice to
discuss the level of remuneration among other matters

Based on the recommendation by the Compensation
Adwisory Panel, the key policy for our executive
remuneration 1s as follows

* Set the remuneration at an adequate level 10 retain
personnel with supenor capabilities

* Link the remuneration to company perfermance so as to
motivate executives to achieve ther performance targets

* Link the remuneration to company value in the mid- to
long-term

¢ Ensure transparency by implementing an objective and
quantitative framework

Structure of executive remuneration

In accordance with the above policy, remuneration for
our executive comprises (1) “base salary” paid monthly,
(2) “executive bonus” linked to our business performance
In the relevant year, and (3) “stock option grants”, the
value of which 1s inked to our mid- to long-term company
value In 2007, JT introduced a stock option program as
an incentive inked 1o the mid- to long-term company
value The Compantes Act requires a special resofution

at a shareholders” meeting If stock options are granted
under particularly advantageous terms or at particularly
advantageous prices This 1s not the case with our stock
optien program, as our stock options are compensation
for the executives who perform their duties, and the
options are granted m exchange for certain considerations

Remuneration for the directors and audit & supervisory
board members are structured as follows

Remuneration for the directors who also serve as executive
officers comprises “base salary”, “executive bonus” and
“stock option grants” “Executive bonus” i1s included, as
they are responsible for the achievement of assigned annual

targets through their day-to-day management

As for the president or each executive deputy president,

the combined amount of “executive bonus” at a 100%

grant basis and “stock option grants” Is targeted at shghtly
less than B0% of respective annual base salary The same
scheme 1s introduced to set “executive bonus” and “stock
option grants” for other directors, while the combined
amount 1s targeting approximately 70% of respective annual
base salary Excluding outside directors, remuneration for the
directors not serving as executive officers compnses “base
salary” and "stock option grants”, as they focus on decision-
making on the Group strategies in addition to supervision of
business and corporaie activiies Remuneration for outside
directors consists solely of “base salary” and does not
include performance linked compensation from the
perspective of sustaining their independence

Remuneration for the audit & supervisory beard members
15 also composed of “"base salary” alone, in ight of their key
responsibility to conduct audits

The maximum amount of the annual aggregate remuneration
excluding "stock option grants” for the directors and audit

& supervisory board members was approved at our 22nd
Annual General Sharehotders’ Meeting in June 2007 The
maxirmum remuneration for all the directors combined 15
¥870 mulion and ¥190 million for all the audit & supervisory
board members combined In addition, the celling for annual
“stock option grants” for the directors was approved at the
same shareholders’ meeting The ceiling 1s 800 options in
number and ¥200 million in value The number of the stock
oplions granted to the directors and the execuuve officers
who are not directors 1S decided each year by the Board

of Directors

056 JAPAN 1OBACCO INC ANNUAI RFPORT 2015




[ Caorporate liformation
T

’a

The remuneration payments io the directors and audit & supervisory board mernbers for the year ended December 2015
are as follows

Total amount of remuneration and other payments by type
Total remuneration  {million yen)

anc other payments Stock option Number to be pad
Catagory {million yen} Basic remuneration Director s bonus® grants? {people}
Directors (excluding Outside Directors) 890 327 189 174 6
Audit & Supervisory Board member (excluding
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board members} 72 72 ~ - 2
Outside Directors and Qutside Audit &
. Supervisory Board members 54 54 - - 5
Total 816 453 189 174 13

1 Amounts io be paid
2 Total amounts granted for the year ended Decembar 2015

The remuneration payments to the directors and the audnt & supervisory board members whose total remuneration exceeds
¥100 mutlion for the year ended December 2015 are as follows

Amount of consclidated remuneration and other payments
by type {mithon yen)

Stock option
Nama Category Company Basic remuneration Diractor 5 bonus grants Total {mulhon yen}
Mitsuornt Keizum Representative Director  JT B1 65 43 190
Yasushi Shingai Representative Director JT 48 37 26 110
Nonaki Okubo Representative Director JT 45 3 24 104

The stock options granted for the year ended December 2015 are as follows

. Resolution date July 17 2015

Positions and number of people grants Directors (exciuding outside Directors) six persons
Executive officers {excluding persons serving as Directors) 18 persons

Number of shares 43,000 shares to Directors (excluding cutside Directors)
66,200 shares to Executive officers {excluding persons serving as Directors)
Total 115,200 shares (200 shares per stock acquisition night)
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History of the JT Group
Before 1985

JT's astory m Japan dates back to 1898, when the
Government formed a monopoly bureau to operate

the exclusive sale of domestic tobacco leaf

The JT Group's overseas history began with the founding
of Austna Tabak 1n 1784 Roughly 70 vears later, Tom
Gallaher started out in business in Northern Ireland,
laying the foundations for the Gallaher Group Meanwhile,
R J Reynolds Tobacco Co (RJR), which would subsequently
create the Camel and Winston brands, was established in
1874 in the U S In this manner, the current JT Group can
trace Its ongins to many different countnes and regions
such as Austria, Northern Ireland, the U S and Japan

The JT Group has a long history and extensive experience
tn the tobacco business

History in Japan from the early 20th century to 1984,
when the Japan Tobacco Inc. Act was enacted.

Our history in Japan dates back tc 1898, when the
Government formed a menopoely bureau to undertake the
exclusive sale of domestic leaf tobacco In the early 1900s,
the Japanese government extended this monopoly to all
tobacco products in Japan and to the domestic salt
business On June 1, 1949, the bureau was established and
duly named the Japan Tobacco and Salt Public Corporation,
or JTS This corporation helped to ensure the stable supply
of tobacco and secure fiscal revenues for the Government

The growth in demand for cigarettes in Japan began to
slow in the mid-1970s as a result of demographic trends
and growing concern about health risks associated with
smoking This trend continued, such that growth in industry
sales essentially stopped In addition to the structural
change, the domestic tobacco market opened up
substantially to foreign suppliers, triggerng competition
between domestic and foreign tobacco products in Japan

Foreign countries stepped up pressure on.Japan to take
further measures to open the market that were difficult to
implement within the framework of the monopoly tobacco
sales systemn Amid such pressure as well as moves toward
the reform of Government-run public corporations, a
Government panel was established in March 1981 to
conduct research into the public corporation system

In its third report (July 30, 1982}, the panel proposed drastic
reform of the monopoly and public corporation systems

In response to this proposal, the Government conducted a
comprehensive review of these systems and drafted bills to

* Abolish the tobacce monopoly taw to hiberalize tobacco
imports and establish a tobacco business law to make
necessary adjustments related to the tobacco business
Abolish the JTS law, reorganize JTS as a joint stock
corporation so as to enable 1t 1o pursue rational corporate
management as much as possible and establish the
Japan Tobacco Inc Act, which provides for a necessary
minimum level of regulation in ight of the corporation’s
need to compete with foreign tobacco companies on
an equal footing In the domestic market following the
liberalization of tobacco imports

These bills were enacted on August 3, 1984 in the 101st
sesston of the Diet and promulgated on August 10 of the
same year In Apnl 1985, JT was founded as an entity that
took over the whole of the business operations and assets
of JTS
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JT is a joind stock corporation thal was imcorporated
m April 1985 under the Commercial Code of Japan,
pursuant to the Japan Tobacco Inc. Act, or the fT Act.
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History of the JT Group confinued
In and after 1985

The corporate history of JT 1s summarized In the table
to the nght For the international tobacco business,
the history before JT's acquisitons of RJR Nabisco's
non-US tobacco operations and Gallaher 1s included

The operating environment for JT changed drastically in
just two years after the foundation of the Company, with
the yen's strong appreciation following the Plaza Accord in
1985, a tobacco tax hike in 1986 and the abolition of tanffs
onsmporied cigarettes in 1987 Amid the yen's upsurge, a
price increase for JT products due to the tobacco tax hike,
coupled with price cuts for imported cigarettes attributable
to the tanff abolition, ehminated the price advantage of

JT products over imported products, which had stood

at around ¥60 to ¥80 when JT was founded in 1985 As

a result, competition between JT and foreign tobacco
makers intensified in the Japanese market, leading to

a decline in JT's market share from 87 6% in fiscal 1985

16 90 2% n fiscal 1987

To cope with the rapid deterioration of the operating
environment, JT mplemented rationalization measures

to enhance Its cost-competitiveness and pursued
diversification while taking measures 1o strengthen

its marketing capability In the 1990s, JT's competition
with foreign rivals in the Japanese market intensified further
Furthermore, overall cigarette demand in Japan peaked in
the latter half of the 1990s due to a contraction of the adult
population and growing concerns with health problems
assoctated with smoking Anmid the increasingly difficult
operating environment for the Japanese domestic tobacco
business, JT took additional rationahzation steps, pursued
consohdation of operations inits areas of business
diversification and expanded the international tobacco
business, thereby strengthening its business foundation

JT significantly strengthened the mternational tobacco
business by acquiring RJR Nabisco's non-U S tobacco
operatons In 1999 and Gallaher in 2007 Whth its international
sales volume exceeding its domestc sales volume, the

JT Group continues to grow as a global tobacco company
The mternational tobacco business ts the engine of the

JT Group s profit growth through its comprehensive brand
portfolio which includes Winston, Camel, Mild Seven —
MEVIUS and LD as well as Benson & Hedges, Silk Cut,
Sobranue and Glamour

* Tepics of RJR Nabisco s non US eperations betore paruicigating
s tha JT Group
** Topics of Gallaher before parncipating 1n the JT Group
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Regulation and Other Relevant Laws

Tobacco business

Regulation in the international markets

In international markets where JT Group's tobacco products
are sold, World Health Organization {WHO) adopted the
Framework Convention on Tobacco Control (“FCTC”) at its
56th World Health Assembly held in May 2003 It came into
force n February 2005 (Government of Japan accepted it in
June 2004)

Since then, there has been a rnising trend in regulations
regarding sales promotions, packages and ocuter wrappers,
marketing of iobacco products and smoking

The purpose of the FCTC 1s to continuously and
substantively control the proliferation of smoking

Its provisions include, among others, price and tax
measures to reduce tobacco demand, non-price measures
to reduce the demand for tobacco {such as protection from
exposure to tobacco smoke, regulation of contents and
ermissions of tobacco products, regulation of disclosure of
tobacco products, regulations on packaging and labeling
of tobacco products, regulations on tobacco advertising,
promotion and sponsorship, among others}), and measures
relating to the reduction of the supply of tobacco (such

as prevention of lllicit trade, prohibition of sale of tobacco
products to minors, among others) in addtion, descriptive
expressions such as “mild” and "l,ght” are stiputated

by some provisions as numerous steps are being taken
Moreover, in Novemnber 2012, the protocol 1o elminate
ilicit trade in tobacco products was adopted at the fifth
session of the Conference of the Parties As general
obligation, signateries to the protocol are to formulate,
adopt, penodically update and review strategies, plans
and programs for tobacco regulation However, the content,
scope and method of specific controls undertaken in these
nations are ultimately legislated by each respective nation

Regulation by country or region

In May 2014, the 'EU Tobacco Product Directive (EU TPDY
revised from the earher Directive promulgated in July 2001,
entered into force Thus revised Directive includes, among
others, strengthening of packaging and labeling regulations,
restactions on the use of additives including menthol for
cigarettes and fine cut, and regulatons related to electronic
cigarettes All EU member states are required to estabhish
therr domestic laws, regulations and ordinances to conform
the revised directive This revised Directive will be

implemented {except some measures such as prohibiting
menthol products) through legislation of each EU member
state by May 20016 Manufactunng of products which do not
comply with the rewsed directive will be prohibited from May
2016, and sale of such products prohibited from May 2017

One of the most notable regulations adopted recently 1s the
plain packaging legislation in Australia, the very first plain
packaging legislation was approved in 2011 and adopted in
December 2012 Since then, plain packaging legislation has
been passed n Ireland, and also in the UK, one of our key
markets In both countnes, manufactuning of non-compliant
products will be prohibited from May 2016 and sale of such
products prohibited from May 2017 Furthermore, plain
packaging legislation was approved tn France in January
2016 and several other countries are considening similar
legislation In the UK, laws including “Restrictions on the
in-store display of tobacco products” and “Ban on sale

of tobacco preducts through vending machines” are
already enforced

In Russia, another of our key markets, legislation was passed
in February 2013, which includes protection from exposure
to tobacco smoke and other matters related te tobacco
consumption The legislation came into effect, starting

from June 2013 and 1s being implemented in steps through
up to 2017 It contains @ number of provisions inciuding
display ban, restrictions on sales of tobacco products in
certain retall stores, ban on advertising, sponsorship and
promotions, introduction of mmimal pricing and ban on
smoking in public places

Although 1t 15 )mpossible to predict the content of future
laws, regulations and industry guidehines relating to sales
activines, marketing and smoking, the JT Group expects
regulations like the above and new regulations (including
those of local governmenits) to spread across Japan and
other countries where the group sells its products

Regulation in Japan

The Tobacco Business Act, related acts and statutes and
voluntary standards set forth the regulations for the sale
and promotion activities of tobacco products in Japan that
include the indication of warning labels on tobacco product
advertisements and packages that urge caution over the
relationship between the consumption of tobacco products
and health
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In November 2003, the Ordinance for Enforcement of the
Tobacco Business Act was revised including the wording of
the cautions over the relationship between the consumption
of tobacco products and health indicated on tobacco
product packages and, starting July 2005, all tobacco
products sold in Japan have been in conformity to the
revised regulations In addition, the Japanese Minister

of Finance has indicated a “Guideline for Advertising of
Tobacco Products” based on the Tobacco Business Act
whtch, in March 2004, was revised with tougher language
The Tobaceo Insuitute of Japan has established voluntary
standards regarding the advertising and sales promotion
activities for tobacco products All member cormpanies,
including JT, comply with these standards

Recently in Japan from the perspective of passive smoking
prevention, cases where smoking in public areas including

restaurants and cffice buildings has been restricted by laws
and regulations and the like are on the nse We expect this

trend to continue In the future

Tobacco Business Act

Importers and wholesalers of tobacco products must
register with the Minister of Finance and, retarlers of tobacco
products must obtain the icense of the Minister of Finance
The retailers of tobacco products are reguirad 1o sell the
tobacco products manufactured by JT and imported tobacco
products at the fixed retall price which i1s approved by the
Minister of Finance The Minister of Finance must approve
the filed retail sales prices unless otherwise considered
unfairly prejudicial to consumers The Tobacco Business

Act requires JT to annually enter inio purchase contracts
with tobacco growers regarding the aggregate cultivation
area for specific vareties of leaf tobacco and the prices for
leaf tobacco by varety and grade JT must purchase all leaf
tobacco produced pursuant to such contracts, except for any
not suited for the manufacture of tobacco products When
JT decides the aggregate cultivaticn area and the prices

of leaf tobacco for its contracts with tobacco growers,

it 1s required to respect the opinion of the Leaf Tobacco
Deliberauve Council (hatabako shingi kai), which consists of
members appointed by JT with the approval of the Minister
of Finance from among the representatives of domestic leaf
tobacco growers and academic appointees Much lke many
other agricuftural products in Japan, preduction costs for
domestically-grown leaf tobacco 1s higher than those of
foreign-grown leaf tobacco 1o the extent that the purchasing
price for the former (before re-drying) is approximately three
times that of the Iatter {after re-drying)

Corporate Information

In November 2003, the Ordinance for Enforcement of the
Tobacco Business Act was revised and the wording of
warnngs concerning tobacco consumption and nealth
indicated on the tobacco product package was changed

In addition, the Ordinance stipulated that when wording
hke “rmild” and "hght” 1s used on the package, they must
be accompanied by a warning that clarifies that such
words do not mean that the risk 1o their health 1s lower than
other tobacco products 50 as to prevent consumers from
misunderstanding the relationship between the consumption
of tobacco products and health JT has been adhering to
this rule since July 1, 2005

The following self-regulation is as of March 23, 2016
We will update details of self-regulation in Japan and in
the international markets on our website as necessary.

Self —regulation on marketing

Prevention of youth smoking

Youth smoking prevention 15 an 1ssue which must be
addressed by society as a whole The JT Group has a
voluntary code, ‘Global Tobacco Products Marketing
Standard’, to govern its business and marketing activities
in support of youth smoking prevention We are working
with government and ¢ther relevant organizations to take
steps towards preventing youth smoking in the countries
in which we operate For further details, please refer to JT
and JT! websites

Global Tobacco Products Marketing Standards

The JT Group complies with all the national regulation

and has implemented a "Globat Tobacco Products
Marketing Standard’, a self-regulatory code, which
governs the marketing of its tobacco products in every
country The key provisions include 'Stniet minimum
guidelines apphcable to advertise tobacco products’,

and ‘Indication of health warnings in ads and other media’,
'Restrictions on sponsorships’, among others For further
detals, please refer to our website
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Regulation and Other Relevant Laws continued

Pharmaceutical Business

The pharmaceutical industry operates in a highly regulated
environment In many countries, R&D, manufactuning and
sales activities are stnctly regulated Moreover, In recent
years, the approval process for new drugs has been
tightening due to the increased requirements to promote
public heaith and safety Today, compared to the past,
pharmaceutical companies are required to spend more time
to examine pharmaceutical safety 1ssues and conduct a
greater number of clinical trials on subjects to collect more
data on the efficacy of new pharmaceuticals Consequently,
clinical tnals are growing In scale, cost and tme

In Japan, the marketing of pharmaceutical products 1s
subject to the supervision of the Ministry of Health, Labor
and Welfare, or MHLW, primarily under the Act on Securing
Quality, Efficacy and Safety of Pharmaceuticals, Medical
Devices, Regenerative and Cellular Therapy Products,

Gene Therapy Products, and Cosmetics, while part of

Its supervisory authority 1s undertaken by the relevant
prefectural governor Under the act, in order to conduct the
marketing business of pharmaceuticals, a person 1s required
to obtain from the retevant prefectural governor a renewable,
generally five-year marketing business license In addition,
under the act, in order to market pharmaceutcals, it 1s
necessary to obtain marketing approval from the MHLW

for each kind of product

The national health insurance system covers virtually

the entire Japanese population To sell a pharmaceutical
product in Japan, a marketing business license holder

of pharmaceutical products must first have a new
pharmaceutical product listed on the Naticnal Health
Insurance Pharmaceuncal Pnce List for coverage under the
national health insurance system Generally, prices on the
price list are subject to revision once every two years as part
of the government’s policy to control healthcare spending

Processed Food Business

As a producer and seller of food products, the JT Group's
processed food business 1s subject 10 regulations mainly
under the Food Safety Basic Act, the Food Sanitation Act
and the Food Labeling Act

The Food Safety Bastc Act requires food-related companies
to take necessary measures to ensure food safety in each
process of the supply chain, as well as to make efforts to
provide accurate information about foods and food-related
goods in an appropnate manner The Food Sanitation Act
concentrates on prevention of sanitary problems ansing
from consumption of foods and beverages This Act requires
focd companies to take necessary measures under therr
own responsibility to ensure the safety of foods, additives,
apphances and packages The measures discussed In

the Act include the acguisition of knowledge and skills,
assurance of the safety of raw matenals and voluntary
inspection The Food Labeling Act sets the standards for
labeling of food that 1s intended for sales which define the
labeling requirements such as allergen and expiration date,
maternials, or origin Persons Engaged in Food-related
Business and others must comply with the standards

in preparing their product labels

The JT Group Is striving to establish a high level of food
safety control from the above-mentioned four perspectives
—"“food safety”, “food defense”, *food qualty” and “food
communication” — in addition to compiying with these
laws and regulations and ensuring thorough awareness

about them
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Litigation

Some of our subsidianes are defendants in lawsuits filed

by plainuffs seeking damages for harm allegedly caused

by smoking, the marketing of tobacco products, or exposure
to tobacco smoke As of the fiscal year-end date, there were
a total of 20 smoking and heatth-related cases pending in
which one or more members of the JT Group were named
as a defendant or for which JT may have certain indemnity
obligations pursuant to the agreement for JT's acquisition of
RJR Nabisco Inc ‘s overseas (non-U S) tobacco cperations
We believe 1t 15 possible that other similar smoking and
health-retated lawsuits may be filed in the future

in additton, JT and scme of 1ts subsidianies are also
detendants in lawsurnts other than the smoking and
health-related cases Please refer to "Note 40" to the
consolidated financial statements (Contingencies-
Contngent Liabilities) for major lawsuits to which JT
and some of its subsidianes are named as defendants
Similar lawsuits involving us may be filed and contested
In courts In the future

To date, we have never lost a case or paid any settlement
award in connection with smoking and health-related
Iitigation However, we are unable to predict the outcome
of currently pending or future lawsurts If a court ruling i1s
unfavorable for us, In such cases wheiher lawsuits are
smoking and health related or not, our financial results,
production, sales and imports/exports of tobacco products
may be adversely affected

As of the fiscal year-end date, there are 10 ongoing
healthcare cost recovery cases in Canada pending against
JTI-Macdonald Corp and JT's iIndemnities (RJR Nabisco
Inc s affiliate), brought by Canadian provinces in addition,
there are eight pending class actions in Canada, of which
five are currently dormant, where plaintiffs are seeking
damages for harm allegedly caused by smoking of
cigarettes Damages claimed in some of these cases
reach sums in the mult-billion dollar range We will
continue to take all appropriate actions to defend such
claims vigorously, and believe there are a number of

valid defenses

IV Cbrporét}eu!ﬁ}gxmgﬁﬁ’m\ 1 :

In recent decades, numerous, large-scale, smoking and |
health-related cases have been brought against tohacco
product manufacturers in the US, and some of the cases
resulted in verdicts with massive damage awards JT and
its subsidharies are not defendants in any of these lawsuits,
nor are they subject to any indemnity claims The tobacco
business which JT acquired from RJR Nabisco Inc 1n 1899
and the Natural Armerican Spint business which JT acquired
from the Reynolds American Inc group of compantes in
January 2016 did not include brands in the US, and even
now, cur histornic and current tobacco business scale in the
US remains very small Accordingly, we consider potential
exposure to smoking and health-related lihgation in the US
to be low, and we thus beleve that itigation in the US will
not matenally affect our businesses in the near future

Following the July 2015 acquisition of Logic Technology
Development LLC, JT Group operates an e-cigaretie
business in the US We are not aware of any related
ongoing litigation alleging chronic effects on health
associated with e-cigarette use However, cases were
filed against e-cigaretie manufacturers in the US alieging
harm caused to consumers by misleading representations
and adverusing for which plaintffs are seeking damages
and/or demanding health warnings As of 31st December
2015, netther JT nor any of its subsidiaries are a party to
these cases

As a tobacco product manufacturer, we continue to monitor
closely the developments and trends of litigation mvolving
tobacco companies in the US, Canada, and elsewhere, with
particular interest and attention
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Members of the Board, Audit & Supervisory

Board Members, and Executive Officers

{As of March 23, 2016)

Members of the Board

Executive Officers

Chairman of the Board
Yasutake Tango

Representative Directors
Mitsuomi Koizumi
Yasushi Shingai

Mutsuo hwai

Members of the Board
Hideki Miyazak)
Motoyula Oka®

Mamin Kohda®

* Qutside Directors under the
Companies Act of Japan

Audit and Supervisory
Board Members

Standing Audit and

Supervisory Board Members

Futoshy Nakamura
Tomotaka Kopma

Audit & Supervisory
Board Members
Yoshinori Imar
Hiroshi Obayashi’

* Qutside Audit & Supervisory Board Members
under the Companies Act of Japan

066

President

Mitsuorm Koizumi
Chief Executive Officer

Executrve Vice Presidents
Yasush) Shinga

Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
Complance General Affairs, Legal,
Corporate Strategy, IT, Business
Development, HR and Operation
Review & Business Assurance

Mutsuo wai
President Tobacco Business

Hideda Miyazaki
Finance, CSR and Communicauons

Senior Vice Presidents
Ryoji Chynwa
Compliance and General Affairs

Kazuhito Yamashita
Head of China Division,
Tobacco Business

Chito Sasaki

Chief Marketing & Sales Officer
Tobacco Business
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Senior Vice Presidents
Kryohide Hirowatan

Head of Tobacco Business Planning
Dwvision, Tobacco Business

Junichi Fukuchi
Corporate Scienufic & Regulatory Affairs
Division Tobacco Busingss

Yasushi Hasegawa
Head of Leaf Procurement Group,
Tobacco Business

Takehisa Shibayama
Chief R&D Officer, Tobacco Business

Hirakazu Otomo
Manufactunng Group, Tobacco Business

Muneaka Fujimoto
President, Pharmaceutical Business

Goichi Matsuda
Deputy President, Pharmaceutical Busingss

Shigenorn Ohkawa
Head of Central Pharmaceutical Research
Institute, Pharmaceutical Business

Naohiro Minami
Chief Financial Officer

Ryoko Nagata
CSR

Haruhiko Yamada
Legal

Yuki Maeda
Corpaorate Strategy and IT

Takehtko Tsutsui !
Business Development

Koj Shimayoshi
Human Resources

Ker Nakano
Communications




Members of the JTI Executive Committee

(As of February 1, 2316)

Thomas A McCoy
President and Cheef Executive Officer

Masamichi Terabatake
Deputy CEQ Executive Vice President
Emerging Products & Corporate Strategy

Eddy Pwrard

Executive Vice President

Business Development, Corporate Affairs
and Corporate Communications

Bilgehan Anlas
Senior Vice President Global Supply Chain

Brunc Duguay
Senior Vice President Comphance and
Corporate Social Responsibility

Antome Emst
Senior Vice President Marketing & Sales

Stefan Fitz
Regional President, Asia Pacific

Roland Kostantos
Senior Vice President
Finance, IT and Chief Financial Qfficer

Marchant Kuys
Regional President, Amencas

Hiroyula Mika
Senior Vice President Research
& Development

Jorge da Motta
Regional President, Middle East, Near East,
Africa, Turkey and World Wide Duty Free

Paul Neumann
Senior Vice President Global Leaf

Howard Parks
Senior Vice President Human Resources

Kevin Tomlinson
Regional President, CIS+

Daniel Torras
Regional President Central Europe

Vassihis Vovos
Regional President, Western Eurcpe

Wade Wnght
Senior Vice President Legal and
Regulatary Affairs
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Corporate Data

Head Office
2-1, Taranomon 2-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8422, Japan
Tel 81-3-3582-3111
81-3-5572-1441
ttps:Mawwit.com/

Date of Establishment
April 1, 1885

Paid-in Capital
¥100 hilton

JT International S.A.
8, rue Kazem Radjav:
1202 Geneva
Switzerland

Tel: +41 (y22-703-0777
Fax: +41(0)22-703-0789
URL: htip:fwanwe tr.com/




Investors’ meeting held in London in September 2015

{As of December 31 2015)

Common Stock
Note A 200 for 1 stock spht was completed on July 1 2012

Authonzed 8 000,000 000
Issued 2,000,000,000
Number of shareholders 121931

Admimistration of the Registry of Shareholders
The Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Stock Exchange Listings
First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchange
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Shareholder information

Shareholder Information

{As of December 31, 2015)

Principal Shareholders

Name Sharas held
The Minister of Finance 666 927,200
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd (Trust Account) 54 120,200
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd (Trust Account} 51189400
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505223
{Standing proxy Mizuho Bank, Lid, Settlement Sales Department) 44 329 643
Trust & Custody Services Bank Ltd as trustee for Mizuho Bank, Ltd
Retirement Benefit Trust Account re-entrusted by Mizuho Trust and
Banking Co Ltd 33 800 000
State Street Bank and Trust Company
(Standing proxy The Hengkong and Shanghar Banking Corporation Lirited, Tokyo Branch) 33153,315
JPMorgan Chase Bank 380055
(Standing proxy Mizuho Bank, Ltd , Settlement Sales Department} 29,990 439
GIC Private Limited
{Standing proxy The Hongkong and Shanghar Banking Corporation Lirmited Tokyo Branch) 27,439 663
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505001
{Standing proxy Mizuho Bank Ltd Settlement Sales Department) 26,504,296
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley 20,390,143
Composihon of sharesholders
(%)
o7 11
06 12
7.8
S0 0 500
333 333 333 333
2011 2012 203 2014 20t4 2015
March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Dec 31 Dec 31
Government of Japan B Cther instiiutions
& Pinancal institutions M Fereign institutions and others
@ Secunties companies B Individuals and others
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Shareholder Information contmued

Offening JT Shares by Government

1st Offenng
Mathod Offering by Bids Offering by non-Bids
Offer Price Bid Price From ¥1,362 000 to ¥2,1i0,000  ¥1,438,000

{Pncing Date}

Weighted Average Pnce ¥1,438,000

(August 29 1994)

{August 31 1994}

Number of
Offenng shares

229,920 shares

164,356 shares

Offenng Term

From August 15 to 18, 1994

From September 2108 1984

Nota
The Listing date

Octobar 27 1994 First Sectons of Tokyo Stack Exchange

2nd and 3rd, 4th Offering
2nd Offering 3rd Offering 4th Oitering
Method Offenng by Book-Building formula Offenng by Book-Bullding formula Offering by Book-Buillding formula
Offer Price Bid Price ¥815,000 ¥843,000 ¥2 949
{Pricing Date) {Jurne 17 1996) {June 7, 2004} {March 11 2013)
Number of Japan 237,390 shares Japan 198 334 shares, Japan 145 625 500 shares,

Offering shares

International 35000 shares
{Total 272 390 shares)

International 91,000 shares
(Total 289,334 shares}

International 107 636,300 shares
(Total 253 261 800 shares)

Offering Term From June 18 10 19 1996 From June 8 to 10 2004 From March 12 to 13 2013
Stock Prnice Chart
{Yen} {Paints)
§ 000 All Time High 5 000
August3 2015 ¥4 818 |l |
4500 II']"lll 4500
4000 \ } 4000
A U
bt
3500 ( : |”'I ||I 3 500
. |-;‘|| r ' "Il [
3000 o || .l 3000
L] :I Hl
l k I 2500
VR
2000
t 500

Nate

All Time Low

Reterance
TOPIX (nght)

Aprl 7 2003 ¥644
{Pre spin ¥128 800}

973 98.3 933 003 03 az3

043 053 063 073 083 023

Due to a5 for 1 stock sphit on April 1 2006 and a 200 for 1 stock sphitan July 1 2012 stock prices caflect past spht levels

7]
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Financial®
Information.

Presentation material of investors” meeting in September 2015

Regarding Financial Review for FY2015

In accordance with IFRS requirements, beverage business
had been classifiad as discontinued operations from the
third quarter of FY2015 Consequently, profit {loss) and
some items from continuing operations and discontinued
operations are presented separately for the financial results
of FY2015 and FY2014

In addition, due to the change In accounting period, FY2014
was a transitional penod, covering mine months from April 1,
2014 to December 31, 2014 for Japanese domestic

business The same change in accounting penod 1s applied
to the Company's consolidated subsidraries whose current
closing date was other than December 31 For international
tobacco business and s subsidiaries, accounting period
remains unchanged from January 1 to December 31, 2014
(Reported basis)

For the purpose of fair business performance comparison,
we are providing figures for the twelve-month penod from
January 1 to December 31, 2014 (Like-for-Like basis) with
regard to all business segments In conunuINg operations
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Financial Review
Analysis of the Resulits

FY2015 Results for the fiscat year ended December 31, 2015

Conunuing Operations

{ Actual Results Q Dacrease ® Increase {Decrease 1n case of expense)

Revenue!

Ibilhens of yen)

2014 Jan - Dec 22582

Internatonal obacce

PRI — DRI o0
— e
Processed food I -

Others |01

2015 2252%

Revenue shghtly decreased ¥6 4 billon or -0 3% year-on-year to ¥2,252 9 bilhion
¢ This was mainly due to the sigrificant negative impact of foreign currency movements despite the robust pricing
and mix effect as well as the weak yen effect in international tobacco business

Adjusted Operating Profit? / Operating Profit

thilhens of yen)

2014 Jan - Dec Adjusted Operating Profit
[centinuing aparationst

Internationat tobacco
Business momentum (at constant FX)

Internationat tobacco
Local currancy vs USS FX effact

Internatonat tobacco

US$ vs JPY FX affect
Japanese domestic tobaccoe
Pharmaceutical

Processed food

Others

F¥2015 Adjusted Operating Profit
{continuing operations)
Adjustment total

FY2015 Qperating Profit
{continuing operatikans)

Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations decreased ¥34 3 billion or -5 2% year-on-year to ¥626 7 billion

* While international tobacco business achieved strong growth driven by pricing effect and weak yen effect,
adjusted operating profit still decreased due to the significant negative impact of foreign currency movements

+ |n Japanese domestic tobacco business, adjusted cperating profit growth was mainty due to such factors as
price/mix effect, the effect of competitiveness enhancing measures and a decrease In some one-time costs

Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations at constant FX increased +9 9% year-on-year

Operating profit from continuing operations decreased ¥7 4 billion or -1 3% year-on-year to ¥565 2 billion

* Recognized the costs associated with the optimization of distribution and manufactuning bases in International
tobacco business

* The costs associated with the competitiveness enhancing measures in Japanese domaestic tobacco
business decreased

» Other income of proceeds from the sales of investment property decreased
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Continuing Operations

Profit’

{bthong of yen)

2014 tan- Dec
Cperating prott
Financial incomedfinancial cost

Incoma taxes [continuing operaticns)

Profit aunbutable 1o non conirolling
interests {continuing oparatans}

FY2015

Financial Information

3914

Y 21

I - 7
T RL

Profit from continuing operations increased ¥7 0 billion or +1 8% year-on-year to ¥398 5 billion

» Income tax expenses decreased (increased as in the graph) as a result of the decrease Iin profit before Income tax

and the recognition of deferred tax liability in prior year

Revenue by business scgment

3385

Adjusted Operating Profit and Operating
profit by business segment

Billions of yen Billions of yen
2014 2014
Jan-Dec  FY2015 JanDec  FY2015
Revenue (continuing operations) 22592 22,2529 Continuing Operations Operating profit h726 565 2
International tabacco 13280 1,3172 Adjustment total® 88 3 614
‘ Core reverue? 12582 1,2525 Continuing Operations Adjusted operating
Japanese domestic tobacco 6874 6773 profit 6610 6267
\ Core revenues 6498 642 2 Internattonal tohacco Operating profit 3796 346 9
Pharmaceutical 658 756 Adjustment total® 676 475
Processed Food 1612 1658 International tobacco
Adjusted operating profit 4471 3944
Others 169 170
Japanese domestic tobacco Cperaung profit 1815 249 2
- - Adjustment totalf 572 48
Japanese domestic tobacco
Average EXChange Rate Adjusted operating profit 2387 2541
2014 Pharmaceutical Operating profit (73) (2 3)
Jan-Dec FY2015 Adjustment total® - -
06 7 12110
YEN/USS 0679 Pharmaceutical Adjusted operating profit (73) 23
4 60 98
RUB/SS 3840 09 Processed Food Operating profit {12) 32
GBP/USS 061 065
Adjustment totase 26 (0 5)
EUR/USS 075 090
Precessed food Adjusted operating profit 14 27
1 Excludes tobageo excise taxes and agancy ransactions Qthers/Elmination Operating profit 02 {318)
2 Adjusted Operating profit = Operaung profit » amertzation of intangible assets
of + adjusied 1lems {income and costs)* Adjustment total® 39 1) 96
*Adjusted 11ems [incorne and costs) = )imparment losses on goodwill + restructuring
inceme and costs + others Others/Elimination
3 Profit attribuzable to owners of the parent Adjusted operating profit (18 9} {22 2)

IS

businesses

o

tobacco business among ather factors

[+

Excludes revenues from distnibution contract manutacturing and cther penpheral
Excluces revenue from distnibution of imported tobacco In the Japanese domestic

Amarntzation cost of acqguired intangibles + adjustment items (incorme and costs)*™

**Adjustment items ( income and costs) = imparrment losses on goodwill &

restructuring iIncome and costs + others

* For analysis of revenue, core revenue and adjusted

operating profit of each business segment, please refer to

S

ection “Review of Operation
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Financial Review continued

Analysis of the Results

FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended Decernber 31, 2015

Consohdated

O Actual Results O Decrease ®Increass {Decrease \n case of axpense)

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Assets)

tbrlions of yen)

December 31 2014 47047

Cash and cash equivalants [ E
Trade and other recevables w 420
Inventary x 240
Property plant and equipment ; 743
Goodwill 3 f

Trademark B2 o

Other assets | as

Decamber 31 2015 45582

Despite the weak yen effect, total assets decreased ¥146 5 hillion to ¥4,558 2 billion, due to, among other factors, the
decrease in goodwill, trademark and etc caused by the weak local currency effect (vs US$) and the effect of shares
transfer of vending machine operation business

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Debt and Equity)

{erhions of yen)

December 31 2014 47047
Trade and other payables H A6 7
Bonds s
Bomowing PE 368
Corparate tax payables 54
Other liabilives “ 885

Rataned aarnigs e

Exchange differancss on ranslation

of foreign operations. i 2889
Treasury shares RN 099

Other aquity total | X

December 31 2015 465682

Total liabilities decreased ¥45 5 billion to ¥2,036 7 bilhon mainly due to the decrease in trade and other payables and
borrowings but partially offset by the increase in bonds and corporate tax payables etc

Despite the increase n retained earnings, total equity decreased ¥101 0 billion to ¥2,521 5 billion mainly because of the
share repurchase implermentation and the decrease in exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

Having acquired RJR Nabisco's non-U S tobacco
operation in 1989 and Gallaher Group Plc 1in the UK in
2007, the JT Group has been growing steadily as a global
company with operations in over 70 countries and with
our products sold in more than 120 countries and regions
around the world In this context, the JT Group has adopted
iFRS from the year ended March 31, 2012 to improve
international comparability of financial nformaticn In
capital markets and to diversify the group’s sources

of financing through international capital markets

In FY2014, the Company and its subsidiaries with fiscal year
ends other than December 31 have changed therr fiscal year
ended December 31 for the purpose of unifying the fiscal
year end with overseas consolidated subsidianes of the
Group, which woultd enhance and improve the efficiency of
the closing and management systems As a result, FY2014,
a transitional period for the unification of accounting period,
covered nine months from Apnl 1, 2014 to December 31,
2014 for the Japanese domestic business as well as the
Company’s consolidated subsidianes whose current closing
date was other than December 31 However, the fiscal year
end date of JT International Hoiding BV and its subsidiaries,
which operate the Group's International Tobacco Business,
was atready December 31 Therefore, the financial results of
these companies for the twelve-month penod from January
1, to December 31, 2014, have been consolidated into the
Group’s consolidated financial resuits for FY2014

In addiion, from the third quarter of FY2015, beverage
business has been classified as discontinued operations in
accordance with IFRS requirements due to the withdrawal
from beverage business in 2015 Consequently, profit (loss)
and some ttems from continuing operations and discontinued
operations are presented separately for the financial results
of FY2015 and FY2014

For further details of significant accounting pchicies, please
refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statemenits

2 Non-GAAP financial measures

The JT Group discloses certain addiuonal financial measures
that are not required or defined under IFRS These measures
help grasp underlying performance of each business and
are used for internal performance management YWe believe
that they are useful information for users of our financial
statemenits 1o assess the Group's performance

Financial Information

For our international tobacco business, ts consolidated
financial statements reported in US dollars are internally
reviewed and therefore revenue and adjusted operating
profit are externally communicated in US dollars These
non-GAAP financial measures should be treated as
supplementary information, rather than alternative
measures to corresponding financial numbers

prepared in accordance with IFRS

Core revenue

For the tobacco business, core revenue 1s disclosed
additionally as a breakdown of revenue Specifically,

the core revenue for the Japanese domestic tobacco
business Is presented after deducting revenue accounted
for distribution of tmported tobacco products, among
other things, from revenue, while core revenue for the
international tobacco business 1s presented after deducting
the revenue accounted for the distribution business and
cantract manufacturing, among other areas, from revenue

Adjusted Operating Profit

In order to provide useful comparative information

on our business performance, adjusted operating profit

Is presented as operating profit plus amortization of
acquired intangibles and adjusted iterns (iIncome and
costs) Adjusted items (income and costs) are imparrment
losses on goodwill and restructuring income and costs,
and other items Furthermore, for the internattonal tobacco
business, adjusted operating profit at constant rates of
exchange which excludes foreign exchange effects, 1s also
presented as additional information Adjusted operating
profit at constant exchange rate for a relevant peried in
the international tobacco business i1s calculated using

the foreign exchange rates of the prior year

Adjusted EPS (diluted)

In order to provide useful comparative information on

our shareholder return, adjusted EPS (diluted) 1s presented
after making certain adjustments to dilute EPS For the
adiustments made for the adjusted EPS (diluted), please
refer to Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements ‘30
Earnings per share’

Consolidated dividend payout ratio

The consolidated dividend payout ratio I1s calculated by
dividing the annual dividend per share for the relevant year
(total of interim dividends and year-end dividends for which
the record dates are included n the relevant year) by basic
earnings per share
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Financial Review conlinued

Analysis of the Results
FY2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

3. Analysis of consolidated financial results for FY2015
{1} Consoldated financial results

For analysis of ‘Revenue’, ‘Operating profit’, ‘Adjusted
operating profit” and ‘Profit attributable 10 owners of the
parent company’ from continuing operations, please refer
to page 72 and 73

For analysis of ‘Assets’, ‘Debt’ and ‘Equity’, please refer to
page 74

For analysis of financial results by business segment, please
refer to ‘Review of Operations’

{2) Adrusted EPS (diluted} (continuing operations)

Adjusted profit from continuing operations for FY2015
decreased ¥16 0 bilion year-on-year to ¥421 0 billion
Adjusted EPS (diluted) of continuing operations for FY2015
decreased ¥5 96 or -2 5% year-on-year 10 ¥234 35

{Bilhons of yen}
204
Continuing operations Jan-Dec FY2015
Profit used for calculation of adjusted
earnings per share 3914 3985
Adjustment 1tems (income) 461) {103
Adjustment items (costs) 1050 399
Adjusted on income taxes and
non-controlling interests 13 3) (70}
Adjusted profit of the year 4370 4210
Capital {equity attrnbutable to owners of
the parent company} 1,818,590 1,796,382
Adjusted diluted earnings per share {yen} 24031 23435

{3) Results and plans of capital expenditures

Excluding the assets acquired through business combination,
capital expenditures include outlays on property, plants and
equipment such as land, bulldings, and structures, machinery,
vehicles and others, and intangible assets such as goodwill,
trademark, software, and others that are necessary for
enhancing the productivity of our factories and other
facilities, strengthening our competitiveness, and

operating in various business fields

FY2016

Capital Expenditure Plan (Billions of yen}

Marn purpose of iInvestment

(Bilhons of yen}

2014
Capital expenditure Jan-Dec FY2015
Conununing operations 302 1298
International tobacco 742 772
Japanese domestic tobacco 410 374
Pharmaceutical 47 *672“
Processed Food 47 57
Other/Efimination and corporate 55 33

Total amount of capital expenditures for continuing
operations amounted to ¥129 8 bihon n FY2015

In mternational tobacco business, capital expenditures
amounted to ¥77 2 billion which was mainly spent on the
optimuzation of manufacturing bases and the improvement
of product specfications In Japanese domestic tobacco
business, caprtal expenditures amounted to ¥37 4 billion
which was spent on the maintenance and upgrading of
manufacturing bases, the enhancement of production

and the improvement of product specifications i response
to the new products In pharmaceutical business, capital
expenditures amounted to ¥6 2 billion which was spent on
the development and reinforcement of R&D capabilities In
processed food business, capital expenditures amounted o
¥5 7 billion, which was spent on enhancing and mamntaining
the production capacity These capitai expenditures were
internally funded through cash generated by operations

Plans for new installations and disposal of facilities
Regarding the mud- to long-term resource allocation

of the JT Group, we will place top prionty on business
investments that wiil lead to sustainable profit growth in
the mid- to long-term based on our management principles
We position the mternational and Japanese domestic
tobacco business as the core business and profit growth
enging and place top priority on business investments

that will lead to their sustainable profit growth Meanwhile,
regarding the pharmaceutical business, we will strive

1o strengthen foundations that will lead to stable profit
contributton For the processed food business, we also
strive to strengthen foundations that will lead to further
profit contribution and we will make investments to

that end

Funding

International tobacco 730 Investrment in the optimization of manufactunng bases Internally funded
Japanese domesitc 320 Investment for maintaiming and upgrading the manufactunng Same as above
tobacco bases and for the enhancement of production and improvement

of product specifications
Pharmaceutical 30 Investment for maintaining and renforcing of R&D Same as above
Processed food 70 nvestment for enhancing and mantaining production capacity Same as above
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Based on this policy, we plan capital expenditures totaling
¥122 0 billion for FY2016

As JT and JT Group companies have wide-ranging plans

for capital expenditure, figures are disclosed by segment
Our actual capital expenditures may differ significantly from
the planned figures mentioned above as a result of a number
of factors, including those discussed in "Risk Factors’

4. Dividends

The year-end dividends for FY2015 were ¥64 per share

The total annual dividends per share, including the interim
dividends per share of ¥54 per share, were ¥118 per share,
with a dividend payout ratio of 53 2% based on basic EPS
from continuing operations A consolidated dividend payout
1s 43 6% based on basic £PS from continuing and
discontinued operations combined

The year-end dividends related to the current year are
recognized in the following year for accounting purposes
The year-end dividend related to FY2014 (record date of
December 31, 2014) and the interim dividends for FY2015
(record date of June 30, 2015) are recorded in the financial
statements for FY2015 For more detalls, please refer to
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements “Dwidends”

5 Capital management

The JT Group's management pnnciple 1s pursuit of the

“4S" model ensuning that in all our activities, we satisfy

and fulfill our responsibilities towards our consumers,
shareholders, employees and wider society, while balancing
the interest of these key stakeholder groups The JT Group
believes that sustamable profrt growth in the mid- 1o long-term
based on this principle will increase the JT Group's value in
the mid- to long-term, and 1s consequently in the best
interest of ail stakeholders, including our shareholders

As 1ts financial policy, JT Group maintains a solid balance
sheet This provides the capacity to withstand any adversity
anising out of & volatile environment, such as economic
crisis [t also allows for sufficient flexibility to capture
attractive iInvestment opportunities JT Group monitors
financial Indicators in order to maintain a well-balanced
capital structure that ensures an appropriate return on
equity and a solid balance sheet for future investment
We monnor credit ratings for a solid balance sheet, and
ROE {return on equity) for profitability, while focusing

on changes in the domestic and overseas environment

Financial Information

The JT Group manages net interest-beaning debt, where
cash and cash equivalents are deducted from interest-
bearing debt, and capital {the part attributable to owners
of the parent company) The amounts as of each year-end
are as follows

{Billons of yen)
AsofDec31! Asof Dec 31,

2014 2015
Interest-bearing debt 2282 2553
Cash and cash equivalents (385 8) (526 8}
Net interest-beanng debt MNew {167 6) {271 5}
Captal (equity attnbutable to owners
of the parent company} 25368 2,4516

Note The figure in parentheses () represents the net amgount of cash and cash
aquivalents aftar deducting interest-beartng daebt

Share buy-back

A repurchase of our shares requires cash outlays On
February 5, 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors resolved
to acquire up to 36 milion shares of its outstanding common
stock for a total amount up to ¥100 billlon during the period
between February 9, 2015 and June 9, 2015 Based on this
resolution, the Company acquired 26,896,200 shares of its
common stock for a total acquisition price of ¥99,999,695,750
during the pericd between February 9, 2015 and March 18,
2015 (contract basis), and has completed the acquisition of
Its commion stock as resolved by the Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2015 we held 209,285,431 shares of
common stock as treasury stock, amounting to 10 46%
of total number of shares 1ssued

In order to repurchase our shares in a flexible manner,
we amended the Articles of Incorporation at the general
meeting of shareholders held on June 24, 2004 so that
we could make repurchase based on a resolution made
by the Board of Directors

We may continue to hold the repurchased shares as
treasury stock or use them for other purposes Stock
repurchase provides our management with an additional
option for increasing flexibility and speed in capital
management In crder to adopt to a rapidly changing
business environment
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Financial Review confinued

Analysis of the Results

£Y2015 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

6 Financial activities

Our Group Treasury Division provides Group-wide support
to enable secure and efficient financing actvities JT Group
IS exposed to financial risks {credit nsks, hguidity nsks,
foreign exchange risks, interest rate risks, and market

price fluctuation risks) Treasury operations are conducted
pursuant to a set of Group-wide financial nsk management
policies and results are reported to the CEQ and the Board
of Directors of JT on a regular basis For more details on
financial nsk management, please refer to "(2) Financial
Risk Management” to "(8) Market Price Fluctuation Risk”
of Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
“Financial Instruments”

(1) Cash Management Systems

To maximize the total group cash efficiency, we give first
priority to utilizing internal financing mainly by the Cash
Management Systems (CMS) within our Group, where
legally permissible and economically viable

(2) External financing

Short-term working capital needs are basically financed
through short-term borrowings from financial institutions
or through commercial paper, or a combination of both
Mid- to long-term capitat needs are financed through
long-term borrowings from financial institutions, bond
or equity, or a combination of those previously stated

We continue to diversify our financing method and
correspondent financial institutions to secure stable

and efficient funding sources through activities such

as the establishrment of commutted facilities The condition
of the Group's wide external debt i1s reported to the CEQ
and the Board of Directors of JT on a regular basis

(3) External investments

Qur financial Investments are always made taking into
account safety, hquidity and optimal yield Speculative
dealings in pursurt of profit margin are not allowed The
results of the financial iInvestment are reported to the
CEQO and the Board of Directors of JT on a reguiar basis

7. Results of Cash flows

FY2015 and FY2014

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FY2015 increased
by ¥140 9 billion from the end of FY2014 10 ¥526 8 hillion
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FY2014 were
¥385 8 billion

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activittes dunng FY2(015
were ¥468 4 bilion The ma:n factors were the generation
of a stable cash inflow from the tobacco busmess As a
result of hohdays for financial institutions, the amount of
national tobacco excise tax paid for the prior year in Japan
was for 8 months, while the amount for FY2015 i Japan
was for 12 months Net cash flows from operating activities
wereg ¥543 7 billion for FY2014

Cash flows from (used In) iInvesting activities

Net cash flows used in Investing activities during FY2015
were ¥63 3 billon This was mainly due to the proceeds
from share transfer of vending machine operation business
but partially offset by the payment for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and the investment in
subsidiaries Net cash flows used in investing activities
were ¥49 1 bilion for Fy2014

Cash flows from {used in) financing activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities during FY2015
were ¥254 9 billon Despite the proceeds from issuance of
bonds, this was mainly due to the increase of dividends per
share and the repurchase of shares Net cash flows used n
financing activities were ¥388 9 billion for FY2014
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8. Liquidity

We have histoncally had, and expect to continue to have,
significant cash flows from operating actvities We expect
that cash generated from operating activites will continue
1o be stable and cover funds needed for ordinary business
activites On December 31, 2015, we had approximately
¥682 3 bhilhon committed facilities for both domesuc and
international major financial instituttons, of which 100%
was unused In addition, we have a domestic commercial
paper program, uncommitted facilities and a domestic
bond shelf registration

(1) Long-term debt

Bonds issued (including the current portion) as of December
31, 2014 and December 31, 2015 accounted for ¥140 0 billon
and ¥2151 billion respectively and long-term borrowings as
loans from financial instritutions {including the current portion}
accounted for ¥41 0 billion and ¥1 0 bilhon respectively
Annual interest rates applicable to long-term borrowings
outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2015 ranged from 0 43% to 5 90% and 2 32% to 4 64%
respectively Long-term lease obligations accounted for

¥15 3 billion as of December 31, 2014 and ¥78 billion as

of December 31, 2015 Matunties of interest beanng debts
are shown n the table below

As of December 31, 2015, our long-term debt was rated Aa3
by Moody's Japan K K {Moody’s), AA- by Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Japan K K {S&P), and AA by Rating and Investment
Information Inc (R&), with a “stable” outlook from Moody's,
a “stable” outlook from S&P and a “stable” outlook from
R&l These ratings are among the highest raungs for
international tobacco companies

Financial Information

These ratings are affected by a number of factors such as
developments In our major markets, our business strategies
and general economic trends that are beyond control The
ratings may be withdrawn or revised at any tme Each
rating should be evaluated separately from other ratings
Under the Japan Tobacco Inc Act, the bondholders of

JT can enjoy statutory preferential nghts over unsecured
creditors in seeking repayment, with the exception of
national and local taxes and other statutory obligations

{2) Short-term debt

Short-term borrowings totaled ¥27 6 bilion as of December
31, 2014 and ¥30 8 billion as of December 31, 2015 There
was no commercial paper outstanding as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2015

Annual interest rates applicable to short-term borrowings
ranged from 0 43% to 10 00% as of December 31, 2014 and
from 0 43% to 11 30% as of December 31, 2015 Short-term
lease obhgations totaled ¥4 3 billion as of December 31,
2014 and ¥0 6 bilfion as of December 31, 2015

{Bilhons of yen}

Due atter Due after Due after Duse after

1 year Jyears 3 years 4 years
Due within through 2 through 4 through 4 through 5  Due after 5
Book Value 1 year years years years years years
Short-term borrowings as loans 38 308 - - - - -
Short-term lease obligations 06 06 - - - - -
Long-term borrowings as loans {current poruon) 01 01 - - - - -
Long-term borrowings as loans 09 - 01 02 01 00 04
Bonds 2151 - 200 603 - 800 550
Long-term lease obligations 78 - 04 03 03 01 67
Total 2553 s 206 608 oa 80 2 621
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consoildated Subsidiaries
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

Millions of yen

Fr2014

FY2015

Assets {As of December 31 2014)  {As of December 31 2015)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) ¥ 385,820 ¥ 526,765
Trade and other receivables {(Note 8} 448 402 406,387
Inventories (Note 9) 587,849 563,820
Other hinancial assets (Note 10) 43 907 17,849
Other current assets (Note 11) 230 530 280,493
Subtotal 1 696 507 1,795,313
Non-current assets held-for-sale (Note 12) 367 2,904
Total current assets 1696,874 1,798,217
. Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment (Note 13) 756 127 681,865
Goodwill (Note 14) 1,639,376 1,429,287
Intangibte assets (Note 14) 364 912 332,478
Investment property {Note 16} 17,870 23,614
Retirement benefit assets {Note 22) 35 402 38,954
Investments accounted for using the equity method 76,825 59,523
Other financial assets {(Note 10) 91 959 101,727
Deferred tax assets (Note 17) 125 361 92,670
Total non-current assets 3,007,832 2,760,017
Total assets ¥4,704,706 ¥4,558,235
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Liabihties and equity

Financial Information

Millions of yen

Fy2014
(As of Decamber 31 2014)

FY2015
{As of December 37 2015)

Litabilittes
Current habilities

Trade and other payables {(Note 18) ¥ 419764 ¥ 373,022
Bonds and borrowings (Note 19} 107,562 30,980
Income tax payables 54,942 106,391
Qther financial kahties (Note 19} 14,463 6,459
Provistons (Noie 20} 9 200 19,297
Other current habilives (Note 21) 754,169 729,761
Toal current hiabilites 1,360 098 1,265,920
Non-current habilities
Bonds and borrowings (Note 19} 101,001 215,938
Other financial tabilues (Note 19} 18,617 13,143
Retrement benefit habilities {Note 22) 351,915 333,562
Provisions (Note 20) 25,425 9,210
QCther non-current habilities {Note 21) 121 792 113,958
Deferred tax Labdities {Note 17} 103 356 87,979
Total non-current liabilities 722,106 770,790
Total kablines 2,082,204 2,036,710
Equity
Share capital (Note 23) 100 000 100,000
Capital surplus {Nate 23) 736,400 736,400
Treasury shares {Note 23} (344 447} {444,333)
Other components of equity (Note 23) 142,425 (137,122)
Retained earnings 18902 480 2,196,651
Equity attnbutable to owners of the parent company 2,536,838 2,451,596
Non-controlling interests 85 665 69,929
Total equity 2,622,503 2,521,524
. Jotal habihties and equity ¥4,704 706 ¥4,558,235
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consolidated Subsidianies
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

Millicns of yen

Y2014
{Nine manths ended
Decembar31 2014)

FY2015
{Year ended
December 31, 2015}

Contlnumg operations

Revenue (Notes B, 25) ¥2 019,745 ¥2,252 884
Cost of sales (Notes 14 22) (822 538) (920,056)
Gross profit 1197,208 1,332,828
Other operating income {Note 26) 47 419 15,367
Share of profit in investments accounted for using the equity method 7.812 6,381
Seliing, general and administrative expenses (Notes 12 13 14, 16, 22, 27, 32) (752,559) {789,346)
Operating profit (Note 6) 439,880 565,229
Financial Income (Notes 28, 33} 13,808 15,016
Financial costs (Notes 22 28 33) {11 162} {15,132)
Profit before income taxes 602,626 566,113
income taxes (Note 17) (132 811) {162,386)
Profit for the period from continuing operaticns 369 715 402,727
Discontinued operations
Profit {loss} for the penod from discontinued operations (Note 38) {1,088) 87,515
Profit for the percd ¥ 368,626 ¥ 490,242
Attnibutable to
Owners of the parent company ¥ 362,919 ¥ 485,691
Non-controlling interests 5708 4,551
Profit for the perod ¥ 368,626 ¥ 490,242
Earnings per share
Basic (Yen)
Continuing operations (Note 30} ¥ 20055 ¥ 22195
Discontinued operations {Note 30) {087) 48 59
Total basic earnings per share for the penod (Note 30) ¥ 19967 ¥ 27054
Diluted (Yen}
Continuing operations {Note 30) ¥ 20043 ¥ 22118
Discontinued operations (Nate 30) (0 87) 48 56
Total diluted earnings per share for the pericd (Note 30) ¥ 19956 ¥ 27037
Reconcihation from “Operating profit” to “Adjusted operating profit”
Mitlions of yen
Fy2014 FY2015
{Nine manths anded [Year ended

Dacember 31 2014)

Decembar 31 2015)

Continuing operations

Operaung profit ¥499 880 ¥565,229
Amortizaticn cost of acquired intangibles 29,465 31,875
Adjustment stems {income) {44,302) {10,346)
Adjustment items (costs) 103,641 39,900

Adjusted operating profit (Note 8) ¥588 664 ¥626,657
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consclidated Subsidianies
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

Financial information

Millions of yen

Fy2014
{MNine months endsd
Decamber 31 2014)

FY2015
{Year ended
Decembar 31, 2015)

Profit for the pencd ¥ 368 626 ¥ 490,242
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain (loss} on revaluation of financial assets measured at farr value
through other comprehensive iIncome (Notes 29, 33) 3,725 10,735
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Notes 22 29} {14,164) {4,102)
Total of terns that will not be reclassified te profit or loss {10,439} 6,633
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
. Exchange differences on transltation of foreign operations {(Notes 29, 33) {114 242} {289,400)
Net gain {loss) on denvatives designated as cash flow hedges {(Notes 28 33) 922 233
Total of tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss {113 319} {289,167)
Other compranansive income {loss} net of taxes {123 759) {282,534)
Comprehensive income {loss) for the peried ¥ 244 B6B ¥ 207,708
Attnibutable to
Owners of the parent company ¥ 240,363 ¥ 203,257
Naon-controlling interests 4,505 4,450
Comprehensive income (loss) for the perod ¥ 244,868 ¥ 207,708
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Japan Tobacco Inc and Conschdated Subsidianes

FY2015 Year ended December 31 2015

Mihon s of yan

£cuity aunbutable to ownears of the parent company

Othes companents of equity

Exchangs
diferences on

Net gain (loss)
on revaluaton ot
financial assats

Net gain [koza) maasured a1 lar
transiaton of O 3BRAVAIVE valus through
Subscrphion foregn desgnatec as  Gthar comprehen-
Share capstal Capital sumius Treasury shargs nghts to shares cash flow heoges SKvA INCOME
Asof Apnl 1 2014 ¥100 000 ¥736 400 ¥(344 483) ¥ 443 ¥ 229930 ¥ 293 ¥19,380
Profit for the pencd - - - — - - -
Other comprehansve income {lossy - -~ - — {112972) 922 3753
Comprehensive ncome (loss) for the penod - - - - {i12972) 922 3793
Acquisition of treasury shares (Note 23} - - - - - - -
Disposal of treasury shares {Nots 23) - - 16 (14) - - -
Sharg based payments (Note 32) - - - 202 - - -
Dmadends {Note 24) - - - - - - -
Changes in the scope of consohdauon - - - - - - -
Changes in the ownership interest (n a supsiciary without a loss.
of control - - - - {597} - -
Transfer from other components of equity 10 retained garnings. - - - - - - 23
Other increase (decrease) = — — - - - -
Total transactions with the owners — — [1:] 183 {597) - 23
As of December 31 2014 100 000 736 400 1344 447) 1631 116,421 1215 23156
Profit tor the period - - - - - - -
Othar comprehensive income {loss) - - - - {288 894) 233 10,500
Comprehensive income (loss) for the pened — - - - {288,894) 233 10,500
Acquisition of treasury shares [Nota 23) - - (100,000) - - - -
Dhisposal of treasury shares (Nota 23} - — 114 185) - - -
Share based payments (Note 32) - - - 395 - - -
Dividends (Note 24) - - - - - - -
Changes in the scope of consolidation - - - - - - 1140)
Changes in the ownership interest in a subsidiary without a loss
of contral - - - - - - -
Trangter from other components of equity to retained earnngs - - - — - - (232)
Other Increase (decrease) - — - - — 1,324} -
Total transactions with the owners - - 199,886) 310 - (1,324} (372)
As of Decomber 31, 2015 ¥100,000 ¥736 400 ¥i444,333) ¥1,941 ¥{172,473) ¥ 125 ¥33,284
Milkons ot yen
Equity attributabla 1o ownars of tha parsnt company
Othar components of aguity
Asmeasurements
of detineg Retaingd Naa cantrofing
banafit plans Tota) samings Tatal nierests Total sguity
As of Apnil 1 2014 ¥ - ¥ 251107 ¥1 762 566 ¥2505 610 ¥ 90481 %2 586,091
Profit for the period - - 362 919 362 919 5708 368 626
Other comprehensive income {loss) {14 259) 1122 556) — {122 558) {1 203) {123 759)
Comprehensive income {loss) for the penod (14 259) (322 556) 362 819 240,363 4505 244 868
Acquisition of treasury shares (Note 23) - - - - - -
Disposal of treasury shares {Note 23} - 14) (3 0 - 0
Share based payments (Note 32) - 202 - 202 - 202
Didends {Note 24} — - {181 755) (181 755) {2 738) (184 491)
Changes 1n the scope of cansolidation - - - - - -
Changes in the ownership interest in a subsidiary without a lass
of control - (597) {25,985) {27 581) (7.623) 135 204)
Transfer from other components of equity (o retained earnings 14 259 14 282 (14 282) - - -
Qther increase (decreass) - — — — 1039 1039
Total transactions with the gwners 14 259 13874 {223 025} {209 135) {8321) {218 455)
As of Decernber 31, 2014 — 142 425 1 902 460 2536838 85 665 2 622 503
Profit for the period - - 435,691 485,691 4,551 490,242
QOther comprehensive income (loss) |4 272) {282,433} — [282,433) {101) 1282,534)
Comprehensive income {{oss} for the period (4,272) (282,433) 485,691 203,257 4,450 207 108
Acguisition of treasury shares {Note 23) - - - 1100,000) - {100,000)
Disposal of treasury shares (Nate 234 - (85) 129 o - 0
Share based payments {Note 32) - 395 - 395 - 395
Dmidends (Note 24) — - {187,574) {187 574} 113 809} {201 383)
Changes in the scope of consolidation - (140) 140 - 6,044} {6,044)
Changes In the ownership interest in a subsidiary without a loss
of controt - - 4 4 (321) (318)
Transfer from other compenents ¢f equity to retained earnings 4,272 4,040 4 040} - - -
Qther increase {decrease) - (1,324} - {1.324) 113) {1,337)
Total ransactians with the owners 4,272 2,886 {181,500} [288,500) {20,167) (308.686)
As of December 31, 2015 ¥ - ¥[137 122)  ¥2 196 651 ¥2,451,596 ¥ 69 928 ¥2,521 524
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consolidated Subsidiaries
FY2015 Year ended December 31 20156

Financial Information

Millions of yen

FY2014
(Ntne monihs anded
Decamber 31 2014)

Fy2m5s
{¥Year ended
December 31, 2015)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before Income taxes ¥ 502 526 ¥ 565,113
Profit before income taxes from discontinued operations (Note 38) (227) 119,009
Depreciation and amortization 122171 139,057
Impairment losses 21,877 12,654
Interest and dividend income (13,560) (14,818}
Interest expense 4 651 4,030
Share of profit in investments accounted for using the equity method (7812) (6,381)
[Gains) losses on sale and disposal of property plant and equipment, intangible assets
and invesiment property 131,315) 6,697
{Gains) losses on sale of investments in subsidianes - {134,287)
{Increase) decrease in trade and other recevables {12,130} 3.866
{Increase) decrease In INventories {16,808} 5,272)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 83,885 {6,697)
Increase {(decrease) in retirement benefit habilities {2b 736} (5,162)
(Increase} decrease 1n prepaid tobacco excise taxes {23,963} (59,789)
Increase {decrease) in tobacco excise tax payables 103,651 31,714
Increase {decrease) in consumption tax payables 37,550 (34,585)
QOther (37 055} (33,839)
Subtotal 707 703 581,310
Interest and dividends received 22,569 22,687
Interest paid (7 050} {3,538)
Income taxes paid {179 526} {132,027)
Net cash flows from operatng actviues 543 696 468,432
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of secunties {3,280} {1,320
Proceeds frem sale and redemption of secunues 4769 3,687
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {106 655) (116,976)
Proceeds frem sale of investmeant properiy 85,653 8,372
Purchase of intangible assets (7,749} {12,123)
Payments into time deposits (852) {1,002)
Proceeds from withdrawal of ime deposits 778 977
FPurchase of investments in subsidiaries [Note 37) {20 977 {70,110}
Proceeds from sale of investments in subsidiaries {Note 39} - 126,774
Other {800) {1,550)
Net cash flows from investing actwities 4% 110) {63,271)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to owners of the parent company (Note 24} {181,635} (187,646)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2 663) {13,734)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 44 -
Increase {decrease} in short-term borrowings and commercial paper 6373 5,255
Repayments of long-term borrowings {1225} {30,147}
Proceeds from i1ssuance of bonds — 114,724
Redemption of bonds (170 670) (40,000}
Repayments of finance lease obhgations (3.837) {2,986)
Acquisition of treasury shares - {100,000}
Payments for acquisition of interests in subsichartes from non-controlling interests (35 246) {318)
Other 0 0
Net cash flows from financing activities (388,859} {254,852)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 105,727 150,309
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the peniod 253,219 385,820
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 26 B74 {9.365)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod (Note 7} ¥ 385 820 ¥ 526,765
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Japan Tobacco inc and Consolidated Subsidianes

FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015/ FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

1 Reporung Enuty

Japan Tobacco Inc (hereinafter referred to as the "Company”} 1s

a Joint stock corporation under the Companies Act of Japan, pursu-
ant to the Japan Tobacco Inc Act with its principal places of busi-

ness located in Japan since 1ts incorporation The addresses of the

Company s registered head office and principal business offices are
avallable on the Company s website (htips /www itl co |p)

2. Basis of Preparation

The details of businesses and principal business activities of
the Company and I1ts subsidianes (herenafier referred to as the
‘Group } are stated In 6 Operating Segments

The Group s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31 2015, were approved on March 23 2016
by Mitsuomi Koizumi President and Chief Executive Officer

{1) Comphance with IFRS

The Group s consolidated finencizal staternents are prepared in
accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards
{hereinafter referred to as ‘IFRS™)

(2) Basis of Measurement

Except for the financial instruments, stated in “3 Significant
Accounting Poltcies, the Group s consolidated financial statements
are prepared cn the histencal cost basis

{3} Functional Currency and Presentation
Currency

The Group s consolidated financial statements are presented In

Japanese yen which 1s the functional currency of the Company

The units are in mdhons of yen and figures less than one million

yen are rounded 16 the nearest milfion yen

(4) Early Adoption of New Accounting Standards
The Group has early adopted IFRS 8 “Financial Instruments
{amended in November 2013} (hereinafter referred to as IFRS 9 )
from January ¥ 2015

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 "Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement” (herernafter referred to as “|IAS 39”) and provides
two measurement categories for financial instruments amortized
cost and fair value Changes in fair value of financial assets mea-
sured at far value are recognized i profit or loss However
changes in farr value of investments in eguity instruments, except
for equity instruments held for rading purposes are allowed to be
recognized 1n other comprehensive income

For hedge accounting the hedging relationships that meet the
qualifying critena are reviewed to appropriately reflect an entity s
rnsk managerrent activities in the financial statements

{5) Changes in Method of Presentation
For the year ended December 31, 2015 continuing operations and
discontinued operations have been presented separately To reflect
the changes in method of presentation the consolidated statement
of iIncome, the consoltdated staternent of cash flows and relevant
notes to the consolidated financial statements for the nine months
ended December 31 2014 have been accordingly changed

For discontinued operations please refer to 38 Discontinued
Operations

{6) Change of Fiscal Year End
In the previous fiscal year the Company and ns subsidianes with
fiscal year ends other than December 31 changed therr fiscal year
ends to December 31 for the purpose of unifying the fiscal year end
with overseas consolidated subsidianes of the Group In order to
enhance and improve the efficiency of the closing and management
Systems

As a consequence of this change of fiscal year end, fiscal year
2014 was a mine-menth penod from Apnl 17 2014 to December 31
2014

tn addiion the fiscal year end date of JT International Holding
BV and its subsidiaries which cperate the Group's international
tobacco business {hereinafter referred to as “JTIH Group) contin-
ues tc be December 31 as before, hence the Group consolidates
the financial results of the JTIH Group for the twelve-month penod
from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 intc the Group s con-
solidated financial results for the nine months ended December 31
2014

For the consolidated statement of income assuming that the
previous fiscal year of the Group had been the twelve-month penod
from January 1 2014 1o December 31, 2014, please refer to Note
“42 Consolidated Statement of Income (2014 January —December)”
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Information

(1)} Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include financial statements
of the Company and i1s subsidianies, and interests in investments in
assocrates and joint arrangements

A Subsidianes
A subsidiary 1s an entity that 1s controlted by the Group and the
Group has control over the entity If it 1s exposed, or has nghts to
variable returns from 1ts invelvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through 1ts power over the investee
The acquisition date of a subsidiary (s the date on which the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and the subsidiary 1s included in
the consolidation from the date of acquisition unul the date on
which the Group loses control

In cases where the accounting policies apphed by a subsidiary
are different from those applied by the Group adjustments are
made to the subsidiary s financial statements, 1f necessary

All intergroup balances, transactions income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation

Comprehensive income for subsidianes 1s attributed to owners of
the parent company and non-controlling interests even If this results
in the nan-centrolling tnterests having a deficit balance

B Associates

An associate Is an entity over which the Group has significant influ-
ence The Group has stgnificant influence over the entty If 1t has the
power to partictpate 1n the financial and operating policy degisions
of the investee but 1t does not have control or joint control over the
investee Investments In associates are accounted for using the
eguity method from the date on which the Group has the significant
nfluence untl the date cn which it ceases to have the significant
influence

C Joint Arrangements

A |oint arrangement Is @ contractual arrangement of which two

or more parties have jont contro! Depending upon the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangemen: the Group classifies
a joint arrangement nto a joint operation whereby the Group has
nghts to the assets and obligations for the liabiises relating to the
arrangement and a jotnt venture whereby the Group has rights

1o the net assets of the arrangement only The Group recognizes
the assets labiliues, revenues and expenses refating (o 1ts Interest
N a joint operation while a Joint venture 15 accounted for using
the equity method

{2} Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
methed Censideration transferred in a business compination 1s
measured as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of the assets

transferred the habilities assumed and equity instruments issued by
the Company 1n exchange for control over an acquiree Any excess
of the consideration of acquisition over the fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities 1s recogrized as goodwill in the consolidated
statement of financial position If the consideration of acquisition 1s
lower than the fair value of the identifiable assets and habihties, the
difference 1s immediately recognized as profit in the consolidated
statement of iIncome If the amount of iImtial accounting for a busk-
ness combination 1s not determined by the end of the reporting
penod i which the combination occurs, the provisionat amounts
for the items for which the accounting s incomplete are reported
and are adjusted dunng the measurement period, which 15 one
year lrom the acquisiion date Acquisition-related costs incurred
are recognized as expenses The addwional acquisition of non-
controling interests after obtaining control 13 accounted for as a
capstal transaction Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interesis are adiusted and the fair value of the
considaration paid or received 15 recogmized directly in retained
earnings and no goodwill 15 recogmzed with respect 1o such
transaction

(3) Foreign Currency Translation
Consoldated financial statements of the Group are presented in
Japanese yen which is the funcuional currency of the Company
Each company in the Group specifies its cwn functional currency
and measures transactions based on 1t

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of transac-
tions or an approximation of the rate Monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the funcuonal
currency at the rates of exchange prevaiiing at the fiscal year end
date Differences ansing from the translation and settlement are
recognized as profit or loss However, exchange differences ansing
from the ransiauen of finantial mstruments designated as hedging
instruments for net investment in foreign aperations (foreign subsid-
aries), financial assets measured at fair value through other com-
prehensive iIncome, and cash flow hedges are recognized as other
comprehensive Income

The assets and frabihues of foreign operations are translated into
Japanese yen at the rates of exchange prevailing at the fiscal year
end daie while income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange prevathing at
the dates of transactions or an approximation to the rate The resuft-
ing translaton differences are reccgnized as other comprehensive
incoma In cases where foreign cperaticns are disposed of, the
cumulative amount of trans'ation differences relsted to the foreign
operations s recognized as profit or loss in the penod of disposiion
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(4) Financial Instruments
A Financial Assets
{it Imtial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are classified into financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive
income and amortized cost The Group determines the classifica-
ton at imiial recogmition
Financial assets are classified as financial assets measured
at amortized cost If both of the following conditions arg met
Otherwise they are classified as financiat assets measured at
fair value
= The asset 1s held wathin a business model whose objective Is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
= The contraciual terms of the financial asset giva rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the prnincipal amount gutstanding
For financial assets measured at far value each equity instru-
ment ts designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss
or as measured at fair value through other comprehensive mncome
except for equity instruments held for trading purposes that must
be measured at fair value through profit or loss Such designations
are apphed consistently
All financial assets are measured at far value plus transaction
costs that are attnibutable to the financial assets, except for the case
of being classified in the category of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss
{n} Subsequent Measurement
After inial recognmition financial assets are measured based on the
classification as follows
{a) Financtat Assets Measured at Amortized Cost
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are measured at
amortized cost using the effectve interest method
(b} Othar Financial Assets
Financial assets cther than those measured at amortized cost are
measured at fair value
Changes in the farr value of financial assets measured at fair
value are recognized as profit or loss
However, changes tn the fair value of equity instruments
designated as measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognized as other comprehensive income and the
armount In other comprehensive income 1s transferred to retained
earnings when equity instruments are derecognized or the decline
In its fair value compared 1o 1S acquisiion cost I1s significant
Dmvdends on the financial assets are recognized in profit or loss
for the year
{in} Derecognition
Financal assets are derecognized when the nights to receve
benefits from them expire or are transferred or when substantally
alt the risks and rewards of the ownership are transferred

B Impairment of financial Assets
In accordance with 1AS 39, the Group assesses at the end of
each reportuing period whether there I1s any objective evidence

that financial assets measured at amortized cost are impaired
Evidence of impairment includes significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or a group of borrowers a default or delinquency
tn interest or principal payments and bankrupicy of the borrower

The Group assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists indrvidually for financial assets that are indmvidually sigruficant
and collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant

If there I1s objective evidence that impatrment losses on financial
assets measured at amortized cost have been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carry-
ing amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

When impairment 1s recognized the carrying amount of the
financial asset I1s reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts
and impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss The cartying
amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost 1s directly
reduced for the impairment when they are expected to become
uncollectible in the future and all collateral 1s i/mplemented or trans-
ferred 1o the Group M, In a subsequent penod the amount of the
impairment loss provided changes due 10 an gvent occurmng after
the impairment was recognized the previously recognized impair-
ment losses are adjusted through the aliowance for doubtful
accounts

C Financial Liabilties
(1t Imuial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabiities are classified into financial habihties measured
at fair value through profit or foss and financial habihties measured
at amoruzed cost The Group determines the classiication at intial
recognition

All financial hebfiues are measured at farr value at initial recog-
nition However, financial abilities measured at amortized cost
are measured at cost after deducung transacton costs that are
directly attributable to the financial habilities
[0} Subsequent Measurement
After imitigl recognition, financial habilities are measured based on
the classification as follows
{a} Financral Liabilrues Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Finanoial habilities measured at fair value through profit or lass
include financral habilites held for trading and financial liabilities
designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss at inival
recagnition
{b) Financial Liabihues Measured at Amertized Cost
After imitial recogniion financial liabiities measured at amortized
cost are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
mathod Amortization under the effective interest method and gains
or losses on derecognition are recogrized as profit or loss In the
consolidated statement of income

After iniual recognition, financial guarantee contracts are
measured at the higher of
* The best estumnate of expenditure required to settle the obligauon

as of the end of the fiscal year and

* The amount initially recogmized less cumulative amortization
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{in} Derecogmition
Financ:ial habities are derecognized when the obligation is
discharged, canceled or expired

D Offsetting of Financal Instrumaents

Financial assets and financial babilites are oifset and presented

as a net amount in the consolidated statement of financial position
only when there 15 a legally enforceable right to set off the recog-
nized amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and sestle the labihity simultanecusly

£ Denvatives and Hedge Accounting
The Group utilizes dervatives, including forward foreign exchange
contracts and interest rate swap contracts, 10 hedge foreign
exchange and interest rate nsks These dervatives are iniially
measured at fair value when the contract 1s entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at farr value Changes in the farr value
of dervatuives are recognized as profit or loss In the consolidated
statement of iIncome However, the gains or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective peruen of cash flow hedges
and hedges of net investiment in foretgn gperatens are recogmzed
as other comprehensive income in the consolidated statermnent of
comprehensive Income

At the inception of the hedge, the Group formaily designates
and documents the hedging relationship te which hedge accounung
15 applied and the objectives and strategies of nsk management for
undertaking the hedge The documentation includes identfication
of the hedging instruments the hedged iterns, the nature of the
risks being hedged and how the hedging relationship s effectiveness
15 assessed These hedges are assessed on an ongocing basis 1o
determine whether the hedging relationship is effective prospec-
uvely even though it 1s expected that there 15 an econcmic relation-
ship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, that the
effect of credit risk does not dorminate the value changes that result
from that economic relationship, and that the hedge ratio of the
hedging relatonshep 1s the same as that resulting from the quanuty
of the hedged tem that the Group actually hedges and the quantity
of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quanuty of the hedged item

¥ a hedging relationship ceases to meet ihe hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio due tc changes in an eco-
nomic relattonship between the hedged tem and the hedging
instrument but the nsk management objective remains the same
the Group would adjust the hedge ratio so that It meets the qualfy-
ing criteria again The Group discontinues hedge accounting for
the porucn that does not meet the requirement when the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the quatifying cntena even after adjust-
ng the hedge ratio

Hedges that meet the stringent requirements for hedge account-
ing are classified In the following categeries and accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 8

(1} Fair Value Hedge
The gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s recognized as profit
or loss In the consolidated statement of Income However changes
in the fair value of the hedging instrument are recognized as other
comprehensive iIncome in the conscolidated statement of compre-
hensive iIncome If the hedging instrument hedges an equity instru-
ment designaied as at fair value through othgr comprehensive
income Regarding the hedging gain or loss cn the hedged tem,
the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s adjusted and the change
15 recogrized as profit or Joss in the consolidated statement of
income However changes in the farr value of an equity Instrument
which the Group elected to present in other comprehensive Income
are recognized as other comprehensive income
{n} Cash Flow Hedge
The effective portion of gains or losses on hedging instruments s
recognized as other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive iIncome while the ineffective portion
1s recognized immediately as profit or loss In the consohdated
statement of income

The amounts of hedging instruments recognized 1n other
comprehensive Incame are reclassified to profit or loss when the
transactions of the hedged items affect profit or loss In cases
where hedged 1tems result in the recognition of non-finangial assets
or liabiities, the amounts recognized as other comprehensive
income are accounted for as adjustments to the original carrying
amount of non-financtal assets or liabihties

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected 1o occur,
any related cumulative gain or loss that has been recogrmzed in
equity as other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss If the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur
amounts that have been recognized In other comprehensive iIncome
are continued to be recognized in other camprehensive Income untl!
the future cash flows occur
(1) Hedge of Net tnvestment in Foreign Operations
Translation differences resulting from the hedge of net iInvestment in
foreign operations are accounted for similarly to a cash flow hedge
The effective portion of gains or losses on hedging instrements 1s
recognized as other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income while the ineffective portion 1s
recognized as profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
income At the time of the disposal of the foreign operations any
related cumulanve gain or loss that has been recognized in equity
as other comprehensive mcome 1s reclassified o profit or loss

F Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value of financral instruments that are traded in active financial
markets at the fiscal year end refers to quoted prices or dealer
quotations

if there 15 no active market fair value of financial \nstruments s
determined using approprate valuation medels
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(5) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand depos-
Its and short-term Investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value
and due within three months from the date of acquisitton

(6) Inventories
The cost of inventories includes all costs of purchase costs of con-
versicn and other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable
valug, and the costs are determined by using the weighted-average
method Net realizable value 15 determined as the estimated selling
price in the crdinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Leaf tobacco which 1s stored for more than 12 menths before
being used for production s included in current assets since it 1s
held within the normal operating cycle

{7) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property plant, and equipment 1s measured by using the cost model
and is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumu-
lated mpairment losses

The acguwisiton cost includes any costs directly attnibutable to the
acquisition of the asset and dismantlement, removal and restoration
costs as well as borrowing costs elgible for capitalization

Except for assets that are not subject to depreciation such as
land assets are depreciated using the straight-ine method over
their estimaied useful lives The estimated useful ives of major
asset itemns are as follows
® Bulldings and structures 38 to 50 vears
= Machinery and vehicles 10 to 15 years

The estimated useful hives and depreciation method are reviewed
at each fiscal year end and if there are any changes made to the
aestimated useful ives and depreciation method, such changes are
applied prospectively as changes in estmate

(8) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
A Goodwill
Goodwill 1s stated at acguisiticn cost less accumulated imparrment
losses

Goodwill 1s not amortized It 1s allocated to cash-generating units
that are dentified according to locations and types of businesses
and tested for impairment annually or whenever there 1s any \ndica-
ticn of Impairment Impairment josses on goodwill are recognized
in the consohidated statement of iIncome and no subsequent rever-
sal 1s made

B Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are measured by using the cost model and are
stated at cost iess accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses

intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost at
the iniiat recognition and the costs of iIntangible assets acquired

through business combinations are recaognized at fair value at the
acguisition date Expenditures on internally generated intangible |
assets are recogmzed as expense in the pernod when incurred !
except for develepment expenses that sabsfy the capitalization
crtera
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized using
the straight-line method over their estmated useful lves and are
tested for impairment whenever there 1s any indication of impair-
ment The estimated useful lives and amortization method of intan-
gible assets with finite useful hives are reviewed at each fiscal year
end and the effect of any changes in esimate would be acccunted
for on a prospective basis
The esumated useful ives of major intangible assets with finite
useful lives are as follows
* Trademarks 20 years
= Software 5 years
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets that are not ready to use are not amortized, but they are
tested for imparrment indwdually or by cash-generating urit
annually or whenever there 1s any indication of impairrment

{9) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever substantially all
the nisks and rewards incidental tc ownership are transferred to
the Group All other leases are classified as operating leases

In finance lease transactions leased assets and lease obligatnens
are recognized in the conschdated statement of financial position
at the lower of the fair velue of the teased property or the present
value of the minimum lease payments each determined at the
inception of the lease Lease payments are apportioned between
the financial cost and the reduction of the lease obligations based
on the effective interest method Financial costs are recegnized in
the consolidated statement of ncome Leased assets are depreci-
ated using the straight-line method over therr estimated useful lives
or lease terms whichever (s shorter

In operating 'ease transactions lease payments are recognized
as an expense using the strarght-hine method over the lease terms In
the consolidated statement of income Contingent rents are recog-
nized as an sxpense In the period when they are incurred

Determining whether an arrangement 1s or contains a lease i1s
based on the substance of the arrangement in accordance with
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,
even If the arrangement does not take the fega!l form cf a lease

{10} Investment Property
Investment property I1s property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both

Investment property 1s measured by using the cost modei and 1s
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
imparrment [osses

{11) Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Group assesses for each fiscal year whether there 13 any indica-
1uon that an asset may be impaired If any such indication exists
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or In cases whare the impairment test I1s required to be performed
each year the recoverable amount of the asset 1s astimated In
cases that the recoverable amount cannot be estimated for each
asset it 1s estimated by the cash-generating unit to which the asset
betongs The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generauing
unit 1s determined at the hugher of 1ts fair value less costs of dis-
posal or 115 vatue in use If the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount, iImparment losses
are recognized and the carrying amount 1s reduced to the recover-
able amount [n determiming the value in use estimated future cash
flows are discounted to the present value, using pretax discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset In determining the fair
value less costs of disposal, the Group uses an appropriate valua-
tion modei supperted by avanable fair value indicators

The Group assesses whether there 15 any indication that an
impairment loss recagnized in prior years for an asset other than
goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased, such as any
changes 1n assumptions used for the determination of the recover-
able amount [If any such indication exists the recoverable amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit 1s estimated In cases that the
recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating umit iImpairrment losses are reversed up to the
lower of the estimated recoverable amount or the carrying amount
[net of depreciation) that would have been determined If no impair-
ment losses had been recognized In prior years

(12) Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale

and Discontinued Operations
A Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale
An asset or asset group for which the value is expected to be recov-
ered through a sales transaction rather than through centinuing use
1s classified into a non-current asset or disposal group held-for-sale
when the following conditions are met 1t1s mighly probable that the
asset or asset group will he sold withun one year, the asset or asset
group 1s available for immediate sale in s present condiion and
the Group management commuts to the sale plan In such cases
the non-current asset 1s not depreciated or amortized and 1s mea-
sured al the iower of its carrying amount or its fair value less costs
of disposal

B Discontinued Operations

The Group has classified a business segmens that has been
disposed of or s classified as held-for-sale, into discontinued
operations

{13) Post-employment Benefits
The Group sponsors defined benefit plans and defined contribution
plans as employee retirement benefit plans

The Company 15 obligated to bear pension expenses for a mutual
assistance associauon incurred with respect to services In or before
June 1956 (pnor to the enforcement of the Act on the Mutual Ad
Assoctation of Public Corporation Employees} Such obligations
are calculated and included in habililes related to the retirement

Financial Information

benefits

For each plan the Group calculates the present value of defined
benefit cbligations related current service cost and past service
cost ustng the projected unit credit methed For a discount rate,
a discount penod 15 determined based on the pertod unil the
expected daie of benefit payment in each fiscal year, and the
discount rate 1s determined by reference to market vields for the
period correspending to the discount period at the end of the fiscal
year on high quality corperate bonds or government bonds
Liabiitres or assets for defined benehii plans are calculated by the
present value of the defined benefit obligation deducuing the fair
vatue of any plan assets (including adjustments for the asset ceilling
for defined benefit plan and minimum funding requirements, 1
necessary) Expected interest costs and interaest income are recog-
nized as hnancial costs

Remeasuraments of defined benefit plans are recognized 1n
full as other comprehensive income in the period when they are
incurred and transferred to retained earnings immediately Past
service costs are recognized as prefit or 10ss in the penod when
Incurred

The cost for retirement benefits for defined contributon plans 1s
recognized as an expense at the time of contribution

{14) Share-based Payments

The Company has a share opuon plan as an equity-settled share-
based payment plan Share opticns are estimated at fair value

al yrant ddate and are recognized as an expense over the vesung
penod in the consolidated statement of income after considening
the number of share options that are expected to be eventually
vested The corresponding amount 1S recognized as an increase
in equity 1n the consolidated statement of financial position

(15} Provisions
The Group has present obligations {legal or constructive) resulting
from past evenis and recognizes provisicns when it 1s probable that
the obligations are required to be settled and the amount of the
obligations can be estimated reliably

Where the effect of the time value of money is matenal, the
amount of provisions 1S measured at the present value of the expen-
ditures expected to be required to settle the obligations In calculat-
Ing the presert value the Group uses the pretax discount rate
reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific 1o the liability

In accordance with IAS 37 Prowisions, Contingent Liabilites and
Contingent Assets,” the Group recogrizes a provision for restructur-
ing when 1t has a detalled formal plan for the restructuring and has
raised a valid expectation in those affected that it wall carry out the
restructuring by siarting to implement that plan or announcing its
main scheme to those affected by it Restruciuring provisions
include only the direct expenditures ansing frem the restructuring
which meet both of the following critena
* necessarily entailed by the restructuring,
* not associated with the ongoing activines of the entity

JAPAN 10BACC O INC ANNUAL RFPORT 2015 vl




{16) Revenue
A Sale of Goods
The Group mainly engages I1n the sale of tobacco products pre-
scnption drugs and processed foods Revenue from the sale of
these goods 15 recognized when the significant nsks and rewards
of ownership of the goods transfer 10 the buyers the Group retains
neither continuing managerial invelvement nor effective control aver
the goods sold, it 15 probable that the future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue and the correspond-
Ing costs can be measured reltably Therefore ravenue ts usually
recognized at the ume of delivery of goods to customers In adds-
tion revenue I1s recognized at fair value of the consideration
received or recervable less discounts rebates and taxes including
consumption taxes

Since the amount of turnover where the Group 1s involved as an
agency including tobacco excise taxes s deducted from revenue,
the Greup recogrizes only the economic benefit inflow excluding
such amount as revenue In the consolidated statement of Income

B Interest Income
Interast income 1s recognized using the effective interest rate
method

C Dwvidend Income
Dividend income 1s recognized when the sharehclder's right to
rece:ve payment (s gstablished

D Royalties
Rovalties are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreement

{17} Government Grants
Government grants are recogrized at faw value when there 1s a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the condi-
tions attached to them and recerve the grants

In case that the government grants are related to expense items,
they are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis cver the
period In which the related costs for which the grants are intended
io compensate are recogmized With regard to government grants
for assets the amount of the grants 1s deducted from the acquisi-
tion cost of the assets

{18) Borrowing Costs

With respect to assets that necessanly take a substanual penod

of ime to get ready for their intended use or sale the borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiton construction
or preduction of the assetls are capitalized as pan of the acquisition
cost of the assets Other borrowing costs are recogrized as an
expense in the period when they are incurred

(19) Income Taxes

income taxes in the consciidated statement of iIncome are pre-
sented as the total of current iIncome taxes and deferred iIncome
taxes

Current income taxes are measured at the amount that is
expected to be paid to or refunded from the taxation authorities
For the calculation of the tax amount, the Group uses the 1ax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the fiscal year The current income taxes are recognized
in profit or loss except for taxes ansing from items that are recog-
nized in other cormnprehensive iIncome or directly in equity and taxes
arising from business combinations

Deferred income taxes are calculated based on the temporary
differences between the tax base for assets and habilities and the
carrying amount at the fiscal year end Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent thai it is
probabie that future taxable profit will be available against which
they can be utiized Deferred tax habilities are recognized for
taxable temporary differences

The deferred tax assets or habilities are not recognized for the
following temporary differences
= the imitial recognition of gocdwill
* the initial recogrition of assets ar Lkabiiities in transactions that are
net business combinatiens and at the time of transaction affect
neither accounting profint nor taxable profit or tax loss
deductible temporary differences ansing from investments in
subsidianes and associates and interests In joint venture to the
extent that 1115 probable that the trming of the reversal of the
ternporary difference in the foreseeabie future and 1t 1s not prob-
able that future taxable profits will be avalable against which they
can be utihzed

taxable temporary differences ansing from investments in subsid-
1aries and associates and interests in joint venture to the extent
that the uming of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s con-
trolled and that it 1s probable the temporary difference will not
reverse \n the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the fiscal year when the asset Is real-
1zed or the hability 13 settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the fiscal year end

(20) Treasury Shares

Treasury shares are recognized at cost and deducted from equity
No gatn or loss s recognized on the purchase sale or canceliation
of the treasury shares Any difference between the carrying amount
and the consideration paid 1s recognized in capital surplus

{21) Earmings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divding profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company by the
weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding Guring the
year, adjusted by the nurnber of treasury shares Diluted earnings
per share are calculated by adjusting the effects of dilutive potenual
ordinary shares
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(22) Dividends

Dividend distributions to the shareholders of the Company are rec-
ognized as frabilities in the penod in which for year end dividends,
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting approves the distnbution and
for intenm dmadends the Board of Directors’ Meeung approves
the distnibution

(23) Contingencies

A Contingent Liabihities

The Group discloses contingent liabilities in the notes to consoli-
dated financial staterments if 1t has possible obligations at the fiscal
vear end whose existence cannct be confirmed at that date, or (f
the obligations do not meet the recognition ¢cntena of a provision
described in “20 Provisicns

B Contingent Assets

The Group discloses contingent assets in the notes to consolidated
financial statements if an inflow of future economic benefits 1o the
Group 1s probable but not virtually certain at the fiscal year end

{24) Adjusted Financial Measures

The adjusted financia! measures are calculated by adding certain
adjustment 1iems to the non-adjusied financial data or by deducung
the items from the non-adjusted financial data

4. Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The adjustment items are deterrmined by management s judg-
ment taking into consideraticn the nature and frequency of the
income and costs such that they provide effective comparative
information on the Group performance and that they reflect the
way of managing our business appropriately Adjusted financial
measures are presented i the consolidated statement of iIncome
‘6 Operating Segments and ‘30 Earnings per Share

The adjusted financial measures are not defined under IFAS and
are not comparable with equivalent indicators for cther entities

{Changes in Accounting Pohcies)

The Group has adopted the following new accounting standards,
amended standards and new interpretations from the fiscal year
ended December 31 2015

IFRS Description of new standards and amendments

IFRS S  Financial Amendments to hedge accounting

Instruments
1AS 18 Empioyee Clanfying the accounting treatment for
Benefits contributions from employees or third

parties set out in the formal terms cf
defined benefit plans

The effect of adopting the above standards and interpretations
on the consolidated financial staierments 1s iImmaterial
IFRS 8 mentioned above has been early adopted

Preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Group
requires management estimates and assumptons in order to
measure INCome expenses, assets and liabilities and disclose
conungencies as of the fiscal year end date These estimates and
assumptons are based on the best judgment of management in
hght of historical expenence and varous factors deemed to be
reasonable as of the fiscal year end date Given therr nature actual
resulis may differ from those estimates and assumptions

The estimates and assumptions are continucusly reviewed by
management The effects of a change In estimates and assumptions
are recognized in the penod of the change or the penod of the
change and future pencds

Amoeng the above estimates and assumptions the following are
items that may have a matenal effect on the amounts recognized In
the consolidated financial statements of the Group

A Impairment of Propearty, Plant and Equipment, Goodwill,
Intangible Assets and Investment Properties

With regard to property plant and equipment goodwill intangible

assets and investment properuies if there 1s any indication that the

recoverable amount declines below the carrying amounts of the

assets, the Group performs an impairment test

The important indications include significant changes with
adverse effect on the results of past or projected business perfor-
mance, significant changes in the use of acquired assets or 1n over-
all business strategy, and significant detenorations in industry trends
and economic trends With regard to goodwill, the impairment test
15 conducted at least once a year, regardless of any indication of the
impairment 0 order to ensure that the recoverable amount exceeds
the carrying amount

The impairment test 1s performed by comparing the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount of assets If the recoverable
amount declings below the carrying amount, iImpairment losses are
recognized The recoverable amount 1s mainly calculated based on
the discounted cash flow model Certain assumptions are made for
the useful lives and the future cash flows of the assets, discount
rates and long-term growth rates These assumptions are based on
the best estimates and judgments made by management however,
there 1s a possibility that these assumptions may be affected by
changes in uncertain future ecenomic conditions, which may have
a matenal impact on the consolidated financial statements in future
periods
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The methed for calculaung the recoverable amount is described
in 13 Property Plant and Equipment “14 Goodwill and
Intangible Assets and "16 Investment Property With regard to
goodwill, the sensitivity analysis ts descrnibed in “14 Goodwill and
intangible Assets

B Post-employment Benefits
The Group has varigus types of retirement benefit plans ncluding
defined benefit plans In addition, the mutual pension benefits plan
of the Company 15 one of the public pension systems under the
junsdiction of the government of Japan and the Company 15 legally
obligated to bear a part of the pension costs of the plan

The present value of defined benefit cbligations on each of these
plans and the related service costs are calculated based on actuanal
assumptions These actuarial assumptions require estimates and
Judgments on variables, such as discount rates and inflation rate

The Group obtains advice from external pension actuanes with
respect to the appropnateness of these actueanal assumptions
including these varniables

The actuanal assumptions are determined based on the best
estimates and judgments made by management, however there Is
a possibility that these assumptions may be affected by changes in
uncertain future economic condittons or by the publication or the
amendment of related faws which may have a matenal impact on
the consohdated financial statements in future periods

These actuarial assumptions and related sensitivity analysis are
descrnbed in "22 Employee Benefits

C Provisions
The Group recognizes varnicus provisions including provistons for
asset retirement obligations and restructunng n the consolidated
statement of financial position

These provisions are recognized based on the best estmates of
the expenditures required to settle the obligations taking risks and
uncertainty related to the obligations into account as of the fiscal
year end date

Expenditures required to settle the obligations are calculated
by taking posstbie results into account comprehensively however
they may be affected by the occurrence of unexpected events or
changes \n condiions which may have a matenal impact on the
consclidated financial statements in future periods

The nature and amount of recognized provisions are descnbed
in "20 Provisions "

D Income Taxes
The Group operates business activities around the world, and 11
recognizes current tax liabiities and income taxes as the esumated
amounis to be paid 1o the tax authonues, based on the estimation
Iin accordance with their laws and regulations

Caleculating current tax liabilites and income taxes requires esti-
mates and Judgment on varicus factors including the interpretaton
of 1ax regulations by taxable entties and the tax authonty in the
Jurisdiction or the experience of past tax audits

Therefore there may be dfferences between the amount
recognized as tax babilities and income taxes and the amount of
actual tax habiities and income taxes These differences may have
a matenal impact on the consolidated financial statements In future
periods

fn addition, deferred tax assets are recogrized to the extent that
it 1s probable that taxable income will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized

In recognizing the deferred tax assets when judging the possibil-
ny of the future taxable income wae reascnably esttmate the timing
and amount of future taxable iIncome based on the business plan

The timing when taxable income anses and the amount of such
income may be affected by changes in uncertam future economic
conditions Therefore this may have a materal impact on the con-
solidated financiat statements in future pericds

The content and amount related to iIncome taxes are described in
17 Income Taxes

E Contingencies
With regard to contingencies, any items that may have a matenal
impact on business in the future are disclosed in hght of all the
avallable evidence as of the fiscal year end date and by taking into
account the probability of these contingencies and their impact on
financial reporting

The content of contingencies i1s described in 40 Contingencies *
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5 New Accounung Standards Not Yet Adopted by the Group

By the date of approval of the consclidated financial statements,

new accounting standards, amended standards and new Interpre-
tatons that have been 1ssued but have not been early adopted by

the Group are as follows

The implications from adoption of these standards and interpre-
tations are assessed by the Group however we evaluate that none
of them will have a matenal impact on our operating results and

financial condition

Mandatery adoption To be adopted
IFRS {From 1he year beginning) by the Group Description of new slandards and amendments
IFRS 5 Nan-current Assets Held  January 1 2018 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying accounting treatment in cases where the ¢riera to classify
for Sale and Discontineed December 2018 a non-currant asset as held for distribution 10 owners are no longar met
Qperatons Qr casas wherg a nan-current assel s reclassified from hetd for sala o
held for distnbution to owners
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments January 1 2018 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying the criteria on whether a servicing contract 18 continuing
Disclosures December 2016 involvement in a transferred financial asset
Clanfying the applicability of the offset disclosure of financial assets and
financial habilities to condensed intenm financial statements
IFRS 9 Finanocial Instruments January 1, 2018 Fiscal vear ending  Lirmited ¢changes to classification and measurement of financial assets,
December 2018 and introduction of an expecied cred:t loss impairment model
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Madifications of accounting for the acquisition of an interest In a (oint
December 2016 aperation \n ¢irgumstances in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business as defined in IFRS 3
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deterral January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Issuance of requirements for accounting treatment for regulatory
Accounts December 2016 deferral accounts for rate-regulated activities
iFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts  January 1 2018 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to accounting treatment for recogruzing ravenue
with Cusiomers Dacember 2018
IFRS 16 Leases January 1 2019 Fiscal year ending  Amendments 1o accounting treatment for lease arrangements
Dacember 20193
1AS 1 Presentation of Financiat  January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying disclosure requirement regarding mater.ality considerations
Statements Dacernber 2018
I1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows January 1 2017 Fiscal year ending  Raquining disclosure of changes in iabik:ties ansing from financing
December 2017 activities
I1AS 12 income Taxes January 1 2017 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying the requirements for the recogrition of deferred tax assets
Dacembar 2017 for unreahized losses
1AS 19 Employee Benefits January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanifying the method of determiming the discount rate for post
December 2016 smployment benefit obligations
1AS 27 Sapasate Financial danuary 1 2018 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to gccounting treatment for investments in subsidianes
Staternents December 2016 joint ventures and associates 1n separate financial statements
1AS 34 Intenim Financial Japuary 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clarifying disclosure requirement for information  elsewhere 10 the
Reporting December 2016 intenm financial report
IFRS 10 investmem Entties January 1 2016 Fiscai year ending  Ctanfying excepuons for appiving consohdaton and the gqunty method
December 2016 for investment entiies
IFRS 12
1AS 28
IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Not yet determined Not yet determined Amendments o accounting treatment for sale or contnbution of agsets
1AS 78 Assets between an between an investor and Its associate or joint venture
Investor and 1ts Associate
or Joint Venture
1AS 16 Clanfication of January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying that a revenue-based method 15 not considered to be an
1AS 38 Acceptable Methods of December 2016 acceptable method of depreciation and amortization n principle
Depreciabion and
Amortization
IAS 16 Agriculture January 1 2018 Fiscal year ending  Prowvisions of accounting treatment for bearer plants
IAS 41 Decernber 2016
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6. Operaung Segments

(1) Outhine of Reportable Segments
The reportable segments of the Group are determined based on
the operating segments that are components of the Group for
which separate financial information 15 available and are evaluated
regularly by the Board of Directors in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance

The Group 1s mainty engaged In the manufacture and sale of
tobacco products prescnption drugs and processed foods With
respect to tobacco products, operalicns are managed separatety
for domesuc and overseas markets The reporiable segments of
the Group are composed of four segmenis ‘Domestic Tobacco
Business * "International Tobacco Business * ‘Pharmaceuticai
Business, ' and Processed Food Business They are determined
by types of products characteristics and markets

The Domestic Tobacco Business manufactures and selis
tobacco products in domestic areas {which include duty-free shops
in Japan and markets in China Hong Kong and Macau where the
Company s Chuna Division operates} The “International Tobacco
Business” manufactures and sells tobacco products overseas
mainly through JT International S A, which controls manufaciunng

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31 2014

and sales operations The Pharmaceutical Business” consists of
research and development and the manufacture and sale of pre-
scription drugs The * Processed Food Business” consists of the
manufacture and sale of frozen and room-temparature processed
foods bakery preducts and seasonings

'n addimon, B8everage Business” has baeen classified as discon-
tinued operations from the year ended December 31, 2015

For discontinued operations please refer to 38 Drscontinued
Operations *

{2) Revenues and Performances of

Reportable Segments
Revenues and performances of reportable segments from continu-
Ing operations are as follows The Board of Directors assesses the
segment performance and determines resource zllocation after
reviewing revenues and adjusted operating profit Since financial
income, financial costs and iIncome taxes are managed by the
Group head office, these income and expenses are excluded from
segment performance Transactions within the segments are based
mainly on prevailling market prices

Milhons of yen

FY2014
Reportable Segments
Domesuc International Processed
Tehacco  Tobacco “e=3  Pharmaceulicals Food Total Other W3 Ehmination Consolidated
Revenue
External revenug MNote® ¥506,725 ¥1,328,005 ¥47 555 ¥123351 ¥2,005637 ¥14,108 ¥ — ¥2019745
Intersegment revenue 12776 39,445 — 21 52 242 4,046 (56 288) —
Total revenue ¥519,501 ¥1,367,450 ¥47 555 ¥123373 ¥20567879 ¥ 18,154 ¥(56288) ¥2019 745
Segment profit {loss)
Adjusted operating profit Nae ¥172235 ¥ 447 053 ¥(6,814) ¥ 1,259 ¥ 613634 ¥(25266) ¥ 317 ¥ 588,684
Other items
Depreciation and amortization ¥ 33475 ¥ 699340 ¥ 3283 ¥ 5135 ¥ 111834 ¥ 2383 ¥ (227} ¥ 113889
Impairment losses en other than
financial assets 4,926 16,842 - 110 21877 — — 21877
Reversal of impairment losses
on other than financial assets - 33 - - 33 - —_ 33
Share of profit (loss) in Investments
accounted for using the equity method 114 7,671 — (26} 7,758 54 — 7,812
Capital expenditures 27,915 74,244 2,856 3,615 108,630 3.818 — 112 448
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FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

Financial Information

Mittons of yen
FY2015
Reportable Segments
Domestic Internalional Processed
Tobaoco Tobacco  Pharmaceuticals Food Total Other™™*  Ehminaton Consolidated
Revenue
External revenue Meted ¥677,331 ¥1,317,178 ¥75,564 ¥165,843 ¥2,235916 ¥ 16,968 ¥ — ¥2,252,884
Intersegment revenue 20,342 46,738 - 37 67,117 9,858 (76,976) -
Total revenue ¥697,672 ¥1,363,917 ¥75,564 ¥165,880 ¥2,303,034 ¥ 26,826 ¥(76,976) ¥2,252,884
Segment profit {loss)
Adjusted operating profit Vo= ! ¥254,053 ¥ 394,395 ¥(2,315) ¥ 2,728 ¥ 648,860 ¥(21,802) ¥ {402) ¥ 626,657
QOther items
Depreciation and amortization ¥ 43,668 ¥ 76,007 ¥ 4603 ¥ 6476 ¥ 130,754 ¥ 2,673 ¥ (303) ¥ 133,123
Impairment losses on other than
financial assets 1,168 4,393 187 56 5,805 3,757 {47) 9,516
Reversal of impairment losses
on other than financial assets - 276 - - 276 - - 276
Share of profit {loss} In Investments
accounted for using the equity method 61 6,252 - 37 6,351 30 - 6,381
Capital expenditures 37,416 77,217 6,200 5,651 126,484 3,970 {703) 129,751
Reconciliation from “Adjusted operating profit” to Profit before iIncome taxes”
FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014
Milhons of yen
Y2014
Reporiable Segments
Damestic international Processed
Tobscco  Tobacco™™=*  Pharmacauticals Food Total Other M=®*  Elimination Consolidated
Adjusted operaung profit Nes 1 ¥172235  ¥447,053 ¥(6,814) ¥1,259 ¥613,634 ¥(25,266) ¥317 ¥ 588,684
Amortzation cost of acquired
intangibles - {29,465} - - (29,465) - - (29 465}
Adjustment items (Income} Mete S 76 4221 - 3 4300 40,002 - 44,302
Adjustment items costs) Nees 156,580} 142 351) - {2219 1101,248) |2 355) — 1103 B4 1)
Operating profit {loss} ¥115631  ¥379458 ¥(6,914) ¥ (953} ¥ 487222 ¥12,34i ¥317 ¥499,880
Financial iIncome 13 808
Financial costs {11 162)
Profit betfore iIncome taxes ¥ 502 526
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FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

Millians of yen
Fr2015
Reportable Segments
Domesug Internatonal Processed
Tobacco Tobacco  Pharmaceuticals Food Total Other ™%  Eliminaton Consohdated
Adjusted operating profip o 1 ¥254,053 ¥394,395 ¥(2,315) ¥2,728 ¥648,860 ¥(21,802) ¥(402) ¥626,657
Amortzation cost of acquired

intangibles - (31,875) - - {31,875) - — {31,875)
Adjustment items {Income) Mewe S 97 3,548 - 464 4,108 6,238 — 10,346
Adjustment items (costs) Newe 5 {4,946) {19,148) - {9) (24,103} {15,798} - (39,900)
Qperating proftt {loss) ¥249,204  %346,921 ¥{(2,315) ¥3,182 ¥596,992 ¥(31,361) ¥{402) ¥565,229
Financial iIncome 15,016
Financial costs {15,132)
Profit before iIncome taxes ¥565,113

{Note 1} For adjusted operating profit amortization ¢ost of acquired intangbles and agjustmeant itams incoma and costs) are axcludad from operating profit {loss)

{Nota 2) Tha oreign subsicianes group which includas tha core company of JT Internatanal S A that 15 part of the “Internanona Tobacco Businass™ sagrmant conunues 10 have
December 31 as 1ts fiscal year end date as before and the profit or loss for the penod from January ¥ 2014 to Decarnber 31 2014 13 included 10 tha rine months ended
December 31 2014

(Note 3} "Other” includes business actvitias relating to rant of real estate and corporate expensas relatng 1o corparata communication and oparaticn of the head office

(Note 4} Core revenus as part of the Domestic Tabacco Business and the intarmnatonal Tobacco Business 15 as follows

Millklons of yen

FY2014 FY2o15

{Nine months ended December 31 2014) [Vatr dvcded Docarmber 31 2015)

Domestic Tohacco ¥ 478,692 ¥ 642,240
International Tobacco 1258176 1,252,496

(Note 5} "Adjustmant 1tems (inceme)” include restructunng income of gains on sale of real estate
“Adjustment Items [costs} include restructuning costs of the closing down of a factory
The breakdown of restructuring incoma Is describad in “26 Other Oparaung Income ~ Rastructunng costs included in Cost of sales  were ¥70 millien ang ¥57 million for the mhe
months ended Dacember 31 2014 and for the year ended December 31 2015 respectvely Restructunng cosis includac in “Selling general and administrative expanses” werg
¥100 335 milion and ¥39 843 milian far tha nine months énded December 31 2014 and for the yaar anded December 33 2015 respectively The breakdown of restructuring
casts in “Selling general and adminisrative axpenses™ |s éescribed 1n “27 Seling Ganaral and Administrative Expansas ~
The breakdown of Adjustment items (costs) 1s as follows

Milions of yen

FYz014 FY2015

(Ning months ended December 31 2014) (Yaar encled December 31 2015)

Restructuning costs ¥100,405 ¥39,900
Other 3 236 -
Adjustmaent items {costs) ¥103,641 ¥39,900

Restructuning costs for the nine months ended December 31, 2014 mainly relate to costs of measures to strengthen the competitiveness of
“Domestic Tobacco Business” and restructuring of manufacturing facilities 1n Europe in the “International Tobacco Business ” Restructuring
costs for the year ended December 31 2015 mainly relate to rationalization of distnbution system and factory platferm in seme markets in
the “International Tobacco Busingss and disposal of real estate

{3) Geographic Information
The regional breakdown of non-current assets and external revenue from continuing operations as of each fiscal year end is as follows

Non-current Assets

Millans of yer

FY2014 FY2015

(As of Dacember 21 2014 {As of Dwownber 31 2015)

Japan ¥ 522920 ¥ 461,265
Overseas 2,155 365 2,005,979
Consolidated ¥2,678 285 ¥2,467,244

{Noig) Non-current assets exclusive of financial instrumenis deferrad tax assets and retirement bansfits assets are segmented by the location of the assels
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External Revenue from Continuing Operations

Millons of yen

Y014 FY2015

{Nine months andaa Dacembar 31 2014) (¥aar etied Decamber 31 2015)

Japan ¥ 667 527 ¥ 894,710
Overseas 1,352,218 1,358,174
Consohdated ¥2,019,745 ¥2,252,884

{Noze} Revenue 18 segmented by the sales destination

(4) Major Customers Information

The “International Tobacco Business of the Group selfls products to the Megapolis Group that engages in distnbution and wholesale
business in Russia and other countnes The external revenues from the Megapols Group were ¥335,446 million (16 6% of consolidated
revenue} for the nine months ended December 31 2014 and ¥293 541 mullton {13 0% of consolidated revenue) for the year ended

December 31, 20156

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The breakdown of Cash and cash equivalents” as of each fiscal year end is as follows

Miiions of yen

Fr20i4 FY2015

|As of Dacember 31 2014) {As of Dagember 31 2015}

Cash and deposits ¥297 000 ¥399,265

Short-term investments 88 820 127,499

Total ¥385 820 ¥526,765

Cash and cash equsvalents are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost
8. Trade and Other Receivables

The breakdown of Trade and cther recevables’ as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Mhihons of yen

FYz014 FY2015

iAs ot December 11 2014) {As of Decamber 31 2015)

Note and account recewvables ¥435,824 ¥392,882

Other 14,487 15,316

Allowance for doubtful accounts {1910} (1,812)

Total ¥448,402 ¥406,387

Trade and other receivables are presented net of allowance for doubtiul accounis in the consolidated statement of financial position
Jrade and other receivables are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost
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9. Inventornies

The breakdown of Inventories as of each fiscal year end is as follows

Mithons of yen

Frz014 FY2015

{As of Decernber 31 014) (A= of Decernbar 31 2015)

Merchandise and finished goods MNee 1 ¥163 436 ¥162,208
Leaf tobacco Mo ? 367 991 344,623
Other 56 422 56,989
Total ¥587,849 ¥563,820

{Ncta 1) For imparted robacco products (merchandise) that arg sold by TS Network Co Lid  a subsidiary of the Company commissions solety from wholesale are included in revenue
The amount of imported tohacco products (merchandise) that tha company holds al the end of each fiscal year 1s included in Inventories and presented as "Merchandisa and

firished goods

{Nae 2) Leat wobacco includes those products that will be used after 12 months from the end of each fiscal year but they are included i inven'ones since they are held within the normal

operating cycle

10 Other Financial Assets

{1) The breakdown of Other financial assets as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Mithons of yen

FY2014 FYZ015

(As of Dacamber 31 2014) {As of December 31 2015)

Derwvative assets ¥ 31,837 ¥ 7,906
Equity secunties 5% 355 72,795
Debt securities 8,787 6,600
Time deposits 1044 994
Other 43 530 39,614
Allowance for doubtful accounts 8 685) (7.533)
Total ¥135,866 ¥119,576
Current assets ¥ 43907 ¥ 17,849
Non-current assets 91,959 101,727
Total ¥135 866 ¥119,576

Other financial assets are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts in the consoldated statement of financial position

Dervative assets are classified as financiat assets measured at fair value through profit or loss excluding those hedge accounting 1s
applied to equity secunties are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and ume deposits
and debt secunties are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost

{2) Names of major securities held as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and therr fair values as of

sach fiscal year end are as follows

Millions of yen

2014 FY2015
Company name (As of Decomnber 31 2014} {As of December 31 2015)
KT&G Corporation ¥23,939 ¥30,926
Seven &1 Holdings Co  Ltd 3728 4,747
Mizuho Financial Group, Ing 2 580 3,114
Mitsutnshi UFRS Financial Greup, Inc 2 384 2,668
DOUTOR=N{CHIRES Holdings Co Ltd 2314 2,496
Japan Airport Terminal Co  Lid 1914 2,168
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Financial Information

Equity secunties are held mainly for strengthening relaticnships wath investees Therefore they are designated as financial assets

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

In order to pursue the efficiency of assets held and to use them effectively, sales of financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income have been carried out {derecognition}

The farr value at the time of sale and cumulative gain or loss that is recognized In equity through other comprehensive income for each

fiscal year I1s as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015

{Nina months ended Cecembar 31 2014) {Year anded Decarnber 31 2015}

Fair Value ¥227 ¥ 800
Cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity as other comprehensive income e 23 {232)

{Nate} The hgure represents the amount transferred to retained earmings

The cumulative gain or loss recognized N equity as other comprehensive Incoma s transfarred to ralained earmings whan an aquity INstrumant 1S sold or the dacline n its far value

comparad [0 (15 acquisition cost IS s:gnlflcam

11. Other Current Assets

The breakdown of Qther current assets” as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

Milllons of yen
Frz014 FY2015
iAs of Dacambaer 31 2014} {As of Decenber 31 2015}
Prepaid tobacco excise taxes ¥180 160 ¥219,942
Prepaid expenses 16,914 14,144
Consumption tax receivables 12,818 17,125
Other 20,637 29,282
Total ¥230 530 ¥280,493
12 Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale
The breakdown of Non-current assets held-for-sale” as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows
Breakdown of Major Assets
millions aof yan
FY2014 FY2015

{As of Dacambaer 31 2014}

{As of Dugamber 31 2015}

Non-current assets held-for-sale

Property plant and equipment ¥115 ¥ 105
Investment property 252 2,799
Total ¥367 ¥2,904

"Non-current assets held-far-sale” are maunly rental propertas
and idle properties which are currently actively marketed for sale

With regard to such asseis and assets sold imparrment losses
from continuing operaticns of ¥46 million and ¥47 million are
recognized in ‘Sefing general and administrative expenses” In

respectively
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13 Property, Plant and Equipment

(1) Schedule of Property, Plant and Equipment

The schedules of the carrying amount acquisttion cost and accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses of Property

plant and equipment are as follows

Millions of yen

Land buildings Machinery Tools fyrniture Construcuon
Carrying Amount and structures and vehicles and fixures In progress Total
As of Apni 1 2014 ¥331,308 ¥311,929 ¥ 63,710 ¥ 68 041 ¥779 987
Individual acquisition 15 646 33,818 16,944 42 215 108,623
Capitalization of borrowing costs hete) — — - 141 141
Acquisition through business combinations 4 1 10 - 15
Transfer to investment property (2,627} {1} (5) — {2 633}
Depreciation (13 545} (48,444} {18 088) - {80,075}
Impairment losses (7 552} (10 663) {177} (653} (15 045)
Reversal of impairment losses - 33 — - 33
Sale or disposal (655) (7,867) 461) {444) {9,427)
Exchange differences on translatien of foreign operations {3070) (11,808) {1,0886) (4 480} {20,443)
Other 6 385 25,406 774 (33,614} {1,050}
As of December 31 2014 325,895 292,404 66,622 71 206 756,127
Individual acquisition 27,483 29,903 20,601 42,433 120,420
Acquisition through business combinations 560 3,538 69 1 4,168
Transfer to iInvestment property (19,439) (90} (192) - (19,721}
Transfer to non-current assets held-for-sale {193) {415) Q) - (608)
Depreciation {16,380) {54,478) (19,237) - (90,094)
impairment losses {1,988} {2,826} {3,133} (58} {8,003)
Reversal of impairment losses - 229 1 46 276
Sale or disposal {2,025) {4,103} {3,836) (189} {10,154)
Decrease resulting from transfer of subsidianes (5,617) {4,732) {14,059} - (24,407}
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {14,886) {23,311) {2,475} {3,964) (44,635)
Other 46,130 13,041 1,994 {62,667) {1,503}
As of December 31, 2015 ¥339,542 ¥249,160 ¥ 46,355 ¥ 46,808 ¥681,865

{Note) The capitalization rates calculating the borrowing costs for capitalizauon ware 4 6% for the ming months ended December 31 2014
There are na capralized borrowing casts for the year ended December 31 2015

Millons aof yen

Land buildings Machinery Tools furniture Construction
Acguisition Cost and structures and vehicles and fixtures n progress Total
As of Apnl 1 2014 ¥654 008 ¥B11,079 ¥187,958 ¥68 041 ¥1,721 087
As of December 31, 2014 661172 804 276 188 732 71,208 1 725,386
As of December 31, 2015 633,789 708,561 144,618 45,808 1,631,776
Miitiens of yen

Lang bulldings Machinery Tools furniture Construction
Accumulated Deprectaton and Accumulated Imparment Losses and structures and vehicles and fixtures N Progréess Total
As of Apni 1 2014 ¥322,700 ¥499 150 ¥119 250 ¥ — ¥ 941099
As of December 31 2014 335 277 511 872 122 110 - 969 25%
As of December 31, 2015 294,247 457,401 98,263 - 849,910
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The carrying amount of property plant and equipment as of each fiscal year end includes the carrying amount of the following leased assets

Millkons cf yen

Land buildings Machinary Tools turriture
and structures and vehicles and fixtures Total
Asof Apnil 1 2014 ¥1335 ¥5,015 ¥6 763 ¥13 113
As of December 31, 2014 6,910 5 250 6,766 18,826
As of December 31, 2015 6,801 1,853 9 8,662
{2) impairment Losses carrying amounts to the recoverable amounts of the buitdings
The grouping of property plant and equipment for impairment test structures, machinery and vehicles due to decision of closing down
1s the smallest cash-generating unit that independently generates of a factory
cash inflow The recaverable amounts of these assets are calculated mainly
The Group recognized impairment losses from continuing opera- by ther values in use which are set at “zero ”
tions of ¥19 045 million for the mine months ended December 31 Impairment losses recognized in the year ended December 31,
2014, and ¥5,185 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 1n 2015 represent the losses Incurred to reduce the carrying amounts
Selling general and administrative expenses 0 the consolidated to the recoverable amounts of the buldings, structures machinery
statement of iIncome and vehicles due to decisien of closing down of a factory
Impairment losses recognized In the nine menths ended The recoverable amounts of these assets are calculated mainly
December 31 2014 represent the losses incurred to reduce the by ther values in use which are set at “zero ”

14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

{1} Schedule of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The schedules of carrying amount acquisition cost and accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses of ‘Goodwill and
‘Intangible assets are as follows

Miihans of yen

Carrying Amount Googwiil Trademarks Software Other Total
As of Apnil 1, 2014 ¥1584 432 ¥321,234 ¥ 34 366 ¥29,501 ¥1969 532
Individual acquisition 43 256 5176 6 354 11,836
Acquisition thraugh business combinations 29615 376 4 — 29995
Amortzation Mol - {27 326) {9,457 (4 299) {41,082)
Imparrment losses - (2,672) (B} - (2,678)
Sale or disposal - - 87 (148) (234)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (74,720) 10 085 977 376 {63,281)
Other — 7 4,882 {4,688) 201
As of December 31 2014 1 539376 301,960 35 856 27,096 1904 288
Indimaidual acquisition - 794 7,232 7.024 15,061
Acquisition through business combinations 65,252 14,967 8 8,740 88,967
Amortization iNere} - (30,216} (12,852) {5,040) {48,107)
Impairment losses - — (268) {362) {631)
Sale or disposal - {0) {316) {140} {456)
Decrease resultng from transfer of subsidianies (882} {0} (193} (3,022) (4,097
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatons {174,516} {20,182) {(172) {206) (195,076)
Other 57 1,505 4,124 {3.858) 1,827
As of December 31, 2015 ¥1,429,287 ¥268,828 ¥ 33,418 ¥30,232  ¥1,761,765

{Note) Tha amarization of intangible assets s included in "Cost of sales™ and ~“Selling general and administrative expenses™ in the consohdated s.a.ement of income The amortization of
intang:bie assats from discentnued operatwans 15 included 1n "Profil (loss) for tha penod from discontinued opera iong
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Millions of yen

Acqursition Cost Goodwill Trademarks Software Other Total
As of Apnil 1, 2014 ¥1 584,432 ¥824 669 ¥123 940 ¥92,853 ¥2,625 833
As of December 31, 2014 1,539 376 845 499 132,309 92 280 2,609 465
As of December 31, 2015 1,429,287 818,982 135,951 92,062 2,476,282

Millicns of yen

Accumufated Amortization and Accumulated Impeirmens Losses Goodwall Trademarks Software Qther Total
As of Apnl 1, 2074 ¥ - ¥503,435 ¥ 89574 ¥63,352 ¥656 361
As of Decernber 31 2014 - 543 539 96,453 65,184 705177
As of December 31, 2015 - 550,154 102,533 61,830 714,517

(2) Material Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets recognized in the consolidated state-
ment of financial posiien are mainly composed of goodwill and
trademarks In the JTIH Group The carrying amounts of goodwatl
as of December 31 2014 and December 31 2016 were ¥1 496 799
milion and ¥1,387,593 million, respectively The carrying amounts
of trademarks as of December 31, 2014 and December 31 2015
were ¥299,502 milkon and ¥266,521 million respectvely

The majority of the goodwill and trademarks was recognized as
a result of acquisitions of RJR Nabisco's non-U $ tobacco opera-
tiens 1n 1999 and Gallaher in 2007

The trademarks are amortized using the straight-line method
and the remaining amortization period 1s mainly 11 years

(3} Impairrment Test for Goodwill

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the carrying amount of the
majority of gcodwill 1s allocated to the international tobacco casn-
generating unit of ¥1 387 583 millicn (¥1,496,793 milon for the
nine months ended December 31 2014) and the processed food
cash-generating unii of ¥25 388 million (¥25,368 million for the
rine months ended December 31 2014} Details of the result of
impairment tests are as follows

A Intemational Tobacco Cash-genarating Unit
The recoverable amount 1s calculated by the value in use based on
the three-year business plan that was prepared by reflecting past
experiences and external information and that was approved by
management After the three-year business plan, the Group sets
a growth rate from 3 2% in the fourth year {FY2014 5 1%) to 38%
In the ninth vear (FY2014 3 9%), and the same growth rate as
the ninth year from the tenth ygar as a conunued growth rate
for inflation

The discount rate before taxes 1s 11 7% {FY2014 11 1%) The
value in use sufficiently exceeds the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit Therefore even in cases where the discount raie

and growth rate used in calculating the value In use fluctuate within
reasonable ranges the Group assumes that the value in use will not
become less than the carrying amount

B Processed Food Cash-generating Unit

The recaverable amount 1s calculated by the value in use based on
the three-year business plan that was prepared by reflecung past
experiences and external iInfermauon and that was approved by
managemeni After the three-year husiness plan the Group sets

a growth rate from 2 8% in the fourth year (FY2014 28%)10 1 1%
In the minth year (FY2014 2 1%} and the same growth rate as the
ninth year 1ssued from the tenth year as a continued growth rate
for inflation The discount rate before 1axes 1s 4 1% (FY2014 3 9%)
The value in use sufficiently exceeds the carrying amount of the
cash-generating urut Therefore, even in casas where the discount
rate and growth rate used 1n calculating the value in use fluctuate
within reasonable ranges, the Group assumes that the value in use
will not become less than the carrying amount

{4} Impairment Losses
Goodwill 15 allccated to cash-generating units that are :dentified
according to locations and iypes of businesses The grouping
of intangible assets for impairment test 1s the smallest cash-
generating urit that independently generates cash inflow

The Group recognized impairment losses from centinuing opera-
vons of ¥2,678 million for the mine months ended December 31
2014 and ¥311 millton for the year ended December 31, 2015 1n

Seling general and admirustrative expenses ' in the conselidated

statement of income

Imparrment losses recognized in the nine menths ended
December 31 2014 represent the losses incurred to reduce the
carrying amounts to the recoverable amounts of trademarks
and software as the recoverable amounts were lower than the
carrying amounts

The receverable amounts of these assets are calculated mainly
by ther values in use
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15 Lease Transactions

The Group leases factory sites, vehicles and cther assets as a lessee Some of the lease coatracts have renewal options or escalation

clauses There are no restrictions on addiional debt and further leasing imposed by the lease arrangements

(1) Present Value of Finance Lease Obligations

The total of future mirtmum lease payments for leased assets reccgnized based on the finance lease contracts, their present value and

future financial costs as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Millions of yen

Fy2014
(As of Decembar 31 2014)

FY2015
{As of Decernber 31 2015}

Not later than 1 year

Total of future mintmum lease payments ¥ 4675 ¥ 702
Future financial costs 357 149
Present value 4318 653
Later than 1 year and not later than five years
Total of future munimum (ease payments 10,071 2,201
Future financial costs 1168 1,062
Present value 8,902 1,140
Later than 5 years
Total of future minimum lease payments 10 447 10,066
Future financial costs 4015 3,385
Present value 6432 6,680
Total
Total of future minimum lease payments 25,192 12,969
Future financial costs 5540 4,596
Present value 19,652 8,373
(2) Future Minimum Lease Payments under Non-cancellable Operating Leases
The total of future mmimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows
Milons of yen
FY2014 FY2015
{As of Decembar 31 2014) (AS of Dacembet 31 20151
MNot later than 1 year ¥ 8250 ¥ 6,446
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 9 957 8,968
Later than 5 years 7,996 7,419
Total ¥26 203 ¥22,833

{3) Total of Minimum Lease Payments and Contingent Rents

The total of minimum lease payments and contingent rents of operating lease contracts recognized as an expense from continuing

operauons for each fiscal year 1s as follows

Milhons of yen

Fy2014 FY201§

{Nina menths ended December 31 2014) {Year snced Decsenber 31 2015)

Total of minimum lease payments ¥11,625 ¥11,621

Contingent rents 713 1,057
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16 Investment Property

(1} Schedule of Investment Property

The schedule of the carrying amount of “Investment property for each fiscal year s as follows

Miliensg of yen
Fr2014 FY2015
{N:na months ended Dacember 31 2014) {Year ended Decernber 31 2015)
Balance at the beginning of the period ¥ 61,421 ¥17.870
Expenditure after acquisiticn 77 556
Transfer from property plant and equipment 2,633 19,721
Transfer 1o non-current assets held-for-sale (44 387) (3,660)
Transfer ta praperty plant and equipment - {731)
Depreciation (1014) (856)
Impairment losses (108) {3,973)
Sale or disposal (760) {5,399)
Decrease resulting from transfer of subsidiaries — (B)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0 8)
Other 2 -
Balance at the end of the period ¥ 17870 ¥23614
Acquisttion cost at the beginning of the penod ¥108,831 ¥46,084
Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
at the beginning of the period 47 410 28,214
Acquisition cost at the end of the penod 46,084 69,106
Accumuiated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
at the end of the period 28,214 45,493

{2} Fair Value

The fair value of investment property 1s determined based on a valuation conducted by an external real estate appraiser The valuation 1s
made in accordance with the appraisal standards of the country where the investment property 15 located and based orn market evidence

ot transaction prices for simiar assets
The fair value hierarchy of investment property 18 categorized from Level 1 to Level 3 as follows

Level 1 Fair value measured at the quoted price in the active market

Level 2 Far value that is calculated using the observable price cther than categorized in Level 1 directly or indirectly
Level 3 Fair value that 1s calculated based on valuation techniques which include inputs that are not based on observable market data

The fair value of investment property based on the farr value hierarchy as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 {As of December 31 2014]

Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Tota!

Investment property ¥ — ¥44 687 ¥1,986 ¥46 674

Millons of yen

FY2015 [As of December 31 205)

Level 1 Level 2 Ltevel 3 Total

Investment property ¥ - ¥64,829 ¥3,526 ¥68,355
The carrying amount of investment preperty as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Milliens of yen

FY2014 FY2015

{45 of Decemper 31 2014) (Aa of Dacernber 31 20151

Investment property ¥17,870 ¥23,614
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{3} Income and Expenses from Investment Property
The rentat Income from investment property and direct operating expenses from continuing opserations for each fiscal year are as foflows

Milhons of ven

Fy2014 FY2015

{Nine months ended December 31 2014} {Year ended Decensber 31 2015}

Rental income ¥3,796 ¥2,740
Direct operating expenses 2629 2,834

(4} Impairment Losses
The grouping of investment properties for impairment test 1s based
on the smallest cash-generating unit that independently generates
cash inflow Impairment test for 1dle properties 1s carried out
individually

The Group recogrized impairment losses from contiuing ope-
rations of ¥108 mullicn for the nine months ended December 31
2014, and ¥3,973 million for the year ended December 31 2015 in

Selling general and administrative expenses” in the consofidated

statement of income

Impairment losses recognized for the nine months ended
December 31 2014 represent the difference between the recover-
able amount and the carrying amount of land and bulldings as idle

properues were iIndividually selected for demolition The recoverable
arnount 1s calculated based on value in use basis which is zero for
burldings due to the decisicn of demolition and the recoverzble
amount of other properties i1s calculated by the fair value less costs
of disposal

Irmpairment losses recognized for the year ended December 31,
2075 represent the difference between the recoverable amount and
the carrying amount of land and buldings as idle properties were
individually selected for demolition

The recoverable amount 1s calculated based on value In use
basis which 15 zero for buildings due to the decision of demaolition,
and the recoverable amount of other properties I1s calculated by
the fair value less costs of disposal

17. Income Taxes

(1) Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities
The breakdown and schedule of “Ceferred tax assets” and 'Deferred tax iabihiues by major causes of thair occurrence for each fiscal year

are as follows

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Millions of yen

Recogrized in Ag of

As of Recognized in other compre- December 31
Delerrad Tax Assets Apnl 1 2014 profit or loss hensive Income QOther Meen 2014
Fixed assets Now? ¥ 42,763 ¥ 2051 ¥ - ¥ 414 ¥ 45228
Retirement benefits 94101 22,786 6 550 893 124 330
Carryforward of unused tax losses 59,369 3401 — 280 63 050
Other 86 186 {10 195) 6,628 3064 85,684
Subtotal 282,420 18043 13,178 4 651 318,292
Valuation allewance (64 911) {144} 1 {1433) (66 478}
Total ¥217,508 ¥ 17,898 ¥13 189 ¥3218 ¥251 814
Miliions of yen

Recogrized in As of

As of Recognized in other compre December 31

Defarred Tax Liabilities Aprl 1 2014 profit or loss hensive income Othear Wae 1 2014
Fixed assets Mo ¥(131 013} ¥15715 ¥ — ¥(455) ¥(115 753)
Retrement benefits 13,403) {2 043) {1 968) 80 (7,334)
Cther 190,9186) {10 636) {5, 753) 583 106,722}
Total ¥(225 332) ¥ 3,035 ¥{(7,721) ¥ 209 ¥(229 809}
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FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

Mithons of yen

Recognized in As of

Asof Aecogruzed in other compre Decamber 31

Delerred Tax Assets January 1 2015 profit or loss hensive Income Other Hewtt 2015
Fixed assets Now2 ¥ 45228 ¥ (4,868) ¥ - ¥ 32 ¥ 40,392
Raurement benaiits 124 330 {25.886) {3,495) (3.080) 91,870
Carryforward of unused tax losses 63 050 1,479 - (6,946) 57.682
Other B85 684 {1,513) {4,860) (2,472) 76,839
Subtotat 318,292 (30,788} (8,355) {12,466) 266,683
Valuation gllowance {66 478} {4,403) {611) 5,704 {65,788)
Total ¥251,814 ¥35,191} ¥(8,966) ¥ (6,762) ¥200,895
Milkions of yen

Recogrized in As of

As of Recognized other compre Decembaer 31

Deferred Tax Liabihties January 1 2015 profit or ioas hangive iIncome Other o= 1t 25
Fixed assets Noed ¥{115 753) ¥24,602 ¥ - ¥3,236 ¥ {87,915)
Retirement benefits (7,334) {476) (602) 615 (7,696)
Qther (106 722) {913} 2,147 4,794 {100,693)
Total ¥(229,809) ¥23,214 ¥1,646 ¥8,645 ¥{196,305)

{Nate 1) “Other” includes exchange differances on transtaton of foreign operatians
{Note 2} “Fixed assets” include proparty plant and equipment goodwill intangible assets and investmant praperty

The deferred tax assels are recognized by taking taxable tempo-
rary cdifferences future taxable profits plan and tax planning mto
account The carryforward of unused tax losses for which the
deferred tax assets are not recognized, was ¥50 549 milkon {(includ-
Ing ¥23,962 million, for which the carryforward expires after five

years} as of December 31, 2014, and ¥47 738 millien (including 31 2015
¥14 609 milhon, for which the carryforward expires after five years}

(2) Income Taxes

The breakdown of “Income taxes from continuing operations for each fiscal year is as follows

as of December 31, 2015 Tax credits for which the deferred tax
assets are not recognized, were ¥806 midhon (including ¥182 mul-
lion for which the carryforward expires after five years) as of
December 31, 2014 and ¥3 953 million {including ¥3,669 milkion
for which the carryforward expires after five years) as of December

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015

(Nina months anded Decemnbaer 31 2014) {Yeur anded December 31 2015)

Current iIncome taxes ¥154 750 ¥150,774
Deferred income taxes {21,939) 11,612
Total iIncome taxes ¥132 811 ¥162,386

Detferred income taxes increased by ¥61 millon and decreased by ¥1 358 million for the mine months ended December 31, 2014 and for
the year ended December 31 2015 respecuvely due to the effect of changes in iax rates s Japan and ¢ther countries
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{3) Reconciliation of the Effective Tax Rate

The breakdown of major tems that caused differences between the effective statutory tax rate and the average actual tax rate in continuing

operations for each fiscal year 1s as follows

The Company 15 subject mainly to corperate tax inhabitant tax and enterpnse tax and the effecuve statutory tax rate calculated based

on these taxes was 35 41% Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income taxes at their locations

%

Fy2ol4 FY2015

{Nina months ended Cacember 31 2014) (Yaar ended December 31 2015)

Effective statutory tax rate 3541 354
Different tax rates applied to foreign subsidiaries 1327) (10 20)
Non-deductible expensas 189 053
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 200 063
Valuation allowance 025 174
Other Q15 064
Average actual tax rate 2643 2874

18 Trade and Other Payables

The breakdown of Trade and other payables” as of each fiscal year end is as follows

Milhons of ven

FY2014 FY2015

{As of Decamber 31 2014) {As of December 31 2015)

Accounts payable ¥188 674 ¥178,709
Other payables 147 918 104,193
Other 83173 90,130
Total ¥419,764 ¥373,032

Trade and other payables are classified as financial habilities measured at amortized cost

19 Bonds and Borrowings (including Other Financial Liabilities)

(1) Breakdown of Financial Liabilities
The breakdown of Bends and borrowings ’ and “Other financial labilities * as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Miliens of yen %
FY2014 FY2015 Average interast
{As of Decamber 31 20141 [As of December 31 2015) rate o= 1 Due
Denvative iabilities ¥ 10010 ¥ 5,595 - -
Short-term borrowings 27,632 30,832 447 —
Current portion of long-term borrowings 39930 148 2% -
Current portion of bonds Nee2 40 000 — - -
Long-term borrowings 1,046 866 390 2017-2028
Bondsg e 2 99 954 215,072 - -
Other 23070 11,007 - =
Total ¥241,642 ¥263,520
Current habihties ¥122 024 ¥ 37,439
Non-current habilittes 119,618 226,080
Total ¥241 642 ¥263,520

{Note 1) The average Interest rate 1s calculated using the interest rate and outstanding balance as of December 31, 2015
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{Note 2) The summary of the 1ssuing conditions of the bonds 1s as follows

Millons of yen

G/ o

FY2014 FY2015 Interest
Company Mame of bond Qata of iwsuance {As of Dogember 31 2814} {As of Decamber 31 2015} Tale Collateral Date of maiurty
Japan Tobacco Inc 6th domestic December 9, 2010 ¥40 000 ¥ — 053 Yes December 9, 2015
straight bond (40,000}
Japan Tobacco Inc  7th domestic December 9, 2010 20 Q00 20,000 084 Yes Decembper 8 2017
straight bond
Japan Tobacco Inc  8th domestic December 9 2010 20000 20,000 130  Yes December 9, 2020
straight bond
Japan Tobacco Inc 9th domestic July 15, 2015 — 60,000 022  Yes July 15 2020
straight bond
Japan Tobacco Inc  10th domestic July 15, 2015 - 30,000 036 Yes July 15, 2022
straight bend
Japan Tobacco Inc  11th domestic  July 15, 2015 - 25,000 080 Yes July 15 2025
straight bond
Japan Tobacco Inc  Straight bond July 23, 2013 59 954 60,072 210  Yes July 23 2018
in USD [USD 500 mil | [USD 500 mul ]
Total ¥139,954 ¥215,072
{40 00Q) {—)

{Nowe 1} The figure wn parentheses { ) raprasents the amount of the current porion of the bond
{Note 2) The figure in parentheses [ ] represents the amount of foraign currency denominated bond

Dervative liabiliies are classified as financial habilities measured at fair value through profit or loss excluding those to which hedge
accounting 1s appled and bonds and borrowings are classified as financial habihities measured at amortized cost
Trere are no financial covenants that have a significant impact en the Group on bonds and barrowings

{2) Assets Pledged as Collateral for Liabilities

A Pursuant to the prowisions of Artcle 6 of Japan Tobacco Inc Act the Company’s properties are pledged as general collateral for bonds
1ssued by the Company Bondhelders are entitled to claim satisfacticn in preference to unsecured creditors of the Company properties
(with the exception of nationat and local taxes and certain other statutory oblhigations}

B Assets pledged as collateral by some subsidiaries are ¥125 millien and ¥70 million as of December 31 2014 and as of December 31,
2015 respectively Their corresponding debts are ¥125 million and ¥82 million as of December 31, 2014 and as of December 31, 2015

respectiveiy

o
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Financial Information

The breakdown and schedule of 'Provisions for each fiscal year are as follows

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Millons of yen

Assel reurement Restructuring Provisions for Other
provisions provisions sales rebates Provisions Total
As of Apnl 1, 2014 ¥1 695 ¥ 2055 ¥ 4,288 ¥4,566 ¥ 12 603
Provisions 1,110 31154 3,994 969 37,227
Interest cost associated with passage of time 28 — - —_ 28
Prowisions used 191 {10 902) {4,148} {247) {15,388)
Provisions reversed — (462) (140) (800} {1 402)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 1110 — 447 1,657
As of December 31 2014 ¥2 742 ¥ 22,954 ¥ 3 994 ¥4,935 ¥ 34 624
Current liabilities ¥ - ¥ 3950 ¥ 3,994 ¥1 256 ¥ 9,200
Non-current habilities 2,742 19,004 — 3,679 25425
Total ¥2,742 ¥ 22 954 ¥ 3,094 ¥4 935 ¥ 34,624
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015
Millions of yen
Asset rebrement Restrucluring Provisions for QOther
provisions provisions sales rebates DIOVISIONS Total
As of January 1, 2015 ¥2,742 ¥ 22,954 ¥ 3,994 ¥ 4,935 ¥ 34,624
Provisions 498 15,039 3,323 742 19,603
Interest cost associated with passage of time 36 - - - 36
Provisions used (100) (13,416} (3,941) {1.149) (18,608)
Provisions reversed {447} {1,161) {53) {3,299) {4,960)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (2,150) - {40} {2,190)
As of December 31 2015 ¥2,728 ¥ 21,267 ¥ 3,323 ¥ 1,189 ¥ 28,507
Current liabihities ¥ - ¥ 15,068 ¥ 3,323 ¥ 9156 ¥ 19,297
Non-current {iabiliues 2,728 6,209 — 273 9,210
Total ¥2,728 ¥ 21,267 ¥ 3,323 ¥ 1,189 ¥ 28,507

A Asset Retirement Provisions

in order to settle the cbligation of restering and of removing

The uming of the payment may be affected by future business

plans

hazardous substances from plant faciliies and premises that the

Group uses, the probabie amount to be paid in the future I1s recog-
mized based on past performances These expenses are expected
to be paid after one year or more, however they may be affected

by future busmess plans

B Rastructuring Provisions

These provisions are mainly related to business integraton and

C Prowvisions for Sales Rebates
These provisions are for contracts which reward the customers with

discounts when the sales volume or sales amount in a given period

exceeds specified volume or ameount They are expected to be paid
within one year

measures for the rattonahzation of international tobacco business
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21 Other Liabilities

The breakdown of Other current habiliies” and  Other non-current habihyes” as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015

{As of Dacember 31 2014) {As of Decomber 31 2015}

Tobacco excise tax payables ¥326,171 ¥334,557
Tobacco special excise tax payables 14 758 14,548
Tobacco local excise tax payables 188,197 183,492
Consumption tax payables 138 B10 103,933
Bonus to employees 45,982 34,014
Employee s unused paid vacations habilities 21173 18,827
Other 143 869 154,348
Total ¥875 960 ¥843,719
Current liabihties ¥754,169 ¥729,761
Non-current habilities 121792 113,958
Total ¥875,960 ¥843,719

22. Employee Benefits

{1} Post-employment Benefits
The Group sponsars funded or unfunded defined benefit plans and
defined contribution plans as employee retirement benefit plans
The benefits of defined benefit plans are predetermined based on
conditions such as pomnts employees have gaineg Iin compensation
for each year of service the payment rate, vears of service and
average salaries in their final years of service before retirement

The Company Is obhgated to bear pension costs for a mutual
assistance association incurred with respect to services in or before
June 1956 {prior to enforcement of the Act on the Mutual Aid
Asscciation of Public Corporation Employees) Such obligations are
recognized as habilities at their present value using the actuarial
valuation method and are included in retirement benefit iabifities

Special termination benetfits may be provided 10 employees
on their early retirements under certain circumstances

The funded defined benefit plans are administrated by the Group
or the fund that 1s legally separated from the Group In accerdance
with statutory requirements The Group or the beard of pension
fund and the trustee of the plan are required by law to act in the
best interests of the plan participants and are responsible for man-
aging the plan assets 1n accordance with the designated investment
strategy

The Group s main defined benefit plans expose the Group to
actuanal nsks such as investment nsk interest rate nisk inflation
nsk and longevity risk

{n Investment nisk

The present value of the defined benefit obligations 1s calculated
using a discount rate set with reference to a yield on fugh qualty
corporate bond or government bond I the return on the plan
assets 15 below this yield there 1s a possibiity that the plan 1s
underfunded

(i) Interest rate risk

A decrease 1n a yield on high gquality corporate bonds or govern-
ment bonds will increase the present value of the defied benefit
cbligations However this will be partally offset by an increase
in the fair value of the debt instruments {plan assats})

{im} Inflation nisk

The level of benefit for certain defined benefit plans of the Group
1s inked to inflatior Accordingly, a nse in inftation will increase
the present value of the defined benefit oblgations

{iv) Longevity nsk

Some defined beneht plans of the Group provide a fetme annuiy
and the Group 1s obligated to provide penston benefits 1o the plan
participants for the rest of their lives after their retirements The
present value of the defined benefit obligations 1s calculated by
reference to the best esumate of the mortality of plan participants
during cor after employment An increase in average hfe expectancy
of the plan participants will increase the defined benefit obligations
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Financial Information

A Schedule of Defined Benefit Obligations
The schedule of the defined benefit obligations 1s as follows

Millions of yen
Japan Mo 3 Overseas Total
As of Apnil 1 2014 Moes1 21 ¥319,579 ¥470 230 ¥789 808
Current service cost 9957 9028 18 984
Past service ¢ost and gains and losses on settlement 530 {1,293) (703)
Interest expense 2,135 18102 20 236
Contnbutions by plan participants — 1,156 1,156
Remeasurement gains and losses
Actuaral gains and tosses ans:ing from changes in demographic assumptions {4) 3,120 3,116
Actuanal gains and losses arising from changes in financal assumptrons 5,638 47 891 53,430
Actuanal gains and losses arising from expenence adjustmenis {2571) {5,648) {8,219)
Benefits paid (43,044) (21 829) (64 872)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 31,249 31,249
Other {42) — {42)
As of December 31, 2014 Wews1 2 292 138 552,006 844 144
Current service cost 11,802 11,216 23,018
Past service cost and gains and losses on settlement 310 389 699
Interest expense 1,923 15,337 17.261
Contributions by plan participants - 1,697 1,697
Remeasurement gains and fosses
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from changes in demographic assumpticns (634) (327) {961)
Actuanal gains and losses ansing fram changes in financial assumpuecns (105) (2,266) (2,371)
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments 47) 348 299
Benefits paid (25,941) {20,823) {46,764)
Decrease resutting from transfer of subsidianes (13.277) - {13,277
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operanons - {38,030) (38,030}
Other 42 {466) (423
As of December 31, 2015 MNotes1 2 ¥266,213 ¥519,079 ¥785,292

{Nate 1} The Group s weighted average durauon of the defined benelit obligauans 13 7 7 years for Japan and 15 3 years for overseas (FY2014 B 1 years for Japan and 15 4 years.

{or oversnas)
{Nota 2} The Group s breakdown of the defined benelit obhigation by plan participant 18 as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 ax of Cacernber 31 2014} FY2015 (As of Dacamber 31 2015}

Japan Overseas Total Japan QOverseas Total

Active members ¥183,381 ¥214,855 ¥398 236 ¥165,996 ¥208,743 ¥374,739
Deferred members 14 542 58,165 72707 16,235 51,014 67,249
Pensioners 94,216 278 986 373,202 83,982 259,322 343,304
Total ¥292,138 ¥552,006 ¥844,144 ¥266,213 ¥519,079 ¥785,292

{No1s 3) The schadule of mutval pension banefits obhganons included in the ca egory of Japan is as {ollows

Millions of yen

Fr2014 FY2015

{Nira months enoea Decembar 31 7914) {Year ancled Decemnbar 31 2015}
Balance at the beginning of the penod ¥67,825 ¥59,191
Interest expense 254 296
Remeasurement gains and losses {3,748} 276
Benefits paid (5,140} {7,052)
Balance at the end of the period ¥59 191 ¥52,710
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B Schedule of Plan Assets
The schedule of the plan assets is as follows

Millions of yen

Japan Overseas Total
As of Apnl 1, 2014 ¥109 484 ¥356 392 ¥465 876
Interest iIncome 821 14,003 14 823
Remeasurement gains and losses
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest Income) 3,692 26,027 29,618
Contnbutions by the employer Meest 2 3 087 9,433 12519
Contributions by plan participants — 1,156 1,156
Benefits paid {5,425) {15 743) {21,168)
Exchange differences cn translation of foreign operations - 26,811 26 811
Other (43) (1,962) (2,005}
As of December 31, 2014 111,615 416 117 527 631
Interest iIncome 765 12,517 13,282
Remeasurement gains and losses
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in interest iIncome) 1,605 {4,724} {3,118}
Contributions by the employegr MNees1 21 3,754 10,536 14,290
Contributions by plan participants - 1,697 1,697
Benefits paid {9,162} {17,091) {26,253}
Oecrease resulting from transfer of subsidiaries {11,670} — {11,670}
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - {24,708) {24,708}
QOther - (466) {466}
As of December 31, 2015 ¥ 96,806 ¥393,878 ¥490,684

[Note 1) Pursuant 1o laws and regulancns the Group and the pensicn fund review the financial condimon of the pansion plan regutarly and recalculate contributions for allecanng future

benafit and keeping the balance of the pension financing when the plan 13 underfundad
{Note 2) The Group plans to pay contnbutions of ¥8 145 million in the year ending Decermber 31 2016

C Reconcihation of Defined Benefit Obligations and Plan Assets

The reconciliation of the defined benefit oblhigations and plan assets to the net defined benefit labites (assets) recognized in the consoli-

dated statement of financial position as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

FY2014 As of December 31 2014

Milliens of yen

FY2014
Japan Ovarseas Tenal
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligations ¥ 115,668 ¥ 413 149 ¥ 528 817
Fair value of the plan assets {111,515) (416,117) {5627,631)
Subtotal 4 154 {2 968) 1186
Present value of the unfunded defined benefit obligations 176,470 138,868 315,327
Net defined benefit llabilities (assets} recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial pesiticn ¥ 180 624 ¥ 135 889 ¥ 316,613
Retirement benefit habilities ¥ 181 548 ¥ 170 367 ¥ 351 915
Retirement benefit assets {924) (34,477) (35 402}
Net defined benefit labilites (assets) recognized in the consohdated statement of
financial pesition ¥ 180 624 ¥ 135 B8Y ¥ 316,613
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FY2015 As of December 31, 2015

Financial Information

Millions of yen

FY2015

Japan Overseas Totat

Present value of the funded defined benefit obligations
Fair value of the plan assets

¥ 96,583 ¥ 387,804 ¥ 484,387
(96,806) (393.878) {490,684)

Subtotal
Present value of the unfunded defined benefit obhigations

(223) (6,074) (6,297)
169,629 131,275 300,905

Net defined benefit iabilities {assets) recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position

¥169,406 ¥ 125,201 ¥ 294,608

Reurement benefit labilities
Retirement benefit assels

¥172,385 ¥ 161,176 ¥ 333,562
{2,979} {35,975} (38,954)

Net defrned benefit lrabilities {assets) recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position

¥169,406 ¥ 125,201 ¥ 294,608

D Major Breakdown of Plan Assets
The breakdown of plan assets by major category as of each fiscal year end is as follows

Japan
Millions of yen
FY2014 tAs of Dacamber 31 20141 FY2015 (Aa of Decamber 31 2015}
Market price In Markat price n
an active market an active market
Quoted Unguoted Total Cuoted tinquoted Total
Cash and cash equivalents ¥24172 ¥ — ¥ 24172 ¥23,002 ¥ - ¥23,002
Equity mstruments 7 946 - 7,946 3,383 - 3,383
Japan 4,668 - 4 668 2,251 - 2,251
Overseas 3278 - 3,278 1,132 - 1,132
Debt instruments 15,383 - 15383 10,395 - 10,395
Japan 12,820 — 12,820 9,142 - 9,142
Qverseas 2,563 - 2 563 1,252 - 1,252
Real estate 75 - 75 - - -
General account af Iife insurance comparues Noe 2 - 63 023 63 023 - 59,454 59,454
Other 84 830 914 — 572 672
Total ¥47,662  ¥63 853 ¥111,515 ¥36,779  ¥60,027 ¥96,806
Overseas
Miihions af yan
FY2014 (As of Dacember 31 2014) FY2015 (As ot Dacambar 31 2015}
Market price in Market price in
an active market an active market
Cuoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unquoled Toal
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 18725 ¥ - ¥ 18,725 ¥ 12,084 ¥ - ¥ 12,084
Equity instruments 142,301 - 142,301 122,613 - 122,613
United Kingdom 49318 — 49318 29,719 - 29,719
North America 39859 - 38,859 35,974 - 35,974
Other 53,124 - 53,124 56,920 - 56,920
Debt instruments 218 662 5,518 224180 220,473 4,968 225,441
United Kingdom 136 578 — 136 678 143,809 - 143,809
North America 46,413 — 46,413 48,969 - 48,969
Other 35,671 5,518 41189 27,695 4,968 32,663
Real estate 6225 1051 1276 9,266 464 9,731
Other 7 360 16 275 23635 18,105 5,905 24,009
Total ¥393272 ¥22,844 ¥416,117 ¥382,541 ¥11,337 ¥393,878
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Total
Millrans of yen

FY2014 (As of December 31 2014} FYZ2015 (A5 of Decomber 3t 2015}

Market price in Market price in

an active market an active market
Quoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unqueted Total
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 42897 ¥ - ¥ 42897 ¥ 35086 ¥ - ¥ 35,086
Equity instruments 150,247 - 150 247 125,996 - 125,996
Debt instruments 234 046 5518 239,563 230,868 4,968 235,836
Real estate 6,300 1,061 7,351 9,266 464 9,731
General account of life Insurance companias Mote 2 — 63,023 63,023 - 59,454 59,454
Other 7,444 17,105 24 549 18,1056 6,477 24,582
Total ¥440,834  ¥86,687 ¥527,631 ¥419,320 ¥71.364 ¥490,684

(Note 1) The fair value of the plan assets 1s provided for each of quoted and unguoted markat price In an acuve markat as defined 1n IFAS 13 Fair Value Measurement *
{Note 2) A certain intergst rate and principal for the general account of Iife insurance are guaranteed by Iife Insurance companias

The investment strategy for the Group s majer plans g as follows {Overseas)
{Japan) The investment strategy for the foreign subsidianes’ funded pension
The Company's pension fund 1s managed in accordance with the ptans 15 decided properly by the trustee of the plan or the manage-
internal policy for securing stable profits in the middle- and long- ment of overseas subsidianes according te local legisiations The
term in crder t¢ ensure the redemption ¢f the plan hability Company s objective for the foreign subsidiaries’ funded pension
Concretely by setting a target rate of return and compas:tion ratio plans 1s to manage risks ansing from its defined benefit obhigation
cf plan assets by asset category within the nsk tolerance that I1s and meanwhile to achieve a return on assets in excess of the move-
annually assessed the Company invests plan assets consistently ment in the value of the defined benefit obhgation
with the compositicn ratic When reviewing the compaosition ratio The majonty of the plan assets have been allocated to hability
the Company considers introducing an asset investment which matching bends and the remarning parts of the plan assets are
has a high correfation with the hability mainly invested in equities targeting long-term return

n the case where an unexpected situation occurs In the market
environment it 1s temporanly allowed to make an adjustment on the
weight of nsk assets complying with the pclicy

E Matters Related to Actuanal Assumptions
The major items of actuanal assumptions as of each fiscal year end are as follows

%
FY2014 iAs of Decamber 31 2014) FY2015 {As of Decamber 31 2015}
Japan Overseas Japan Overseas
Discount rate 07 29 o7 29
Inflation rate — 24 - 24
FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Years
Fy2014
Japan Overgeas
Males Females Males Femalas

Average life expectancy at retirementttete v
Current pensioners 21 7 tNote3) 24 1 Note 31
Future pZnsmners 23 4o 29 3w 23 7 Noe s 25 g INow

FY2015 As of December 31, 2015

Years
FY2015
Japan Overseas
Males Fernales Males Females

Average life expectancy at retirement e !
Current pensioners 21 7 iNote 31 24 2 Woed)
Future p?ensmners 23 Goes 29 3o 23 1 Noed 25 7 o d)
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Financial information

{Nota 1) The averags ife expectancies underie the values of the defined benefit obhgations on major plans Assumpuons regarding future martality rate are based an pubiished statcs

and monakty tables

(Note 2) Life expactancy for a pensioner currently aged 60 Regardless of tha plan parttcipant s current age the Group pedorms actuanai calculattons based on the assumption that Ife

expectancy remains the same
{Note 3) Life expectancy for a pansioner currently aged 65
(Note 4) Life expectancy at the age of 65 for an active member currently agad 50

(Note 5) Tha valuation of defined benefit obligations reflects a jJudgment on uncertain future events The sensitivities of defined benefit obligatans due to changes I majar assumptions as
of each fiscal year end are as follows Each of thase sansitivitias assumas that other variables remain fixed howavear in fact they do not always change independently Negative

figures show a decrease in pension plan abligations while pasitive figures show an increase

Millions of yen
FY2014 iAs of Dacamber 31 2014) FY2015 (As of December 31 2015)
Change in assumptions Japan Cverseas Japan QOverseas
Discount rate Increase by 0 5% ¥(11,283) ¥{40 281) ¥(9,672) ¥{37,287)
Decrease by 0 5% 12 081 44,274 10,368 42,058
Inflation rate Increase by 0 5% - 28 231 - 27,545
Decrease by 0 5% —- (26,185) — (25,543)
Mortality rate Extended 1 year 6,441 17700 5,809 16,859
Shortened 1 year {6,317} (17,698} {5,649) {16,964}
F Breakdown of Defined Benefit Cost
The breakdown of defined benetit cost far each fiscal year 1s as follows
FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014
Milvons of yen
FY2014
Japan Qverseas Total
Current service cost ¥ 9957 ¥ 9,028 ¥ 18,984
Past service cost and gains and losses on setilement 530 (1293) (703)
Interest expense (INncome) 1,314 4 (99 5,413
Defined benefit cost through profit or loss 11,861 11,834 23,695
Actuanal gans and losses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions 4y 3120 3,116
Actuanial gains and losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions 5,539 47,891 53,430
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments (2 571} (5,648) 18219)
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included 1n interest income) (3 592} (26,027) {29 618)
Defined benefit cost through other comprehansive income ¥ (628} ¥ 19,336 ¥ 18,708
Total of defined benefit cost ¥11 233 ¥ 31,170 ¥ 42 403
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015
Millions of yen
FY2015
Japan Qverseas Total
Current service cost ¥11,802 ¥11,216 ¥23,018
Past service cost and gains and losses on settlement 310 389 699
Interest expense (iIncome) 1,159 2,820 3,979
Defined benefit cost through profit or loss 13,270 14,426 27,696
Actuanat gains and losses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions (634) {327) (961}
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from ¢hanges in financial assumptions (105) {2,266) (2,371)
Actuarnal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments a7 346 299
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in interest income) {1,605) 4,724 3,119
Defined benefit cost through other comprehensive income ¥ (2,390) ¥ 2,476 ¥ 86
Jotai of defined benefit cost ¥10,880 ¥16,902 ¥27,782

{Nate 1) Tha net amount of Interest expense and interest income 1s included In - Financial costs ~ Other expenses are included in  Cost of sales and Selling general and adrmnistrative

expensas " The defined banafit cost through profit ar loss from discon inuad cperations 1S Included in - Prokit (loss) for the panod from discon inued operauons *

{Note 2) Cantribuniens to the defined coninbution plans were ¥6 833 mullion for the mine months ended Cecember 31 2014 and ¥7 649 million for the year ended December 31 2015

and wers not included in the table above
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(2) Other Employee Benefit Expenses

The employee benefit expenses other than post-employment benefits from continuing operations that are Included in the consolidated state-

ment of iIncome for each fiscal year are as follows

Milltons of yen

FY2014 FY2015

{Nina months ended Decermber 31 2014) {Year ended December 31 2015}

Remuneration and salary ¥215,316 ¥233,512
Bonus to employees 51771 62,134
Legal welfare expenses 42,439 43,861
Welfare expenses 30,486 36,183
Termination benefits 61,524 4,392

23. Equity and Other Equity Items

{1) Share Capital and Capital Surplus
A Authorized Shares

The number of authorized shares as of December 31 2014 and as of December 31, 2015 1s 8,000 000 thousand crdinary shares

B Fully Paid Issued Shares

The schedule of the number of 1ssued shares and share capital 1s as follows

Thousands of shares Millions of yen

Number of ordinary

1Issued shares Shara capital Capital surplus

As of Apnl 1, 2014 2 000,000 ¥100 000 ¥736,400
Increase (decrease) = - -
As of December 31 2014 2,000,000 100 000 736,400
Increase (decrease) - - -
As of December 31, 2015 2,000,000 ¥100,000 ¥736,400

INote) The shares 1ssued by the Company are nen par value erdinary sharas that have no resiniction on any content of nghts

(2} Treasury Shares

The schedule of the number of treasury shares and its amount as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

Thousands of shares Milliens of yen

Number of shares Amgunt

As of Apnl 1, 2014 182,452 ¥344 463
Increase {decrease)Now 2 {9} {16)
As of December 31 2014 182 443 344,447
Increase (decrease)Noe 2 26,842 99,886
As of December 31, 2015 209,285 ¥444,333

(Note 1) Tha Cempany adopts share option plans and utilizes reasury shares for delivery of shares due to its exercise Contract condinions and amount are descnbed in

32 Share based Paymsnis

(Note 2) The number of treasury shares purchased based on the resolution made by the Board of Diractars was 26 896 thousand shares ard the total purchase cest was ¥100 000 million
for the year ended December 31 2015 Purchase of shares less than one umitis 0 thousand shares for the year ended December 31 2015 The number of shares deliverad upon
exercise of share opuon is 9 thousand shares for the nine months ended December 31 2014 and 54 thousand shares fer the year ended Dacember 31 2015

(3) Other Components of Equity

A Subscniption nghts to shares

The Company adopts share cption plans and 1ssues subscrnption
nghts to shares based on the Companies Act Contract conditions
and amount are described In 32 Share-based Payments ”

B Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations are com-
posed of foreign currency translation difference that occurs when
censolidating financial statements of foreign subsidianies prepared

In foreign currencies, and the effective portion of net gan (loss) on
the hedging instruments desighated as hedge of net mvestment

C Net gamn {loss) on derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges

The Company uses denvatves for hedging to avoid the nsk of

fluctuation i future cash flows This s the effective portion of

changes in the fair value of dervative transactions designated as

cash flow hedges
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D Net gamn (loss) on revaluation of financia! assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive incomse

This 1s the vatuation difference 1n the fair vatue of fi

nancial assets

measured at far value through other comprehensive income

E Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans compnse actuanal gatns
and losses, the return on plan assets excluding amounts included

In interest income, and any change In the effect of

24, Dividends

the asset celling

excluding amounts included in interest income In addition aciuanal
gamms and losses are the effects of differences between the actuanal
assumptions at the beginning of the year and what has actually
occurred and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions
Remeasurements are recogrized as other comprehensive iIncome
when they occur and are transferred immediately from other com-
ponents of equity to retained earnings

Dividends pard for each fiscal year are as follows

FY2014 Nune months ended December 31, 2014

FrZ014

Class of shares

Milions of ygn

Yen

Total dvidends

Dnadends per share

Basis date

Effectiva date

(Resolution)
Annual Shareholders Meeting

(June 24, 2014) Ordinary shares ¥90 877 ¥50 March 31, 2014 June 25, 2014
Board of Directors
{October 30 2014) Ordinary shares 90,878 50 September 30 2014 December 1 2014
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015
FY2015
Millions of yen Yen

Class of shares

Total dividends

Divdends per sharg

Basis date

Effectiva date

(Resclution)

Annual Shareholders Meetung
(March 20, 2015}

Board of Diregtors
(August 3 2015)

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

¥90,878

96,696

¥50

54

December 31, 2014

June 30, 2015

March 23, 2015

September 1, 2015

Dividends, for which the effective date falls in the following fiscal year are as follows

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Fy2014

Class of shares

Milhons of yen

Yen

Total dividends

Drvidends per share

Basis datg

Effecuve date

(Resclution}
Annual Shareholders Meeting

{March 20, 2015} QOrdinary shares

¥30 878

¥50

December 31 2014

March 23 2015

F¥2015 Year ended December 31, 2015

FY2015

Class of shares

Milltans of yen

Yen

Total dvidends

Dnadends per share

Basis date

Effective date

{Resclution)
Annual Shareholders Meeting

{March 23, 2016} Ordinary shares

¥114,606

¥64

December 31, 2015

March 24, 2016
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25 Revenue

The recenciliatien frorm "Gross turnover” to ‘Revenue  from continuing operations for each fiscal year 1s as follows

Millons of yen
Fr2014 FY2015
iNwe months ended Dacember 31 2014) {Voar snced Decenber 31 2015)
Gross turnover ¥ 6 443 768 ¥ 7,436,141
Tobacco excise taxes and agency transacuon amount (4,424,023} (5,183,257}
Revenue ¥ 2 019,745 ¥ 2,252,884
The tobacco excise taxes and other transactions in which the Gross turnover i1s an item that the Group discloses voluntarly
Group 15 involved as an agency are exciuded from revenue The and 15 not ‘Revenue as defined by IFRS
inflow of economic benefits after deducting the tobacco excise
taxes and other transactions s presented as ‘Revenue’ in the
conschdated statement of (nceme
26. Other Operating Income
The breakdown of Qther operaung income  from cenvnuing operations for each fiscal year 15 as follows
Millions of yen
FY2014 FY2015

{Nina manths anded Degembar 31 2014)

{Year anded Dacanber 31 2015)

Gains on sale of property plant and equipment, intangible assets

and investment propertigg Netes1 21 ¥40 917 ¥ 7.277
Other Mere2) 6,502 8,089
Total ¥47 419 ¥15,367
{Nota 1) Mainly {rom sales of old factory sites and rental properties
{Note 2) The amount of restructuning incoma included i each account for sach fiscal year 1s as follows
Millions of yen
Fy2014 FY2015

{Nina months andad Decambar 31 2014

{Year anded Decarnber 3t 2015)

Gains on sale of property plant and equipment, intangible assets

and invastment properties ¥40 005 ¥6,193
Other 669 606
Total ¥40,674 ¥6,799
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27 Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Financial Information

The breakdown of 'Selling general and administrative expenses from continuing operations for each fiscal year is as follows

Mithons of yen
Fr2014 FY2015
{Mina manths ended December 31 2014) {Year anded December 31 2015)
Advertising expenses ¥ 20501 ¥ 25,644
Promotion expenses 108 032 120,270
Shipping, warehousing expanses 18765 26,859
Comimission 44,090 51,330
Employee benefit expenses New2 257,551 264,725
Research and development expenses Mt ! 44,008 57,798
Depreciation and amortization 55,015 65,999
Imparmaent losses on other than financial assets Note 21,877 9,516
Losses on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment Intangible assets,
and investment property We® 2 14 081 19,156
Other Wew=2) 128 €58 148,052
Total ¥752,569 ¥789,346
{Mote 1) All research and developmant expenses are included in Selling general and admiristrative expenses
{Nota 2} The amaunt of restructuning costs included in each account 15 as follows
Millions of yen
FY2014 FY2015
{Nine months ended Jecambar 31 2014) {Year anded Decernber 31 2015}
Employee benefit expenses ¥ 66814 ¥ 4,720
Impairment losses on other than financial assets 18078 7,643
Losses on sale and disposal of property plant and equipment Intangible assets,
and investment property 5111 12,523
Other 10,333 14,957
Total ¥100,335 ¥39,543

28 Financial Income and Financial Costs

The breakdown of 'Financial ncome” and "Financial costs  from continuing operations for each fiscal year 1s as follows

Financial Income

Milhons of yen

FY2014
{Nins manths ended Dacembar 31 2014)

FYzms
[Year ended December 31 2015)

Dwvidend income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive iIncome ¥ G52 ¥ 1,771
Interest iIncome
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Deposits and bonds 12 869 13,010
Qther 287 235
Total ¥13,808 ¥15,016
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Financ:al Costs

Midhons of yen

F¥2014
{Nina months ended Dacember 31 2014)

FY2015
(Yoar anced Dueermber 31 2015)

Interest expenses
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Bonds and borrowings toe ¥ 4334 ¥ 3,745
Other 191 183
Foreign exchange losses e 1 426 6,010
Employee benefit expenses Wowd § 397 3,971
Other 815 1,253
Total ¥11,162 ¥15,132

{Note 1) Valuatien gain [toss) of currancy denvatives 1s included in the foraign exchange losses

{Note 2) Valuation gain (loss) of interest rate danvatives 1s Inciuded in iNterest Axpanses

{Note 3) The employee banefit expanses are the net amoun? of interest cost and nlarest income related 1o amployes benefits

29 Other Comprehensive Income

Amount ansing dunng the year, reclassification adjustments to profit or loss and tax effects for each component of "Other comprehensive

mcome” for each fiscal year are as follows

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31 2014

Mithons of yen
FY2014
Reclassification Before tax Net of
Amount arnsing adjustments effects Tax effects tax affects
|tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain (loss} on revaluation of financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive iIncome ¥ 5B95 ¥ - ¥ 5895 ¥[2 171} ¥ 3725
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {18,708) — {18,708) 4,544 {14,164}
Total of items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ¥ (12813) ¥ - ¥ (12 813} ¥ 2374 ¥ {10,439
liemns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations ¥(117 734) ¥ (122)  ¥(117 856) ¥3614 ¥{114,242)
Net gain (loss) on denvatives designated as cash flow hedges 10,998 {9,570) 1428 (506) 922
Totat of items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss ¥(106,736) ¥{9 693) ¥(116,428) ¥ 3,109 ¥(113 319)
Total ¥(119 548) ¥{9,693) ¥(129 241) ¥ 5 483 ¥(123,759)
FY2015 Year ended December 31, 2015
Millions of yen
FY2015
Reclassficaton Before tax Net of
Amount ansing adjustments effects Tax effects tax effects
ltlems that will not be reclassified to proin or loss
Net gain {loss) on revaluation of financial assets measured
at fair value through cther comprehensive income ¥ 14,220 ¥ - ¥ 14,220 ¥(3.485) ¥ 10,735
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {86) - {86) (4.016) {4,102)
Total of items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ¥ 14,134 ¥ - ¥ 14,134 ¥(7,601) ¥ 6,633
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations ¥(289,270) ¥ (223) ¥(289,493) ¥ 93 ¥(289,400)
Net gain {ioss} on denvaiives designated as cash flow hedges 1,084 {812) 2 {38) 233
Total of items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss ¥{288,186) ¥{1,036) ¥{289,222) ¥ 55 ¥(289,167)
Total ¥{274,052) ¥{(1,038) ¥{275,088) ¥(7,446) ¥(282,534}
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30 Earnings per Share

{1} Basis of Calculating Basic Earnings per Share
A Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Parent Company

Milions of yen
Fr2014 FY2015
(N monthy anded Decernber 31 2014) {Year encied Decamber 31 2015
Profit for the penod attributable to owners of the parent company ¥362 919 ¥485,691
Profit not attributable to ordinary sharehclders of the parent company — -
Profit far the penod used for calculation of basic earnings per share ¥362 919 ¥485,691
Profit {loss} for the period from discontinued operations attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the parent company ¥ (1,583) ¥ 87,237
Profit for the penod from conunuing operations used for calculaton
of basic earnings per share ¥364 502 ¥398,454
B Weighted-average Number of Ordinary Shares Outstanding Dunng the Period
Thousands of shares
FY2014 FY2015
{Nine months anded December 31 2014] {¥oar sncied Docember 31, 2015)
Weighted-average number of shares during the period 1,817 553 1,795,254
(2} Basis of Calculating Diluted Earnings per Share
A Profit Antnbutable to Diluted Ordmary Shareholders
Milllons of yven
FY2014 FY2015
INina months ended Oecember 31 2014) {Yoar anded Dacember 31 2015}
Profit for the period used for calculation of basic earnings per share ¥362 919 ¥485,691
Adjustment — -
Praiit for the periaod used for calculation of diluted earnings per share ¥362,919 ¥485,691
Prafit {loss) for the period from discontinued operations attnbutable
to ordinary shareholders of the parent company ¥ (1,583) ¥ 87,237
Profit for the period from continuing operations used for calculation
of diluted earnings per share ¥384 502 ¥398,454
B Weighted-average Number of Diiuted Ordinary Shares Outstanding During the Period
Thousands af shares
FY2014 FY2015
(Nme monihs enden Decamber 31 2074) {Year anded Decomber 31 2015)
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares during the penod 1,817 553 1,795,254
Increased number of ordinary shares under subscniption nghts to shares 1,048 1,128
Weighted-average number of diluted ordinary shares dunng the period 1818 601 1,796,382
(3) Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share {Continuing Operations}
Milkons of yen
FY2014 FY2015

{Nra months andad December 11 2014)

(Yuar ended Decarsber 31 2015}

Profit for the pencd from continuing operations used for calculation

of adjusted diluied earnings per share ¥364 502 ¥398,454
Adjustment items (income} {44 302} {10.346)
Adjustment 1tems (costs) 103,641 39,900
Adjustments on iIncome taxes and non-controlling interests {13,534) {7.017)
Ad)usted profit for the penod {continuing operations} ¥410 308 ¥420,990
Adjusied dituted earnings per share (continuing operations} {yen) ¥ 22562 ¥ 234 35
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31. Non-cash Transactions

Significant Non-cash Transactions

The amouni of assets acquired under finance teases was ¥9 193 milkion for the nine months ended December 31 2014 and ¥3 507 muthon

for the year ended December 31, 2015, respectively

32 Share-based Payments

The Company adopts share option plans Share options are granted
by the resolution of the Board of Directors based on the approval at
the Annual Shareholders Meeting

The outhine of the share option pian 1s as follows

(1) Share Option Contract Conditions
Positions of persons granted Directors and Executive

Officers
Settlement Issuance of shares
Effective period of granted share option 30 years after the date of
grant
Vesting conditions None

{2) Changes in the Number of Share Options

Conditions reiated to the exercise of share options are as

follows

{a) The subscription nights to shares become exercisable when a
holder of & subscrnipton nght to shares no longer halds a posi-
tion as a director an audit & superwisery board member or an
executive officer In the subscripuon nghts to shares allocation
contract with holders of such nghts 1t s provided for that the
rights become exercisable from the date following the date on
which they no longer hold ther positions

{b) In case where any holders of subscription nghts to shares waive
such nights, they cannot exercise them

Shares
FY2014 (Nina months ended December 31 2014) FY2015 (vesr endsd Decamber 31 2015}

Exacutive Executive
Directars Officers Total Dhrectors Officars Totat
Balance at the beginning of the penod 351 000 659 800 1010800 275,800 795,200 1,071,000
Granted 35,600 33,200 68,800 49,000 66,200 115,200
Exercised — (8 600) (8 600} - {54,200) (54,200}
Transfer {110,800} 110,800 — — - —
Balance at the end of the period 275,800 795 200 1071 000 324,800 807,200 1,132,000
Exercisable balance at the end of the period — 341,000 341 000 - 424,400 424,400

{Note 1) The number of share options 15 presented as tha number of underlying shares
(Nota 2) All share options are granted with an exercise pnce of ¥1 per shace

{Note 3) Share options were granted to § directors and 19 executive officers for the mine manths ended Decernber 31 2014 and 6 directors and 18 executive otficars far the year endec

December 31 2015

“Transfer” included in the “Changes in the Number of Share Opuons™ raprasents the number of share options for persons granted whose managemeant posiion changed dunng

the penod

{Nota 4) The weightad avarage fair values per share ot share optons granied duning the period wers ¥2 418 and ¥3 558 for the nine manths ended December 31 2014 and for tha year

asnded December 31 2015 respectively

{Norta 5} The weightad-average share prices of share options al the ime of exercise dunng he panod were ¥3 600 and ¥4 497 for the nine months ended December 31 2014 and fot the

year anded December 31 2015 respecuvely

{Note &) The weightad-average remaining contract year of unexercised share optons at tha end of sach period was 26 2 vears and 25 7 vears for the nina months ended December 31

2014 and for the year ended Dacember 31 2035 respectively
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(3} Method of Measuring Fair Value of Share Options Granted During the Period

A Valuation Model
Black-Scholes Model

B Mam Assumptions and Estimation

Fy2014 FY2015

(Nha months anded Decernber 31 2014) {Yeur anded Decamber 31 2015}

Share price ¥3 603 ¥4,847
Volathity of share price et 34 6% 32 7%
Estimated remaining period N2 15 years 15 years
Estmated dividends e ¥96/share ¥100/share
Rusk free interest rate Nee® 0 93% 0 78%

{Note 1) Calculated based on daily share pnces guated for the past 15 years

{Note 2) Because of the difficulty of a reasonable estimation c¢fue o insufficient data the remaining period 1s estimated based on the assumption that shara aption rnights would be

exercised at a migpomnt of the exercise penod
(Nete 3) Based on the latest dividends paid
{Note 4) The yield on government bonds for a penod of the expecied remaning penod

(4) Share-based Payment Expenses

The cosis for share options from continuing operations included in “Selling, general and admisustrative expenses n the consolidated state-
ment of Income were ¥196 mitlion for the nine months ended December 31, 2014 and ¥383 mithon for the year ended December 31, 2015

33 Financial Instruments

{1) Capital Management
The Group's management principle 18 pursuii of the 45" model
balancing the imerests of consumers shareholders, employees and
wider society and fulfiling our responsibilities towards them aiming
to exceed their expectations

The Group beleves that sustainable profit growth in the mid- to
long-term based on this principle will increase the Group s value in

the mid- to long-term and 1S conseguently 1n the best interest of all
stakeholders including our shareholders

For that reason, as its financial policy, the Group maintains
a strong financial base that secures stability in case of changes
in business environrnent such as economic cnses, and flexibility
enabling expeditious responses to business iInvestment
opportunities

The Group manages net interest-bearing debt where cash and cash equivalents are deducted from interest-bearing debt, and capital
{the part atuibutable 10 the owners of the parent company) The amounts as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015

[As ot Dacambar 31 2014} (As of Decoember 31 2015)

Interest-beaning debt ¥ 228 214 ¥ 255,291
Cash and cash equivalents (385,820) {626,765)
Net interest-beanng debt Mot {157,605} {271,474)
Capital (equity attnbutable to owners of the parent company) 2 536 838 2,451,596

{Note) The figure in parentheses ([ ) represents the net amount of cash and cash equivalents after deducting interest beanng debt

There are specific rules for shares of the Company under the
Japan Tobacco Ing Act as follows

The Japanese government shall hold mere than cne-third of all of
the shares 1ssued by the Company {excluding the type of shares, far
which 1t 1s supulaied that voting rights may not be exercised ¢n any
matters that can be resoived by Annual Sharehclders Meeting)
{Article 2 {1}}

In cases where the Company intends to solicit persons to sub-
seribe for shares to be 1ssued or subsenption rights to shares or
where the Company intends tc deliver shares (excluding treasury
shares) subscription nghts to shares {excluding subscription right
10 own shares) or bonds with subscription rights 1o shares lexcluding

bonds with subscription nghts to shares) when exchanging with
shares, the Company shall obtain the approval of the Mirister of
Finance {Article 2 {2}}

Disposal of shares owned by the Japanese government shall be
within the imits on the nurmber of shares decided by the Diet in the
relevant annual budget {Arucle 3)

The Group mornitors financial indicators in order to maintain a
wall-balanced capital structure that ensures an appropriate return
an equity and 2 stable and flexible financial condition for future
investment We monitor credit ratings for a financial stability and
flexibrlity and ROE (return ¢n equity} for profitabiity while focusing
on changes in the demestic and overseas environment
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{2} Financial Risk Management
The Group s exposed to financial nisks (credit nsks, hiquidity nsks,
foreign exchange risks, interest rate risks and market prnice fluctua-
1190 risks} in the process of its management activities and it man-
ages nisks based on a specific pehcy in order to avaid or reduce sard
risks The results of nsk management are regularly reported by the
Treasury Division to the president and the Board of Directors of
the Company

The Group policy limits derivatives to transactions for the
purpose of mitgating risks from transactions based on actual
demand Therefore, we do not transact derivatives for speculation
purposes ar trading purposes

{3} Credit Risk
Recevables such as note and account recevables acquired from
the operating actrwities of the Group are exposed to customer
credit risk

The Group holds mainly debt securities for surplus investment
and equity securites of customers and suppliers 1o strengthen
relationships with them, those securnties are exposed to the issuer's
credit risk In addition through derivative transactions that the
Group conducts in order 1o hedge foregn exchange fluctuation risks

and interest rate fluctuation risks, we are exposed to the credit risk
of the financial instituticns which are counterparties to these
transactions

In principle, the Group sets credit lines or transaction conditions
with respect to trade receivables for counterparties based on the
Credit Management Guidelines in order to control the credit nisk
relating to counterparties In addition, the recevable balances of
counterparties with high credit nsk are monitored The Treasury
Dvsion of the Company regularly monitors the status of the occur-
rence and collection of bad debts and reports them to the president
and the Board of Directors of the Company

With regard to the investment of cash surpluses and derivatives
the Group mvests in debt securities and other financial instruments
with a certain credit rating and transacts with financial institutions
with a high credit rating in principle in order to prevent credit risks
from occurnng and based on the Group Financial Operation Basic
Policy In addition, the Treasury Division of the Company regularly
monitors the performances of these transactions and reports the
results to the president and the Board of Directors of the Company

The maximum exposure pertaiming to credit risks for financial
assets 15 the carrying amount after considering impairment 1n
the conschdated financial statements

The analysis of the aging cof financial assats that are past due but not imparred as of each fiscal year end date 1s as follows
The financial assets include amounts considered recoverable by credit nsurance and collateral

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Millions of yen

FY2014

Amount pasl dus

Over 30 days Over 60 days
Total Within 30 days within 60 days within 90 days QOver 90 days
Trade and other recevables ¥2518 ¥1,515 ¥B96 ¥252 ¥55
FY2015 As of December 31 2015
Milions of yen
FY2015
Amount past dua
Over 30 days Over 60 days
Total Within 30 days within 60 days within 80 days Over 90 days
Trade and other receivables ¥3,238 ¥2,260 ¥349 ¥38 ¥591

The Group reviews collectability of trade receivables depending on the credit conditions of counterparties and recognizes allowance for
doubtful accounts The schedule of the allowance of doubtful accounts 1s as follows

Milhons of yen

Fr2014 FY2015

{Nna manths anded Dacember 31 2014} (Yaar endad December 31 2075}
Balance at the beginning of the perod ¥10 620 ¥10,595
Addihon 782 346
Decrease {(intended use) (6716} (357)
Decrease (reversal) (378) (986)
Other 187 {253)
Balance at the end of the penod ¥10,595 ¥9,345
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(4) Liquidity Risk

The Group raises funds by berrowings, commercial paper and
bonds however these habilities are exposed to the hquidity nsk that
we would not be able to repay habiliies on the due date due to the

detenoration of the financing environment

In accordance with the Group Financial Operation Basic Policy,
the Group establishes a finance plan based on the annual business

Financial information

plan and the Treasury Division of the Company regularly monitors
and collects information on the balance of iqguidity-in-hand and
Interest-beanng debt and reports it to the president and the Board
of Directors of the Company In addition the Group keeps necessary
credit facilities to manage hquidity risk by having commutment fines

with several financial institutions

The financial hability balance (including derivative financial instruments) by matunty as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Milligns of yen
FY2o1a
Due after Due after Due after Dua after
onag year Two years threa years four years
Carrying  Contractual Cue within through through through through Due after
amount cash flow ©ne year two years three years four years five years five years
Non-derivative financial iabilities
Trade and other pavables ¥419 764 ¥419,764 ¥419764 ¥ — ¥ - ¥ — ¥— ¥ —
Short-term borrowings 27,632 27,632 27,632 - — — - -
Current poruen of long-term borrowings 39 930 39930 39 930 - - - - -
Long-term borrowings 1,046 1,048 — 148 149 151 97 503
Current poruon of bonds 40 000 40000 40 000 - - - — —
Bonds 99,954 100,275 — — 20,000 60 275 = 20 000
Subtotal 628 326 528647 527 325 146 20 149 60 426 97 20,503
Denvative financial labihities
Foreign exchange forward contract 99mMm 9 901 9 901 - - - — —
Interest rate swap 108 97 95 1 - — - -
Subtotal 10010 9 958 9 997 1 — — — —
Total ¥638,336 ¥638,644 ¥537 322 ¥147  ¥20,149  ¥60,426 ¥97  ¥20503
FY2015 As of December 31, 2015
Milhons of yen
FY2015
Duz after Due after Due after Due after
one year two years three years four years
Carrying  Contractual Due within through through through through Due after
amount cash flow one yaar W0 years three years four years {ive yoars five years
Non-derivative financial habilities
Trade and other pavables ¥373,032 ¥373,032 ¥373,032 «x - ¥ - ¥— ¥ - ¥ -
Short-term borrowings 30,832 30,832 30,832 - - - - -
Current portion of long-term barrowings 148 148 148 - - - - -
Long-term borrowings 866 866 - 150 152 97 45 422
Bends 215,072 215,305 - 20,000 60,305 — 80,000 55,000
Subtotal 619,949 620,182 404,012 20,150 60,457 97 80,045 55,422
Denvative financial iabilities
Foreign exchange forward contract 5,694 5,594 5,594 - - - - -
Interest rate swap 1 1 1 - - - - -
Subtotal 5,595 5,595 5,595 - - - - -
Total ¥625,544 ¥625,778 ¥409,607 ¥20,150 ¥60,457 ¥97 ¥B0,045  ¥55,422
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The total of commitment lines and withdrawal as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015

{As of Decambar 31 20%4) {As of December 31 2015}

Total committed line of credit ¥386,482 ¥682,286
Withdrawing - -
Unused balance ¥386 492 ¥682,286

(5} Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates businesses globally and therefore 1s exposed

to the following risks due to foreign exchange fluctuation

(1t The nsk where the profit or loss and cash flow in each functional

currency of the Group 15 Influenced by foreign exchange fluctua-

ticn as a result of external transactions and intesgroup transac-

tions including the payment and receipt of dividends, in

currencies that are different frem each functicnal currency of

the Group

The nisk that the equity of the Group 1s influenced by foreign

exchange fluctuation when equity denominated In each func-

tonal currency of tha Group 1s translated into Japanese yen

and consolidated

() The nisk that the profit or loss of the Group s Influenced by
foreign exchange fluctuation when profit or loss denominated

{n

in each functional currency of the Group ts translated into

Japanese yen and consolidated

The Group hedges against risk (1) using denvatives or foreign
currency-dencminated interest-beanng debts for example, when
future cash flow 15 projected or when recervables and payables
are fixed, and some of them are destgnated as cash flow hedges

The Group hedges against nisk {1) using foreign currency-
denominated interest-bearing debts for example and part of these
are designated as net investment hedges The Group does not
hedge against risk {ih) in principle

In erder to mitigate nsks mentioned above resulng from the
foreign exchange fluctuation, in accordance with the Group
Financial Operation Basic Policy and under the supervision of the
Finanoial Risk Management Commuttee of the Company, the Group
estabhshes and implements a foreign currency hedge policy taking
into consideration the iImpact on the Group s performance and the
current conditions of the foreign exchange market in a comprehen-
sive manner The Treasury Divisicn of the Company regularly reperts
the performances to the president and the Board of Directors of
the Campany

Foreign Exchange Sensitivity Analysis
In cases where each currency other than the functional currency
that denominates the financial instruments held by the Group as
of each fiscal year end increases by 10% in value aganst the func-
tional currency the impact on profil before inceme taxes in the
consolidated statement of income 1s as follows

The impact from the translation of funcuonal currency-
denominated financial instruments, and assets liabihties income
and expenses of foreign operations Into Japanese yen 1s not
included Alsc it s based on the assumption that currencies ather
than the currencies used for the calculation do not fluctuate

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015
(A8 of December 31 2014} (As of Decembaer 31 2015)
Profit befare income taxes ¥(3,255) ¥(866)

(6) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk within the Group anses from interest-beanng debts
after deducting cash equivalents Borrowings and bonds with float-
ing rates are exposed {0 interest rate fluctuation nsk

In order to reduce the interest rate fluctuation nisk related to
borrowings and bonds in accordance wath the Group Financial
Operation Basic Policy and under the supervision of the Financial
Risk Management Committee of the Company the Group estab-
lishes and implements an interest rate hedging policy taking into
consideration the impact on the Group s performance and the
current condrtion of the interest rates 1n a comprehensive manner
The Treasury Division of the Company reports the performances
to the president and the Board of Directors of the Company

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
In cases where the interest rate of financial Instruments held by the
Group as of each fiscal year end increases by 100bp the impact on
profit before income taxes in the consoldated statement of income
15 as follows

The analysis 1s subject to financial instruments aifected by inter-
est rate fluctuation and based on the assumption that other faciors
including the impacts of foreign exchange fluctuation are constant

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015
1A of Decamber 31 2014} {As of Decomber 31 2015)
Profit befare income taxes ¥1,58% ¥2,058
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{7) Hedging Transactions
The Group's policy for hedging transactions 1s stated in - 3 Significant Accounting Policies

A Cash Flow Hedges
The details of hedging instruments designated as cash flow hedges are as follows

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014
FY2014

Carrying amount ®ow

[Milkons of yen} Average ralas

Contract amount {Over ona year Asgsets Liabilives tven %)
Foreign exchange nsk
Foreign exchange forward contract
usDiPY USD 133 mut usb - ¥1,859 ¥ - ¥10504
Interest rate risk
Cross cutrency swap
Floating rate receipt and fixed rate payment USD 330 mul usD - 97 — 0 43%
Fixed rate rece:pt and fixed rate payment USD 175 mil USD 75 mil 3,927 - 0 24%
FY2015 As of December 31, 2015
FY2015

Carrying amount o

(Milhans of yen} Average rates

Contract amount Qver one year Assels Ligbilities fyen %)
Foraign exchange nsk
Foreign exchange forward contract
USD/IPY usD 129 mil usD - ¥ 70 ¥ 75 ¥119 95

Interest rate risk
Cross currency swap
Fixed rate receipt and fixed rate payment UsD 175 mil USD 175 mul 3,870 - 0 24%

(Note) Carrying amounts of denvatives are presented as Other financial assats or Other financial habilities” in the consoldated statement of financial posiuon and the portion with over
ane year maturnty s classfied as "Non current assets™ or "Non-current fiabilites *

The schedule of net gains {losses) on hedging instrument designated as cash flow hedges 1s as follows

Milions of yen

Effective portion of changes
in the fair value of cash flow hedges

Foreign Interest

exchange nisk rate risk Total

As of January 1 2015 ¥ 1,077 ¥139 ¥1215
Other comprehensive Income

Amount ansing Nore 284 800 1,084

Reclassification adjustments Nete 2 - {812) (812)

Tax effects {49) 11 {38)

Qthers (1,.324) - (1,324}

As of December 31, 2015 ¥ (12) ¥ 137 ¥ 125

Note 1) Tha changs 1 value of the hedged item used as the basis for recognizing hedge ineffectiveness apprexamates the change in fair value of the hedging instrumenz
{No1a 2} Tha amount which rs reclassified when the hedged tem affects profit or loss 1s recogmized in "Financial income™ or “Financial costs™ in the consolidated statement of income
The amount ¢f hedgs ineffectiveness ts tmmatenal
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B Hedge of Net Investment in Foreign Operations
The details of hedging instruments designated as hedge of net investment are as {ollows

FY2014 As of December 31 2014

FY2014
Carrying amaunt Mo
{Milions of yen} Average ralgs
LContract amount Qver ona year Assets Liamhties {yen)
Bonds in USD USD 325 mul USD 325 mil ¥ — ¥38 868 ¥99 45
FY2015 As of December 31, 2015
FY2015
Carrying amount Mew
Milhans of yen) Average rates
Centract amount COver one year Assets Liabihues {yen)
Bonds in USD USD 325 mil USD 325 mil ¥ - ¥38,965 ¥99 45

(Note} Carrying amounts of bonds are presented as “Bonds ane borrowings™ n the consolidated statement of inanoal posiion and the portion with over one year matunty is classified
as "Non current habilities *

The schedule of net gans (losses) on hedging instrument designated as hedge of net investment i fereign operations s as follows

Milkons of yen

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

As of January 1, 2015 ¥{(3,100)
Other comprehensive iIncome
Amount anging Nere ! (1,490)
Tax effects 93
As of December 31, 2015 Mo 2 ¥(4,497)

{Nate 1) The change in valug of the hedged nem used as the basis lor recognizing hedgs neffectivaness approximaies the change in fair valua of the hedging instrurent
(Note 2} Nat gain of ¥136 miltion arising from the hedging instrument lor which hedge accounting 1s discontinuert 1s included in the exchange diferences on translation of loreign
operatians

{8} Market Price Fluctuation Risk
With respect to secunties the Group regularly assesses the farr value and financial condiions of the 1ssuers and each relevant department
reviews the portfolio held by taking into account the relationship with counterparty entities as necessary

(9) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The farr value hierarchy of financial instruments is categonzed from Level 1 to Level 3 as follows

Level 1 Fair value measured at the quoted price In the active market
Level 2 Far value that 1s calculated using the observable price other than categorized 1n Level 1 directly or indirectly
Level 3 Fay value that is calculated based on valuauon techmniques which include inputs that are not based on observable market data

{1} Financial instruments measured at amortized cost
The carrying amount and fair value hierarchy of financial instrumenis measured at amoruzed cost as of each fiscal year end are as follows

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Millions aof yen

FY2014

Fair value

Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total

Long-term borrowtngs et ¥ 40,976 ¥ — ¥ - ¥40 976 ¥ 40,976
Bonds Mo 139 954 142 586 - — 142 586
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FY2015 As of December 31, 2015
Millions of yen

FY2015

Fair value

Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Long-term borrowings et ¥ 1,014 ¥ - ¥ — ¥1,014 ¥ 1,014
Bonds 215,072 217,215 - - 217,215

(Note) Current portion 13 Included

With regard to short-termn financial assets and short-term financial habilities measured at amortized cost, therr fair value approximates
the carrying amount

The fair value of long-term borrowings 15 calculated based on the present value which 1s obtained by discounting the total of the principal
and interest by the interest rate assumed In a case where the same loan 1 newly made

{n} Financial instruments measured at fair value
The fair value hserarchy of financral instruments measured at fair value 1s as follows

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Millions of yen

FY2014

Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3w Total

Dernvative assets ¥ - ¥31 837 ¥ - ¥31,837

Equsty secunties 55,499 - 3,856 59 355

Other 279 - 1,555 1,834

Total ¥55,778 ¥31,837 ¥5411 ¥93 025

Denvatve liabilities ¥ — ¥10 010 ¥ - ¥10,010

Total ¥ — ¥10,010 ¥ - ¥10 030
FY2015 As of December 31, 2015

Mihons of yen

FY2015

Leval 1 Leve} 2 Level 3 o= Totat

Derivative assets ¥ - ¥7.106 ¥ - ¥ 7,106

Equity securiiies 67,557 - 5,239 72,795

Other 319 - 1,727 2,046

Total ¥67,876 ¥7,106 ¥6,966 ¥81,948

Derivative habilities ¥ - ¥5,595 ¥ - ¥ 5,595

Total ¥ - ¥5,595 ¥ - ¥ 55695

{Note} The schedule of financial instruments that are classified i Level 3.1s as follows

Millions of yen

FY2014 FY2015

iNine months ended December 31 2012) (Year snchad Decermnbar 31 2015)

Balance at the beginning of the penod ¥5 229 ¥5,411
Total gain (loss}

Profit or logg Mo !t 294 172

Other comprehensive income MNow 212 1,154

Purchases - 478

Sales (324} {250)

Balance at the end of the period ¥5,411 ¥6,966

{Note 1) Gains and losses included i profit or loss for the nine months anded December 31 2014 and for the year ended December 31 2015 are refated 10 financial assels measured
at faur vatue thraugh profit or foss as of the fisral year and data These gains and losses are includea in “Financial incomea™ and "Financial costs ™

(Nate 2) Gains and losses included in other comprehensive Income for the nine manths anded Decembier 31 2014 and for the year endad December 31 2015 are related to financial
assels measured at fair value through other comprehansive encome as of the fiscal year end date These gains and losses are ncluded in “Net gain (loss) on revatuauon of
financial assets measurad at fair valua through other comprehensive income ™
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34 Related Parties

Based on the Japan Tobacco inc Act the Japanese government shall hold more than one-third of all of the shares 1ssued by the Company
(excluding the type of shares, for which 1 1s stipulated that voting nghts may not be exercised on any matters that can be resclved by Annuz!
Shareholders Mesting) As of December 31 2015 the Japanese government held 33 35% of all outstanding shares of the Company

{1) Related-party Transactions
Related-party transacuions are conducted under the same conditions as regular business transactions

The Company s revenue from CJSC TK Megapohs the local Russian distnbution affiliate was ¥309 519 mulhon and ¥240 B37 mithon for
the nine months ended December 31, 2014 and for the year ended December 31 2015 respectively The Company held trade receivables of
¥33,302 milhion and ¥27,3986 million from CJSC TK Megapclis as of December 31, 2014 and December 31 2015 respectively

{2) Remuneration for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Remuneration for directors and audit & supervisory board members for each fiscal year 1s as follows

Mitions of yen

FY2014 Y2015
{Nina months andad Dacambar 31 2014) (Year ended Decambear 31 2015)
Remuneration and bonuses ¥526 ¥650
Share-based payments B4 159
Totat ¥610 ¥809
35. Subsidianes, Associates and Others
{The composition of the Group}
The composition of the Group by reportable segment as of each fiscal year end s as follows
FY2014 [As ot Docomber 31 2014) FY2015 (As of Dacamber 31 2015)
Number of entities Number of entities
Number of accounied for using Number of accounted for using
Reportable Segments subsidaries the equity mathod Mee subsidianes the equity mathod Nee
Domesuc Tobacco 4 2 11 2
International Tobacco 145 6 144 5
Pharmaceuticals 3 - 3 -
Processed Food 28 3 28 3
QOther e 2 25 1 8 2
Total 215 12 194 12

{Note 1) No associates ar jomnt veniures are considered 10 be matanal to the Group
{Note 2) As "Beveragse Business” has been classified as discontinued operations far the year ended December 31 2015 subsidaries classified in the discontinued operatians are presented

n "Q.har”

36 Commitments

(1} Commitments for the Acquisition of Assets
Commitments for the acquisitton of assets after each fiscal year end date are as follows

Mitlions of yen

Fr2014 F¥2015

(As of Dacembar 31 2014 {As of Decambar 31 2015)

Acgquisiion of property plant and equipment ¥64,832 ¥41,879

Acquisition of intangible assets 2612 1,402

Total ¥67 444 ¥43,281
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{2) Procurement of Domestic Leaf Tobacco

With regard to the procurement of domestic leaf tobacco by the
Company, based con the Tobacco Business Act the Company enters
into purchase contracts with domestic leaf tobacco growers every
year and the contracts determine the area under cultivation by

37. Business Combinations

Financial Information

type of tobacco and the prices by type and quahty of tobacco leaf
Under the contracts the Company is obligated to purchase all
domestic leaf tobacco produced pursuant 1o such contracts except
for any domestic teaf tobacco not suited for the manufacture of
tobacco products

For the year ended December 31 2015 the Group has made several acquisitions As none of them 1s material 1o the conschidated financial

statements the description for each acquisition 1s omitted

The total considerations for the acquisiions and the breakdown are as follows

Millions of yen

LConsiderations paid

Cash ¥67,172
Consideration adjustments 14,251
Total considerations ¥81,423

Milons of yen

Net cash outflow for the
acquisiions of subsidianags

Cash consideration ¥67,172
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired {121)
Net cash outflow for the acquisitions of subsidianes ¥67,051
Total fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the acquisitions are as follows
Milions of yen
Fair value
Current assets ¥ 3,244
Non-current assets 28,695
Total assets ¥31,939
Current hlabihties ¥ 8,873
Non-current liabilities 6,044
Jotal iabihties ¥14,917
Goodwilt ¥64,402

Goodwill reflects integration synergies including future economic benefits from enhanced business scale 1n each market Fair values of
assets acquired and liabiiwbes assumed are provisional amounts recognized at the acqusition date and will change dunng the measurement

pericd {one year from the acguisiton date)

38. Discontinued Operations

{1} General Information of Discontinued
Operations
The Group classifies continuing operations and discontinued cpera-
tions based on operating segments As a result for a business not
managed as an independent eperating segment it will not be clas-
sified as discontinued operations when sold or discontinued and 1ts
operating income (loss) and cash flows will be included in the oper-
atng income (loss) and cash fiows of continuing operations

JAPAN TOBACC O INC

Shares of Japan Beverage Holdings Inc  JT A-star Co Ltd and
other subsidiaries conducting vending machine operation business
were transferred to Suntory Beverage & Food Limsied { SBF } on
July 31 2015 and the manufacture and sale of JT beverage prod-
ucts was discontinued at the end of September 2015 Accordingly
for the year ended December 31 2015 Beverage Business ' has
been classified as discontinued operations and presented separately
from conunuing operatons
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{2} Profit and Loss of Discontinued Operations

Miltions of yen

Fr2014
iNire months ended Decambar 31 2014)

FY2015
{Vaar anded Dacernber 31 2015}

Profit and loss of discontinued operations

Revenue ¥134,225 ¥ 88,597
Cost of sales (63,729) (40,542)
Gross profit 70,495 48,055
Other gperating income New ! 232 135,081
Selling, general and administrative expenses Mo ? (70 850) {64,017)
Operating profit {123) 119,120
Financial income 39 36
Financial costs {143) (148)
Profit befere iIncome taxes {227} 119,009
Income taxegs Weed {861} {31,493)
Profit {loss) for the pericd from discontinued operations ¥ (1,088) ¥ 87,515
Attributable to
Owners of the parent company ¥ (1,583) ¥ 87,237
Non-controlling interests 495 278
Profit {loss) for the period from disconttnued operations ¥ {1,088) ¥ 87,515
(Note 1) Gan of ¥134 287 million ansing from sale of subsidianes conducung vending machine operation business is included in ithe year ended December 31 2015
[Note 2} Impairmant losses a! ¥3 138 millien 878 included in the year anded December 31 2015
[Nate 3) Tax expanse of ¥36 494 milhon related 1o transfer of subsidianas 1s included in the year snded Dacember 31 2015
{3) Cash Flows of Discontinued Operations
Millions of yen
FY2014 FY201%

({hine months ended Decambar 11 2014)

(Year ended Dacember 31 2015)

Cash flows of discontinued operations

Cash flows from operating activities ¥ 3,297 ¥ 2211
Cash flows from investing activities Mo {5 571) 123,772
Cash flows from financing activities (1,903) {13,197}
Total ¥4 177) ¥112,786

{Note) Proceeds fram sale of investments in subsidianes conducting vending machine aperauon pusiness are included i the year ended December 31 2015
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39. Transfer of Subsidiaries

Financial Information

On July 31 2015 shares of Japan Beverage Holdings Inc  JT A-star Co, Ltd , and other fourteen subsidiaries conducting vending machine

operation business were transferred to SBF

The considerauon 1s ¥148,438 million and all 1s received in cash

Milhons of yen

Net cash inftow from
transfer of subsidiaries

Cash consideration received ¥148,438
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidianes transferred (21,664)
Net cash inflow from transfer of subsidiarnies ¥126,774
The breakdown of assets and Liabilities transferred s as follows
Millions of yen
Bock value
Current assets ¥40,047
Non-current assets 32,001
Total assets ¥72,048
Current habilities ¥35,716
Non-current habilities 16,137
Total labilities ¥51,853

40. Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities
The Company and some of 1ts subsidiaries are defendants in
lawsuits Provisions are not accounted for in matters it 1s not practi-
cable to reasonably estimate the final outcomes

The Company and secme of its subsidianes, who are defendants
n such lawsuits, believe that our defenses asserted in these law-
suits are based on substaniial evidence and implernenis the system
for the response to acuon with the assistance of external lawvyaers

{1) Smoking and Health Related Litigation
The Company and some of Its subsidiaries are defendants in
lawsuits filed by plaintiffs seeking damages for harm allegedly
caused by smoking the marketing of tobacco products or exposure
to tebacco smoke As of December 31 2015, there were a total of
20 smoking and health refated cases pending m which one or more
members of the Group were named as a defendant or for which the
Company may have certain indemnity obligatrons pursuant to the
agreement for the Company s acquisition of RJR Nabisco Inc 's
overseas {non-U S ) tobacco operations

The major ongotng smoking and health related cases are
as foltows
a Indivdual Claim
There ts one individual case trought against the Company s indem-
nitee in South Africa
South Africa Individual Claim (Joselowrtz)
The individual claim was brought against the Cempany’s indemnitee
in Seuth Africa in October 2000 Plainuff seeks compensatory and

punitive damages alleging that the Company s indemnitee mar-
keted praducts which 1t knew t¢ be dangerous to health, mampu-
lated nicotine content to foster addiction falled to comply with
South African labeling requirements and parucipated in a clandes-
tine worldwide operation to encourage children to smoke This case
has been dormant since February 2001

In addition there 1s one indimdual case {which 1s currently
dormant) brought against the Company s subsidiary in Ireland
b Class Actions
There are eight ongoing class actions in Canada against the
Company s subsidiary and/or indemnitees
Canada Quebec Class Action (Ceciia Letourneau)
Thes class action was brought in September 1998 against three
Canadian tobacco manufacturers including JTI-Macdonald Corp
{hereinafter referred to as JTI-Mac"), the Company s Canadian
subsidiary Plainuffs are seeking a total of approximately ¥400 3
biihon {approximately CAD 4 6 billvon) in compensatory damages
an amount for which all the defendants would be jointly and sever-
ally hable Plainuifs are seeking an additonal amount of approxi-
mately ¥400 3 billion {(approximately CAD 4 € biliion) in punitive
damages, to be divided among &all the defendants based on therr
respectve market shares The class was certified by the court in
February 2005 and the tnal was conducted from March 2012
through December 2014

The Quebec Superior Court rendered the first instance judgmen
in May 2015 ordening a punitive damage award against the defen-
dants of approximately ¥11 4 pillion (CAD 131 mihion} in which the
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share of the total damage award against JTI-Mac 1s approximately
¥1 1 pillion (gpproximately CAD 13 million} Although the Court
found that the defendanis had all committed some faults it refused
to award moral damages because the evidence did not establish the
total amount of the claims of class members In June 2015, JTl-Mac
appealed the judgmeni (o the Quebec Court of Appeal and the
defendants’ appeal on the ments I1s scheduled to be heard in
November 2016
Canada Quebec Class Action (Conssil Quebecors sur le tabac et
fa santd)
This ¢lass action was brought in November 1998 against three
Canadhan tobacco manufacturers includig JT-Mac  Plainuffs are
seeking a total of approximately ¥1,084 3 bilhon (approximately CAD
12 4 bilhon} in compensatory damages an amount for which all the
defendants are jointly and severally lable Plaintffs are seeking an
additional amount of approximately ¥70 7 bilhon {approximately CAD
0 8 biilion) 1n punitive damages te be divided among all the defen-
dants based on ther respective market shares The class was certi-
fied by the court in February 2006, and the tnal was conducted from
March 2012 through December 2014

The Quebec Supenor Court rendered the first instance judgment
i May 2015 ordenng a compensatory damage award jointly and
severally against the defendants of approximately ¥1 351 3 billion
{CAD 15 5 bilhon) 1n which the share of the total damage award
agamnst JTI-Mac s approximately ¥175 7 tilhon (CAD 2 015 billion}
Given the enormity of the damage award the Court granted a sym-
bolhic amount of punitive damages of approximately ¥3 mifion (CAD
30 000) per defendant |n June 2015 JTI-Mac appealed the judg-
ment to the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the defendants appeal
on the ments 1s scheduled to be heard in Novernber 2016
Canada Saskatchewan Class Action (Adams)
This class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company’s indemnitees in Jure 2009
Plaintffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive dam-
ages on behalf of class members who allege to be or have heen
addicted to nicotine contamned in cigarettes manufactured by the
defendants The preliminary motions are pending The case 1s
currently dormant
Canada Marutoba Class Actron (Kunta)
This class action was brought aganst tobacco industry members
including JTi-Mac and the Company's indemnitees 1n June 2008
Plainuffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive dam-
ages on behalf of class members who allege to be or have been
addicted t@ nicoting contained i cigareties manufactured by the
defendants The statement of ¢laim was served on the Company s
indemnitees but not on JTI-Mac The ¢lass action 15 currently
dormant
Canada Nova Scotia Class Action {Semple)
Thus class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company s indemnitees in June 2009
Plaintifs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive dam-
ages on behalf of class members who allege to be or have been
addicted to nicotine contained in cigareties manufactured by the

defendanis The statement of claim was served on the Company's
indemnitees but not on JTI-Mac The ¢lass action 1s currently
dormanti

Canada British Columtna Class Action {Bourassal

This class action was brought against toebacco industry members
including fTI-Mac and the Company’s indemnitees in June 2010
Plaintiffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive dam-
ages for class members The preliminary meotions are pending

The pre-trial process I1s ongoing A tnal date 15 not vet scheduled
Canada British Columbia Class Action {McDermid)

This class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company’s indemnitees in June 2010
Plaintiffs are sesking unspecified compensatory and punitive dam-
ages for class members The preliminary motions are pending

The case s currently dormant

Canada Ontanp Class Action {Jackhn)

This class action was brought agamnst tohacco industry members
including JTI-Mag and the Company s indemnitees 1n June 2032
Plamntiffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive dam-
ages for class members The preliminary motions are pending

The case (s currently dorrant

¢ Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

There are 10 ongaing health-care cost recovery cases in Canada
pending against the Company's subsidiary and indemnitees brought
by all the Canadian provinces {except three Canadian territories)
These provinces filed lawsuits under therr own provincial legislation
which was enacted exclusively for the purpose of authonzing the
provincial government to file a direct achion against tobacco manu-
facturers to recoup the health-care costs the government has alleg-
edly incurred and will incur resulting from ‘tobacce related wrongs
Canada Briish Columbia Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation
This health-care cost recovery itigaticn was filed by the Province of
British Columbia in January 2001 against tobacco incdustry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based on its
provincial legislation the Tobacco Darmages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act ' The claim amount 1s unspecified In 2001, several
defendants challenged the legislation's constitutionality which was
ultimately rejected by the Supreme Court of Canada in September
2005 The action remains pending in the first instance The pre-tnal
process i1s ongong A trnal date 1s not yet scheduled

Canada New Brunswick Health-Care Cost Recovery Liigation

This healih-care cost recovery litigation was filed by the Province of
New Brunswick in March 2008 agamnst tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company s indemnitees based on legisla-
uon similar to that introduced in the Provance of Britsh Columbua
The clairm amount 1s unspecified The pre-tnal process 15 ongoing

A tnal date 1s not yet schedufed

Canada Ontario Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

This health-care cost recovery iigation was filed by the Province
of Ontano 1n September 2009 against tobacco industry members
including JTl-Mac and the Company’s indemnitees based an legisla-
tion simular to that introduced in the Province of Briush Columbia
The staterment of claim contains allegaucns of joint and several
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liabilities among all the defendants but does not specify any indi-
vidual amount or percentages within the total claimed amount of

¥4 359 billion (CAD 50 0 billion) The pre-tnal process 1s ongoing

A tnal date 18 not yet scheduled

Canada Newfoundland and Labrador Health-Care Cost Recovery
Littgation

This healih-care cost recovery litigation was filed by the Province of
Newfoundiand and Labrador in February 2011 against tobacco
industry members including JTI-Mac and the Company s indemni-
tees based on legislanon similar to that introduced in the Province
of Bnush Columbta The claim amount s unspecified The pre-tnal
process 1S ongoing A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled

Canada Manitoba Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

This health-care cost recovery hugatuon was filed by the Province of
Manitoba in May 2012 against tobacco indusiry members including
JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based on legislation similar
to that intreduced in the Province of British Columbiz The claim
amount 15 unspecifred The pre-tnal process 1s ongoing A trial date
1s not yet scheduled

Canada Quebec Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

This health-care cost recovery liigation was filed by the Prowince of
Quebec n June 2012 against tobacco industry members including
JTI-Mac and the Company's iIndemnitees based on legislation similar
to that introduced 1n the Province of Briish Columbia The statement
of claim contains allegations of joint and several abhues among

all the detendants but does not specify any indwidual amount ar
percentages within the total amount of the clarm approximately
¥5,288 1 billion (approximately CAD 60 7 billion) The pre-tnal
process is ongoing A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled

Canada Alberta Health-Care Cast Recavery Litigation

This health-care cost recovery liugation was filed by the Province of
Alberta in June 2012 against tobacco industry members including
JTl-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based on legislation similar
to that introduced n the Province of Bntish Columbia The statement
of claim contains allegatiens of joint and several labiities among all
the defendants but does not specify any iIndwvidual amount or per-
centages within the total claimed amount of at least ¥871 8 billion
(CAD 10 Q kilhen) The pre-trial process 1s ongeing A trial date I1s not
yet scheduled

Canada Saskatchewan Health-Care Cost Recovery Lingation

This health-care cost recovery iugation was filed by the Province of
Saskatchewan in June 2012 against tobacco indusiry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company s indemnitees based on legista-
tion similar to that introduced i the Province of Brtish Columbia
The claim amount 1s unsgecified The pre-inal process 1s ongoing

A nal date 1s not yet schedufed

Canada Prince Edward Island Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation
This health-care cost recovery htigation was filed by the Province of
Prince Edward Island in September 2012 against tobacco industry
members including JTI-Mac and the Company’s indemnitees based
on legislation simitar to that introduced In the Province of Bnuish
Columbia The claim amount is unspecified The pre-trial process is
ongoing A tnal date 15 not yet scheduled

Financial Information

Canada Nova Scotia Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

Thus health-care cost recovery htigation was filed by the Province of
Nova Scotia (n January 2015 agatnst tebacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company s indemnitees based on legisla-
tion similar to that introduced in the Province of British Columina
The claim amount 1s unspecified The pre-tnal process Is ongoing

A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled

{2) Other Lingation

The Company and some of 1ts subsidianes are alse named as
defendants in other itigation such as commercial and tax disputes
One major case is pending

Commerctal Litigation

Japan Compensatory Damages Claim

In February 2010 a former President & CEQ of Katokichi Co, Ltd
filed a clairm agamnst TableMark Holdings Co, Ltd {renamed after
acquisition of Katokichi Co, Ltd by the Company} and its subsidiary
seeking damages allegedly incurred by the plainuff from an asset
purchase agreement between the plainiiff and Katckichi Co, Lid
and a joint and several guarantee provided by the plantiff The
plaintiff argues the invalidity of the asset purchase agreement

{Note) The amount of damages sought denominated in forelgn currencias 13 transtated into
Japanese yan at the rates a3 of 31 Decambar 2015
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41 Subsequent Events

{1} Acquisition of the Natural American Spirit
Business outside the United States

On September 29 2015 the Group entered 1ntoc an agreement with
the Reynolds American Inc group { RAIl ) to acquire the Natural
American Spint business outside the United States which included
the non-U S trademarks and all outstanding shares of RAIl s subsid-
1aries outside the U S which sold the brand

Based on the agreement, the Group completed the acquisition
on January 13, 2016 The acquisition price Is appraximatety $5 0
billion {approximately ¥592 2 billion}

{2) Borrowings

The Group entered 1nto loan agreements with banks as follows

1 Lenders Mizuhe Bank Ltd, Sumitomo Mitsin
Banking Corporation and The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubistn URS Ltd

2 Aggregate amount

of borrowings

3 Interest rates

4 Execution dates

5 Repayment dates

$3 5 bilion {approximately ¥412 6 biullion}
Fioating rates {Based on LIBOR plus spread)
January 12 and 13 2016

Apnl 13, 2018, July 13 2016 January 12
and 13, 2017

& Cotlateral/Guarantee None

7 Use of proceeds The funds to acquire the Natural American
Spinit business outside the United States

by the Company
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42. Consolidated Statement of Income (2014 January-December)

Consolidated statement of Income assuming that the previous fiscal year of the Group had been the iwelve-month period from January 1

2014 to December 31 2014 1s as follows

whihons of yen

2004
tanuary-Decemnber)

Continuing operations

Revenue ¥2,259,240
Cost of sales {904 801)
Gross profit 1,354,339
Other operating income 50,075
Share of proftt in iInvestments accounted for using the equity method 7.812
Selling, genaral and administrative expenses {838 604}
Operating profit 572 622
Financial income 14,734
Financial costs {12 784}
Profit before income taxes 574 572
Income taxes {177,112}
Profit for the period from continuing operations 397 460
Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the penod from discontinued operations {1,752)
Profit for the period ¥ 395 708
Attnibutable to
Owners of the parent company ¥ 389 065
Non-gentrolling interests 6 643
Profit for the pencd ¥ 395,708
Earnings per share
Basic (Yen)
Continuing operations ¥ 21536
Discontinued operations {1 30)
Total basic earmings per share for the pencd ¥ 21406
Diluted (Yen}
Conuinuing operations ¥ 21524
Discontinued operations {1 30
Jotal dHluted earnings per share for the penod ¥ 21394

Reconcihiation from “Operating profit” to “Adjusted operating profit”

Mithons of yen

04
{January-December)

Continuing operations

Operaung profit ¥572 622
Amortization cost of acquired intangibles 29 4656
Adjustment items (iIncome) (46 113)
Adjustment items (costs} 104,980

Adjusted operating profit ¥660,954
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Consolidated Supplementary Information

A Quarterly Information for the Year ended Dacember 31, 2015

Mithons of yan

at
From January 1 2015
to March 31, 2015

Qz
From January 1, 2015
to June 30 2015

Qa3
From January 1 2015
to September 30, 2015

FY2015
From January 1 2015
1o December 31 2015

Revenue ¥554,893 ¥1,171,718 ¥1,688,468 ¥2,252.884
Profit before iIncome taxes for the period {year) 145,293 291,305 457,340 565,113
Profit for the penod (year) 105,036 213,677 407,872 490,242
Basic earnings per share for the period (year) {yen) 57 59 117 49 225 07 27054

al az a3 o4

From January t 2015
to March 31 2015

from Apnt1 2015
to June 30 2015

From July 1 2015
to September 30 2015

From October 1, 2015
to December 31, 2015

Basic earnings per share for the quarter {yen} ¥57 59

¥59 91

¥107 74

%45 40

{Note) “Beverage Business” has been classified as discontinued operanons from the nine months ended Septamber 30 2015 Accordingly for the mine manths ended September 30 2015

and for the year endad December 31 2035 Revanue and Profit before income taxes for the perod {year) have been prasantad the amount from continuing aperatians

B Signsficant Lawsunts

The significant lawsuits of the Group are as stated in ‘40 Contingencies” In the notes to consolidated financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Japan Tebacco Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Japan Tobacco
Inc and its consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 20135, and the related consolhidated
statements of income, comprehensive iIncome, changes in equity, and cash flows for the fiscal year
from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015, and notes to consolidated financial statements

Management's Responsibility for the Consohidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audhit We conducted our audit 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n Japan
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated finanacial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performung procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1 the consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the ¢consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting
pohcies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion

Opinion !

In our opinion, the consohidated financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all
matenal respects, the consolidated financial position of Japan Tobacco Inc and 1ts consolidated
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015, and the consolidated results of their operations and their
cash flows for the fiscal year then ended 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards

W}Z& Tokoativ L-L-C.

March 23, 2016

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited ‘
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Glossary of Terms

Unless otherwise stated, terms and numbers reported In this glossary are in accordance with IFRS

Adjusted Operating Profit: Operating proft + Amortization
cost of acquired intangibles + Adjusted items {income
and costs)’

*  Adjusted itams income and costs) = impairment lossas on goodwll  restructunng
mrtcome and ¢os1s ¢ others

Adjusted EPS. (Profit or loss attributabie to owners of the
parent company + adjustment 1tems (income and costs)” +
tax and rinority interests adjustments) / (weighted-average
commeon shares + increased number of ordinary shares

under subscription nghts to shares)
* Adjustment ilems (income and cosis) = imparment lossas on goodwall & restructunng
ncome and costs + others

Adjusted Profit: Profit for the year (profit atirbutable to
owners of the parent company) + adjustment items (Income

and costs)” + (tax and minority interests adjustments)
*  Adjustmant items (income and costs) impairment losses on goodwills restructunng
neome and costs x others

BnlU- Bilion Units
CAGR Compound annual growth rate

Contraband: Genuine products smuggled from abroad
Genuine products diverted from the legitimate supply chain
and sold in a country different from the intended market of
retarl sale and without domestic duty paid in that country

Constant Exchange Rates Constant exchange rates
measures are computed by restating current year results at
the previocus year’s foreign currency exchange rate Results
at constant rates of exchange should be considered in
additton to, not as a substrtute for, results reported in
accordance with IFRS

Core revenue (International Tobacco Business):
Includes revenues from waterpipe tobacco and emerging
products, but excludes revenues from distribution, contract
manufactunng and other penpheral businesses

Core Revenue (Japanese Domestic Tobacco
Business) Excludes revenue from the distribution
business of imported tobacco in the Japanese domestic
1obacco business, among others

Counterfeit: Fake products appearnng to be a genuine
brand Products protected by intellectual property nghts
which are manufactured without authorization from the
rights’ owners and with the intent to copy the genuine
brand to deceive the consumer, also sold without duties
being paid

FCF (Free Cash Flow} The sum of cash flows from

operating activities and invesung activities but excluding

the following 1tems

= Cash flows from operating activittes interest received,
dwidends received, interest paid and the tax effect related
to these items

» Cash flows from investing activities purchase of
investment securriies (for both short-term and long-term),
payments into time deposits, proceeds from sale or
redemption of iInvestment securtties (for both short-term
and long-term)}, proceeds from withdrawal of time
deposits and other investing activities not for business
operation purposes

GFB: Global Flagship Brands (Winston, Camel, MEVIUS,
LD, Benson & Hedges, Glarour, Silk Cut and Sobranie)

FY2014 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

In FY2014, the Company and its subsidiaries with fiscal year
ends other than December 31 have changed therr fiscal year
ends to December 31

The fiscal year end for international business continues to

be December 31 as before, hence the Group consolidates
financial results of international business for the twelve-month
period from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 into tha
Group’s consolidated financial results for the nine months
ended December 31, 2014 {Reported basis)

For the purpose of fair comparison of business performance,
we are providing figures for the twelve-month penod from
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 {Like-for-Like basis)
with regard to all business segments In continuing operations
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Results for Nine months ended December 31, 2014
{Reported basis) For domestic businesses consohdated
ning-month results from Apnt 1 to December 31, 2014

For international business consolidated twelve-month
results from January 1 to December 31, 2014

Results of Jan-Dec 2014 (Like-for-Like basis) Forthe

purpose of fair companson of business performance, we

are providing figures with regard to all business segments

in continuing operations for January to December, 2014

* Revenue, operating profit, adjusted operating profit from
continuing operattons and profit attributed to owners of
the parent company from continuing and discontinued
operations combined for January to December, 2014
were disclosed in the Annual Securities Report, which
was audited

Illicit whites Legiimately manufactured brands
intentionally sold on the ilicit market Brands manufactured
legiimately in one country but smuggled into another
country to prowide consumers with cheap brands, also
without duties being paid

IFRS. International Financial Reporting Standards

JPY BN Bilhon Japanese Yen

Restated: See ‘Constant Exchange Rates’

Revenue Excluding tobacco excise taxes and revenue
from agent transactions

Profit: Profit attributable to owners of the Parent

TableMark. References to “TableMark” are to TableMark
Holdings Co Ltd, TableMark Co Ltd

Total Shipment Volume (International Tobacco

Business} Includes fine cut, cigars, pipe tobacco and snus

but excludes contract manufactured products, waterpipe
tobacco and emerging products

Total Sales Volume (Japanese Domestic Tobacco
Business): Excludes sales volume of domestic duty free
and the China business

Us$ MM Million US dollars

Jan  Apr Jub Oct Jan Apr Jui Qct
Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec

Domastic
International

Fr2014 FY2015

Jan  Apr Ju Qct Jan  Apr  Jul  Qct
Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec

2014 Jan - Dec FY2015
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